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This report provides the South African public with information regarding the work of the former Department
of Education during the past financial year, including highlights and achievements, as well as the continuing
challenges and constraints which had to be faced. As such, it serves as an instrument of accountability, where we
explain to the country how we have used the funds approved by Parliament under Vote 15. It is our hope that the
report will demonstrate that the funds have been used wisely, have been properly managed, and have indeed
contributed to the further education and development of the nation.

The Constitution protects the right to education at different levels, and serves as our primary mandate. We
are also guided by international protocols on education, particularly the commitments made in terms of the
Education for All Dakar Declaration. Our legislation, policies and interventions have all been framed in terms of
the principles established in the Constitution, and with regard to international protocols.

The Departments of Basic Education and Higher Education and Training strive to spearhead the progressive
transformation of education in South Africa, and to make the system more modern, relevant and responsive
to the demands of the Twenty-first Century. The task is daunting, and the challenges enormous, but they are
not insurmountable. Throughout the system we need a sustained focus on, and a commitment to the ideals
and values of our nation, so as to ensure that the doors of learning remain open, or are opened where they
have been closed, and to provide advice with regard to learning opportunities. Our young are the future of our
country, and we owe them our complete dedication by improving their chances in life by ensuring the provision
of quality education for all.

Much has been done to achieve our goals of quality education for all, and the Departments benefited greatly
from the advice and cooperation of our provincial colleagues in this regard. They have assisted us in refining our
policies and practices, and their commitment to implementing agreed-upon programmes is greatly appreciated.
Provinces face the enormous challenges of policy implementation, often under difficult circumstances, and we
must record our appreciation for their role.

The work described in this report was made possible by the many dedicated officials in the Department, and with
the cooperation of our social partners — especially the teacher unions, the governing body associations and the
student organisations. We also enjoyed the support of international development partners and agencies, and of
the private sector in South Africa. All of this is much appreciated.

| also benefited greatly from the political leadership and support of the former Minister of Education, Naledi
Pandor, MP and the guidance and advice of our former and current Deputy Minister, Enver Surty, MP. Our
task would not have been possible without them. | now have pleasure in presenting this Annual Report of the
Department of Education to our current ministerial team, and inviting them to table it in Parliament, as required.

9\ .

Duncan Hindle
Director-General: Education




Message from the Ministers of Education

During the past year, government once again reaffirmed its commitment to the education system. Building on
the transformation successes of the past, but also recognising the huge backlogs that exist in many parts of the
system throughout the country, additional funds were allocated to further address these backlogs. This report
provides details on programme performance, as well as on the utilisation of investment, based on our plans to
improve the quality of service that we offer to the nation.

During the period under review, the Department continued to focus its attention on the areas that require
improvement, especially those areas that affect the majority of our population. The Department has since been
reconfigured and restructured, so that we may appropriately respond to the challenges facing us. The new
structure gives impetus to the fine-tuning of policy formulation and policy implementation, in moving towards the
achievement of quality education. The Department established a research unit to focus on cyclical policy review
and to ensure evidence-based decision-making in the education sector. This unit has been useful in developing a
reliable database to support policy formulation initiatives, aimed at improving the provision of quality education
and deepening the democratic transformation of the education sector.

The issue of safety and security in schools generated a lot of interest from different sectors of society, and
therefore constitute one of our overriding concerns. A learning environment has to be safe and devoid of fear of
all hazardous elements that might harm or impede education. During the period under review, the Department
continued to work with provinces via the Council of Education Ministers (CEM), to fast-track the implementation
of appropriate policies. We will furthermore collaborate with school governing bodies (SGBs), parents and
communities, to enable us to focus on the promotion of a safe learning environment for our children — an
environment where human life is respected, and where every child has the opportunity to learn and succeed.

Expanding access to quality learning remained high on the Department’s agenda during the period under
review. It continued to increase the provision of quality early childhood development programmes for all young
children, utilising additional financial resource allocations to expand provision. Community-based centres were
assisted to create an environment that is conducive to early childhood education. Furthermore, the no-fee school
policy, which was being implemented during the period under review, is currently being expanded to ensure that
more schools benefit from this policy.

The Department vigorously pursued and intensified its fight against illiteracy by stepping up the Adult Basic
Education and Training (ABET) programmes Levels 1 to 4, as well as the mobilisation of adults to participate in
literacy projects. To this end, we have established a literacy campaign that will run for the next three years. A multi-
faceted approach of resource provisioning, human resources capacity-building and collaborative partnerships
was developed to curb the problem of illiteracy and erase this blight from our society.

At primary and secondary schools, the Department continued its expanded provision of infrastructure, facilities
and learning resources. A concerted effort was made to improve the quality of schooling via a substantial
increase in resources earmarked for the building of classrooms and the provisioning of water, electricity and
sanitation in our schools. More schools, albeit fewer than had originally been planned, were provided with
libraries and science laboratories to improve reading, writing and numeracy skills from Grade R to Grade 12,
especially in townships and rural areas. These resources were provided to extend the joy brought by books to
the majority of South Africans, while expanding access to information in schools. The Department will strengthen
its collaboration with provincial education departments to ensure effective intervention at poorly performing
schools, so as to assist them in improving their performance.

During the period under review, the Department continued to develop the education system at provincial level, in
order to focus on improving its support to schools, educators and district offices. Additional financial allocations
were made to employ more educators, teaching assistants and support staff in schools and district offices, as
well as to improve the remuneration levels of educators. Strategies were developed to reinforce processes of
developing the potential and abilities of education officials to become highly professional, and enabling them
to carry out their duties in a competent, dynamic and knowledgeable manner, so as to provide quality support
and advisory services to schools, as well as to the national and provincial offices.



In the General Education and Training Phase, more attention was paid to the Mathematics and Science Learning
Areas, in order to increase the enrolment and throughput figures. This sector received more resources and
relevant support to ensure that all schools could offer quality teaching and learning in Mathematics and Science,
by suitably qualified teachers, in an environment where there is a dire shortage of qualified Mathematics and
Science teachers. Schools were nevertheless provided with adequate resources and facilities to enable them to
successfully teach these subjects.

A campaign, which is to be implemented over the next three years, was developed to focus on literacy and
numeracy in the Foundation and Intermediate Phases.

Further Education and Training (FET) and Higher Education continued to enjoy strong support from the
Department via the merger and recapitalisation processes, which were aimed at addressing the acute skills
shortage experienced in South Africa. Huge financial investments were injected into these sectors, so as to
expand skills and capacity in order to support economic growth and global competitiveness.

The merger processes in both the Further Education and Training (FET) colleges and the Higher Education
sector had been completed and attention was subsequently focused on the quality of courses offered at these
institutions, as well as on institutional governance. The Department continued to support these institutions to
ensure that they educate and train professionals who would be able to respond to the socio-economic needs
of the country. This support is aimed at ensuring that the sectors meet their objective of increased enrolments,
especially in the fields of science, engineering and technology.

Efforts to promote healthy lifestyles were intensified throughout the education sector. Attention was paid to the
scourge of HIV/Aids, with a view to caring for both the infected and the affected.

We acknowledge the role of information and communication technology (ICT) in preparing our learners for the
global market. The Department focused on graduate shortages in this field and formulated steps to address these
shortages. Our policy on e-education sets a target for our schools and our objective is to equip every manager,
teacher and learner in the General and Further Education and Training sectors with the knowledge and skills to
utilise ICT confidently, creatively and responsibly by 2013. To this effect, a feasibility study, to determine models
of implementation for infrastructure, connectivity, professional development, curriculum integration, research
and human resources systems was conducted, accompanied by recommendations that will facilitate system
development over the next five years.

Each of these objectives could only be achieved through teamwork and commitment amongst public officials,
and good cooperative governance between the national and provincial education departments. In line with
government-wide monitoring and evaluation processes, we bolstered our efforts to ensure that officials
understand our priorities and work towards their realisation, while they are being held accountable.

We would like to submit this Annual Report for the 2008/09 financial year to Parliament, and to the people of
South Africa. This report outlines our successes and challenges in the key areas of focus over the past year, and
indicates to all participants in the education enterprise what was achieved towards furthering our goal of quality
education for all.

We would like to thank the many teachers, officials, support staff and parents, who continued to do their best
for our children, via their collaborative efforts and in support of our endeavour to improve the South African
education system.

We also wish to thank the Deputy Minister, Enver Surty, for his dedication and support, the advisers and staff
in the former Ministry of Education for their advice and commitment, as well as the Director General, Duncan
Hindle, and his senior management team for their hard work in service of the South African public.

""\M i @@%

Mrs Angie Motshekga, MP Dr Blade Nzimande, MP
Minister of Basic Education Minister of Higher Education and Training



Overview of Progress

The Ministry of Education has come a long way since the beginning of democratic governance in South Africa,
especially during the previous term of government. The post-2004 election period presented a set of strategic
challenges and opportunities to the education sector in particular, and to government in general. During the
period under review, there was no major departure from the overall policy trajectory of the past decade.

During the past financial year, the Ministry placed a great deal of emphasis on improving the quality of education.
Concerns about quality public education ranged from infrastructure to the transport of learners, from the delivery
of textbooks to quality teaching and satisfactory outcomes, from high drop-out figures to catch-up programmes
for young people and skills training, and from governance in higher education to student success rates.

Over the past financial year, the Ministry focused on various strategies to address the above-mentioned concerns.
One of these was the Quality Improvement and Development Strategy (QIDS-UP) — a strategy that puts learners’
success first. QIDS-UP includes teaching and learning aimed at addressing key content issues and academic
skills, the continuation of initiatives directed at enhancing South Africa’s performance in Science, Mathematics
and technology, as well as the provision of education support, in the form of libraries, laboratories and teaching
materials, to schools.

The Ministry was concerned with learner attainment (achieving equality of quality via curriculum reform and
improved teaching and learning.); with an increased investment in education for the poor; with improved
classrooms in many areas; with computer facilities and learning support materials for many schools; and with a
new curriculum — all of which made it possible to provide opportunities and a conducive environment for learning
and teaching. A challenge still remains in respect of improving the calibre of teachers in the classroom. To this
end, the Ministry published an agreed-upon framework for the professional development of teachers, aimed at
creating a truly professional cadre of teachers who will be recognised members of this noble profession. Efforts
were intensified to increase the supply of new teachers via the introduction of teacher bursaries/loans, which are
tied to service contracts.

Research into the education system indicated a high drop-out rate of learners beyond the compulsory school-
going age. The Ministry recognised the fact that skills development, as well as improving the relevance of
education with regard to employment and job creation, had to be strengthened beyond this level. The new
curriculum, introduced in Grades 7 and 10 during the period under review will, once fully implemented, address
some of the skills shortages in the country. For the first time, Mathematics has become a compulsory subject. In
October/November 2008, the first learners sat for the National Senior Certificate examinations, offering seven
subjects from a choice of 29, and writing nationally-set and internationally-benchmarked papers.

The system has a well-designed plan, as well as available funding for FET colleges. The Ministry focused on
providing further or vocational training via FET colleges to both the youth and adults. The recapitalisation of FET
colleges facilitated the systematic modernisation and development of the FET college sector. The funds allocated
for the project were dedicated to ensuring that colleges have the necessary infrastructure, teaching equipment
and materials, administrative systems, teaching staff and the necessary ICT to successfully deliver skills via 11
programmes in support of JIPSA.

The Ministry also supported the ongoing transformation of the higher education landscape in South Africa,
which is of crucial importance for knowledge creation, research and the acquisition of skills. The Ministry’s
support was furthermore focused on expanding the growth of engineering faculties, in line with the goals of
ASGISA, by engaging universities to secure their participation in the critical expansion of skills. The challenge
facing the recently merged and reconfigured institutions, is to overcome the label of mediocrity. During the
period under review, the Ministry offered its support to higher education institutions, enabling them to become
centres of tertiary education and knowledge creation. The recapitalisation and merger funding that government
made available, supported financial recovery, the renewal of infrastructure, the refurbishment of residences, as
well as the academic programmes.



To widen access to higher education for disadvantaged students the Ministry, via the National Student Financial
Aid Scheme (NSFAS), continued to provide the necessary funding in this regard. NSFAS also continued to offer
an invaluable service by administering scholarships/loans to deserving students in higher education.

During the period under review, the Ministry participated in education matters on the African continent, as well
as internationally.

The SA/DRC BNC was held in South Africa from 31 March to 3 April 2008. The Guinea JCC was held in Conakry,
Guinea from 24 to 25 June 2008. The Department of Education was represented at the SA/Nigeria BNC, held
in Abuja, Nigeria, from 19 to 23 May 2008. The Department was represented at the SA/DRC BNC meeting
that was held in Kinshasa from 27 to 29 October 2008, as well as at the SA/Nigeria Special Implementation
Committee, which was held in Pretoria from 5 to 6 November 2008. The SA/Rwanda JCC took place from 24
to 25 March 2009.

The Department of Education is on target with meeting its commitments. The Department facilitated the ADEA
Secretariat’s participation at an EFA high-level meeting in Norway in December 2008, in order to work with AU
countries in meeting their targets.



Our vision is of a South Africa in which all our people will have access to lifelong learning, education
and training opportunities which will, in turn, contribute towards improving the quality of life and building
a peaceful, prosperous and democratic South Africa.

Our mission is to provide leadership in the establishment of a South African education system for the
Twenty-first Century.

The Departments of Basic Education and of Higher Education and Training adhere to the following values:

Upholding the Constitution, being accountable to the Ministers, government and the people of South Africa.

Maintaining high standards of performance and professionalism by pursuing excellence in everything we do,
including being fair, ethical and trustworthy in all that we do.

Cooperating with one another and with our partners in education in an open and supportive way to
achieve shared goals.

Creating a learning organisation in which staff members seek and share knowledge and information,
while committing themselves to personal growth.

Striving to address training needs, so as to ensure high-quality service, and seeking ways to
achieve our goals.



Since 1994, a number of policies have been implemented and legislation promulgated to create a framework
for transformation in education and training. A summary of key policies and legislation reads as follows:

1.

The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa (1996), which requires education to be transformed and
democratised in accordance with the values of human dignity, equality, human rights and freedom, non-
racism and non-sexism. It guarantees access to basic education for all, with the provision that everyone
has the right to basic education, including adult basic education. The fundamental policy framework for
the former Ministry of Education is stated in the Ministry’s first White Paper: Education and Training in a
Democratic South Africa: First Steps to Develop a New System (February 1995). This document adopted,
as its point of departure, the 1994 education policy framework of the African National Congress. After
extensive consultation, negotiations and revision, it was approved by Cabinet and has served as a
fundamental reference for subsequent policy and legislative development.

The National Education Policy Act (NEPA) (1996) was designed to inscribe in law the policies, as well as
the legislative and monitoring responsibilities of the Minister of Education, and to formalise the relations
between national and provincial authorities. It laid the foundation for the establishment of the Council of
Education Ministers (CEM), as well as for the Heads of Education Departments Committee (HEDCOM),
as inter-governmental forums to collaborate in developing a new education system. As such, it provides
for the formulation of national policies in general and further education and training for, inter alia,
curriculum development, assessment and language policy, as well as quality assurance. NEPA embodies
the principle of cooperative governance, elaborated upon in Schedule Three of the Constitution.

The South African Schools Act (SASA) (1996), promotes access, quality and democratic governance
in the schooling system. It ensures that all learners have right of access to quality education, without
discrimination, and makes schooling compulsory for children aged 5 to 16. It provides for two types
of schools — independent schools and public schools. The provision in the Act for democratic school
governance via school governing bodies is now in place in public schools country-wide. The school
funding norms, outlined in SASA, prioritise redress and target poverty with regard to the allocation of
funds for the public schooling system. SASA has been amended by the Education Laws Amendment Act
24 of 2005, so as to authorise the declaration of schools in poverty-stricken areas as “no-fee schools”.

The Further Education and Training Act (1998), Education White Paper 4 on Further Education and
Training (1998), and the National Strategy for Further Education and Training (1999-2001). The latter
provides the basis for the development of a nationally coordinated Further Education and Training
system, comprising the senior secondary component of schooling and Further Education and Training
(FET) colleges. It requires the FET institutions, established in terms of the new legislation, to develop
institutional plans, while making provision for programme-based funding and a national curriculum for
learning and teaching.

The Higher Education Act (1997), provides for a unified and nationally planned system of higher
education. It furthermore gave the green light for a statutory Council on Higher Education (CHE), which
advises the Minister while being responsible for quality assurance and promotion. The Higher Education
Act and Education White Paper 3: A Programme for the Transformation of Higher Education (1999),
formed the basis for the transformation of the higher education sector, with implementation being
guided by the National Plan for Higher Education (2001).

A whole spectrum of legislation, including the Employment of Educators Act (1998), aimed at regulating
the professional, moral and ethical responsibilities of educators, as well as the competency requirements
for teachers. The historically-divided teaching force is now governed by one Act of Parliament and one
professional council, namely the South African Council of Educators (SACE).

The Adult Basic Education and Training Act (ABET) (2000), provides for the establishment of public
and private adult learning centres, funding for ABET, governance of public centres, as well as quality
assurance mechanisms for this sector.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

The South African Qualifications Authority (SAQA) Act (1995), provides for the establishment of the
National Qualifications Framework (NQF), which forms the scaffolding for a national learning system
that integrates education and training at all levels. The joint launch of the Human Resources Development
Strategy by the then Minister of Labour and the then Minister of Education, on 23 April 2001, reinforces
the resolve to establish an integrated education, training and development strategy that will harness the
potential of adult learners.

The National Curriculum Statement (Grades R - 12), embodies the vision for general education to move
away from a racist, apartheid, rote model of learning and teaching, to a liberating, nation-building
and learner-centred outcomes-based initiative. In line with training strategies, the reformulation was
intended to allow greater mobility between different levels and between institutional sites, as well as to
promote the integration of knowledge and skills via learning pathways. lts assessment, qualifications,
competency and skills-based framework encourages the development of curriculum models that are
aligned to the NQF, both in theory and practice.

The Education White Paper on Early Childhood Development (2000), provides for the expansion and
full participation of 5-year-olds in pre-school reception grade education by 2010, as well as for an
improvement in the quality of programmes, curricula and teacher development for 0-to-4-year-olds,
and 6-to 9-year-olds.

Education White Paper 6 on Inclusive Education (2001), explains the intention of the Department of
Education to implement inclusive education at all levels in the system by 2020. Such an inclusive system
will allow for the inclusion of vulnerable learners and reduce barriers to learning by means of targeted
support structures and mechanisms. This, in turn, will improve the participation and retention levels of
learners in the education system, particularly with regard to those learners who are prone to dropping
out.

The General and Further Education and Training Quality Assurance Act, Act 58 of 2001, provides for
the establishment of Umalusi, which is charged with the provision of quality assurance in General and
Further Education and Training, the issuing of certificates at the various exit points, control over norms
and standards of curricula and assessment, as well as conducting the actual assessment.

The National Financial Aid Scheme Act, Act 56 of 1999, provides for the granting of loans and bursaries
to eligible students in public higher education institutions, as well as for the administration of such loans
and bursaries.

The Further Education and Training Colleges Act (2006) (Act No. 16 of 2006), provides for the
regulation of Further Education and Training; the establishment, governance and funding of public
Further Education and Training colleges; the registration of private Further Education and Training
colleges; and for the promotion of quality in Further Education and Training.



The Department performs its work, taking into account five broad priorities set by the Minister. This report for
the 2008/09 financial year has been compiled in accordance with the organising framework of the five broad
priorities. These broad priorities are:

A.

Al.

A2.

A3.

DEALING WITH POVERTY
THE COST OF EDUCATION AND THE DECLARATION OF “NO-FEE” SCHOOLS

The Minister of Education adopted a strategy of declaring schools in poor communities as “no-fee”
schools, in order to reduce the financial burden of school fees on poor parents. The strategy is also
intended to increase access to education, which was negatively affected by the high cost of education,
especially with regard to poor communities.

During the period under review, 40% of both primary and secondary schools were declared as “no-fee”
schools. The Minister of Education, after consultation with provincial education departments, declared
40% of both primary and secondary schools in Quintiles 1 and 2 as “no-fee” schools. Approximately
60% of the 12 million learners in the system are currently benefiting from this policy.

The intention is to extend this policy to cover more schools, in order to further increase access to
education, as well as to relief poor communities of the cost of providing an education to their children.

NATIONAL SCHOOLS NUTRITION PROGRAMME (NSNP)

During the period under review, an allocation of R1,5 million was made to the NSNP, whereby
approximately 6 041 primary learners in 17 899 schools were fed daily via this programme.
The programme is aimed at alleviating poverty amongst poor communities in general, and at enhancing
learning capacity via good nutrition and the strengthening of food production initiatives in schools.
All schools that participated in the NSNP were encouraged to plant vegetable gardens and 6 226
vegetable gardens were being tended during the period under review. The programme is furthermore
aimed at promoting skills development, at the reviving of indigenous knowledge and values, at the
provision of additional nourishing fresh produce, as well as at encouraging parental participation in
school activities and generating economic activities.

The Department developed a guide for secondary schools in preparation for the phasing in of the NSNP
in Quintile 1 secondary schools in April 2009. In October 2008, the Minister of Finance announced an
increase in the funding of this project from R1,5 million to R1,9 million, in order to ensure that Quintile
1 secondary school learners were catered for.

An application was furthermore made to the FAO to access the Telefood Fund in support of school
gardens.

Numerous projects were initiated to improve teaching and learning in disadvantaged communities,
which are concentrated in the rural areas. With regard to the development of school infrastructure
and the Quality Improvement Development Support and Upliftment Programme (QIDS-UP), 15 503
schools benefited from the QIDS-UP initiative. The National Education Infrastructure Management
Information System (NEIMIS) is utilised to obtain school profiles, especially with regard to rural and
farm schools, to enhance decision-making

There are still challenges remaining in respect of the provision of basic services to rural schools.
A national framework for developing education in rural areas was developed, and is being refined in
consultation with the relevant stakeholders, which include the Nelson Mandela Foundation and UNICEF.



B1.

B2.

B3.

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT
THE RECAPITALISATION OF FET COLLEGES

During the 2008/09 financial year, an allocation of R795 million was made for the recapitalisation
of FET colleges, so as to ensure that these colleges would implement the NC(V) skills programmes
and learnerships in 2009. The Department recapitalised all FET colleges at a cost of R1.9 billion. FET
colleges exceeded their enrolment targets for 2008 by enrolling 62 000 new students for the three-year
NC(V).

An allocation of R67 million was made for bursaries, which were awarded to 12 378 students, in an
effort to ensure that there was financial assistance for financially needy and academically deserving
students. An efficiency study was commissioned and completed to guide the consolidation of the delivery
of the NC(V), and a draft proposal for the indicators pertaining to system performance, and to the
Further Education and Training Management Information System specifications, was completed.

TEACHER DEVELOPMENT

An amount of R180 million was allocated to the Funza Lushaka Bursary Fund during the 2008/09
financial year. More than 5 000 bursaries were allocated to higher education institutions to support
prospective teachers in national priority areas. During the 2008 academic year, an average of
R35 000.00 was awarded per bursary recipient. The Department has also started on the development a
data system to capture and manage bursary awards in the 2009 academic year, while graduates were
placed in provincial education posts during 2008.

Approximately 1 085 Funza Lushaka Bursary students graduated in 2008 and were ready for placement
in the 2009 academic year. The Continuing Professional Teacher Development (CPTD) conceptual
design was approved by HEDCOM and the CEM. Continuing professional development of teachers was
undertaken, and 2 000 teachers were registered, at 13 higher education institutions, for Mathematics,
Science and Technology Advanced Certification in Education. A total of 1 789 teachers registered for
the National Professional Diploma in Education (NPDE) at five higher education institutions, and 1 063
teachers graduated with an NPDE in 2008, ready for placement by the PEDs.

Major work was done in respect of the development of an Occupation-Specific Dispensation (OSD) for
educators, and an agreement was signed with all teacher unions during April 2008. This dispensation
was aimed at improving the remuneration packages of teachers. To increase recruitment into, and
retention of qualified and competent teachers in the system, the dispensation takes into account learner
performance, while providing for career paths for within the classroom for Senior or Master Teachers.

IMPROVING THE TEACHING OF MATHEMATICS AND SCIENCE

The initiative to improve the quality of, and participation in Mathematics and Science, started in 2002
with 102 schools being designated as Dinaledi Schools. This number has increased to 500 schools in
2008. Each of the 500 Dinaledi Schools was supported via the provision of the necessary learning and
teaching materials and, more in particular, textbooks to the value of R12 million, for every learner in
English, First Additional Language (FAL), Mathematics, Mathematical Literacy and Physical Sciences.
An additional 100 000 copies of these textbooks were distributed to schools in the nine provinces.
Supervision and support were provided to teachers in the Dinaledi Schools by subject advisors in
Mathematics and Science.

The 2008 matriculants were given intensive support in preparation for the first NCS examinations.
Support initiatives included the weekly Study Mate newspaper supplements, containing lessons and
examination examples for matriculants. The Department sought funds to sustain the 270 SENTEC
Centres with interactive television sets, specifically targeting the matriculants participating in the Second
Chance Programme.



B4.

BS.

B5.

During the 2008 academic year, some 65 000 learners enrolled for the Mathematics Olympiad and 19
000 for Science Olympiad, and 2 400 teaches in Dinaledi Schools benefited from 100 hours of training.

Enrolment figures for the 2008 academic year indicated that 55% of Grade 12 learners offering
Mathematics were female, while 57% of those offering Mathematical Literacy were female. Learners
from Dinaledi Schools constituted 7% of the total enrolment figure, and these schools produced 24%
of the high-level Mathematics passes nationally. A total of 296 821 learners sat for Mathematics in the
NCS examinations, and some 63 035 (21%) passed the subject with 50% and above. A total of 218
156 learners sat for the Physical Science NCS examinations, of whom 40 379 were enrolled at Dinaledi
Schools. A total of 30 975 learners passed the Physical Science NCS examinations and 27% of these
learners were from Dinaledi Schools.

The 500 Dinaledi Schools were closely monitored, they were provided with additional study material
and were allocated dedicated additional Mathematics and Science teachers to ensure the success of
learners.

MASS LITERACY CAMPAIGN AND FORMAL AET PROGRAMME

The system of Adult Education and Training centres across the country continued to provide a
qualification bearing the ABET programme stamp of approval, allowing adults to proceed through the
various education levels with formal requirements, including compulsory programmes in Mathematics
and languages. Regarding non-formal literacy training, the Kha Ri Gude Mass Literacy Campaign
was launched by the Minister in February 2008. The campaign was aimed at meeting the Millennium
Development Goals (MDGs), by enabling 4,7 million adults to become literate between 2008 and 2012.
This initiative has ushered new learners into the portal of learning. A total of 300 000 learners was
targeted to register for the Mass Literacy Campaign, with the launch of the Campaign in all provinces.
The target was exceeded by some 80 000 learners. A total of 20 000 volunteer educators and 200
volunteer supervisors, including 160 coordinators/monitors and 2 300 supervisors, were offered short-
term employment contracts.

A national strategy, giving expression to the Mass Literacy Campaign, was initiated via Adult Education
and Training centres. The strategy includes an assessment, as well as the determination of systems.

UNIVERSITIES AND UNIVERSITIES OF TECHNOLOGY

Enrolment at institutions of higher education reached capacity and 18% of each cohort was attending
these institutions during the period under review. An investment of R439 million had been made to
improve infrastructure and facilities, especially at the historically disadvantaged higher education
institutions. This considerable investment was made, so as to improve access to key areas of scarce
skills, such as engineering.

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY FOR SOUTH AFRICA

The draft revised Human Resources Development Strategy for South Africa was developed after
consultation with government officials at both national and provincial level. Consultations were also
conducted with the Economic and Investment Committee. The draft document was presented to a
Cabinet Lekgotla in July 2008, and was provisionally approved. The Cabinet Lekgotla gave the Minister
of Education a mandate to consult with social partners in this regard and to get it operational.

Briefing sessions and consultations were held with NEDCAC, starting in October 2008, up to January
2009. The consultation process will be finalised via JIPSA structures.



C1.

C2.

C3.

C4.

Cs.

QUALITY IMPROVEMENT

A number of projects were undertaken during the year under review, to improve the provision of
education to communities, as will be outlined below.

EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT

The Department focused on ensuring increased access to Grade R for all 5-year-olds. At the beginning
of 2009, some 700 000 learners were registered at public and independent schools, and at community
centres. Material to guide the development of young children was developed for pre-Grade R learners.

An investigation was undertaken to develop systems for the piloting of the General Education Certificate,
and to stage an advocacy campaign, aimed at teachers, learners and parents. An evaluation of the
implementation of the NCS in the Intermediate Phase indicated that it was on a continuum from very
weak to excellent. However, the report in question indicated that many teachers required training and
support with a view to effective curriculum delivery.

Bags and reading books were distributed to 6 750 Grades R and 1 learners in the Free State and the
Eastern Cape, as part of the “Drop All and Read Campaign”. A total of 2.5 million lthuba books in all
11 languages were delivered to 2 000 schools, as reading material for Intermediate Phase learners.
Braille and large-print lthuba books, as well as audio tapes of the books were supplied to all schools
designated for the blind.

INCLUSIVE EDUCATION

An investigation was conducted into the utilisation of funding provided for the implementation of
inclusive education. The investigation indicated that some provinces had done excellent work in the
upgrading of special schools, the provision of learner transport and the purchase of relevant resources.

A tender was awarded for the procurement and distribution of assistive devices to cater for learners with
disabilities. Environmental access has thus far been provided to 12 full-service schools.

FOUNDATIONS FOR LEARNING CAMPAIGN

The Minister launched the Foundations for Learning Campaign, aimed at the improvement of literacy
and numeracy, during March 2008. The campaign was introduced during May 2008 to schools offering
Grades 1 to 6, with a view to improving literacy and numeracy outcomes for the identified grades in all
schools. In June 2008, assessment frameworks for the Foundation and Intermediate Phases were sent
to schools, covering the entire curriculum, so as to guide teachers with regard to quarterly assessments,
by providing clear indicators of areas covered in the annual assessments.

SYSTEMIC EVALUATION

The Department prioritised the expansion and strengthening of systematic evaluation. The early-grade
reading assessment instruments were printed in all 11 languages, and distributed to selected schools,
as part of the Reading Toolkits for teachers.

WHOLE-SCHOOL EVALUATION

A school evaluation guide was distributed to schools in February 2009, and school Management Teams
were trained in using the guide. A generic School Improvement Plan (SIP) was developed to guide
schools on the information to be included in the SIP. Schools that were evaluated in 2007, formed part
of the plan, so as to ensure that they addressed areas which required improvement. Newly appointed
supervisors were trained on how to evaluate schools in all provinces in terms of the of the Whole School
Evaluation Policy.



ET.

E2.

HEALTH EDUCATION

Life Skills Programme constitute part of the curriculum implemented in schools. Much work was done
in respect of the promotion of health in education, mainly revolving around HIV and Aids, as well as
drug and substance abuse in education institutions. The Department provided support to learners and
communities affected by, and infected with HIV/Aids, as well with regard to other health challenges. The
DoE collaborated with other government departments to develop a Framework on Health and Wellness
Programme for all levels of the education system. Families/households headed by children received
support via the provision of social grants and food parcels. The Department also provided support to
higher education institutions students via the Higher Education Aids Initiative.

INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Much has been accomplished during the first decade of education provisioning under the current system,
as will be outlined below. Government’s commitment in this regard was evidenced by a substantial
increase in resource allocation for school infrastructure from R500 million in 1995/96 to R4.95 billion
during the 2008/09 financial year. A National Electronic Infrastructure Management system (NEIMS)
was compiled, containing records and pictures of the condition of all schools in the system. The policy
gap in dealing with norms and standards pertaining to infrastructure was rectified by the publication of
the National Policy for the Equitable Provision of an Enabling School, Physical Teaching and Learning
Environment, in the Government Gazette during November 2008. School infrastructure was funded
from provincial budgets and by donor funding from the European Union (EU), supported by the
School Infrastructure Support Programme (SISP). During the period under review, high-quality school
infrastructure facilities were provided via this initiative, at 21 sites in three provinces.

DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT

The crucial role played by district-level management and governance was recognised, as well as the fact
that it needed to be strengthened. A draft policy document was developed on the organisation, roles
and responsibilities of districts, as the level closest to the point of service delivery, namely schools. The
harmonisation of structures across all nine provinces, including the job descriptions and responsibilities
of office-based district officials, was endeavoured as part of the draft policy document.

FET COLLEGES

The Department conducted a desk-top audit of Student Support Services (SSS) and a framework was
developed, in which eight colleges were identified as centres for the pilot project. Pamphlets were
printed on the availability of bursaries for studies at FET colleges, and distributed. Advertisements were
placed in the print media for college bursaries for the 2008 academic year.

Levels 3 and 4 programme documents were finalised and posted onto the DoE website, as well as on
the Thutong portal. The Department and the ISETT Seta provided training to FET college lecturers. A
Financial Task Team was established to assess the impact of the norms and standards on the colleges,
and to render advice in the event of extra funding being required to bridge the shift from N to NC(V). In
order to regulate private institutions that offer full qualifications in the FET Band, the National Register
of Private FET College was published. Forms and guidelines were also published in the Government
Gazette. This matter received wide radio coverage by means of radio interviews on two regional SABC
radio stations, as well as via five community radio stations.



E3.

HIGHER EDUCATION INSTITUTIONS

Much of the work within higher education revolves around supporting HEls with setting up systems,

including:

. Improving regulatory support, particularly with respect to the institutions’ statutes; the registration
of private institutions; and the framework for programmes and qualifications.

*  Academic and research support, particularly with regard to the development of policy for teaching
development grants and the enhancement of research output.

e Support to institutional structures, councils and other constituencies, as well as the management of
HIV and Aids.

The Department of Education participated in several meetings on the continent, including:

*  The South Africa/Nigeria BNC was held in Abuja, Nigeria, from 19 to 23 May 2008.

. The South Africa/DRC BNC was held in Kinshasa, Nairobi, from 27 to 29 October 2008.

*  The South Africa/Nigeria Special Implementation Committee meeting was held in Pretoria, South
Africa, from 5 to 6 November 2008.

*  The South Africa/Rwanda JCC was held from 24 to 25 March 2009.

Reports on the above activities were submitted to both the Minister of Education and the Department
of Foreign Affairs. The Department participated in the ADEA Conference, held in Mozambique from
5 to 9 May 2008. The Deputy Minister of Education and departmental officials attended the SADC
Conference of Education Ministers in Lusaka, Zambia from 1 to 5 July 2008. South Africa hosted the
SADC Secondary Schools Essay Competition

The Minister of Education and the Director-General attended the COMEDAF Bureau and Steering
Committee meeting, held in Addis Ababa from 18 to 20 November 2008. The Department of Education
seconded an official to the NEPAD Secretariat, to assist with preparations for the NEPAD Conference on
Education and Culture, scheduled to take place during 2009.

In order to strengthen its outreach initiatives, the Department hosted a delegation from Eritrea from
12 to 16 May 2008. The Irene Primary School hosted a group of students from Mali from 16 to 26
May 2008. These were efforts to strengthen the bilateral relations between the Department and these
African countries. Senior officials from Ghana were hosted by the Department from 1 to 3 September
2008. The Deputy Minister and departmental officials attended a preparatory regional conference in
Cameroon from 16 to 19 September 2008. The Namibian Minister of Higher Education was hosted on
16 September 2008, and a South African delegation visited Swaziland examination centres from 22
to 23 September 2008. Agreements were signed between the Department of Education and Burundi,
South Sudan and Rwanda.

The Department participated in the followings activities beyond the African Continent:

*  The South Africa/USA annual consultations on 8 May 2008.
*  The South Africa/USA bilateral consultations on 15 May 2008.
. The South Africa/Russia ITEC, held in St Lucia on 11 December 2008.

The Department facilitated the despatch of Indian experts to South Africa to render advice on district
development issues. A familiarisation visit by Vietnamese officials was hosted by the Department in
November 2008, to consider best practises and challenges in education.



The Department integrated and coordinated numerous UNESCO activities in South Africa during the period
under review. Five ASPnet schools honoured the International Day for the Remembrance of the Slave Trade and
its Abolition at the Iziko Museum in Cape Town. The UNESCO Prize for Peace Education was awarded to the
Institute for Justice and Reconciliation and the UNESCO Confucius Prize for Literacy was awarded to Operation
Upgrade from KwaZulu-Natal.

During the period under review, South Africa won the following UNESCO awards: The UNESCO Prize for
Peace Education; the UNESCO Literacy Prize; the UNESCO L' Oreal Fellowship Programme for Young Women in
Science; and the 'Oreal Award for Women in Science.

All scheduled full NATCOM meetings were held, including sector committee meetings. Inputs to the 35C5
General Conference 2009 were discussed and distributed to stakeholders. New chairpersons and deputies
were elected onto the Science and Communication Sector Committees. The first national commission meeting
was held in January 2009, and reports were disseminated to all stakeholders. The UNESCO Chair on Teacher
Education was established at the University of the Witwatersrand. The University of Pretoria submitted a proposal
to establish a UNESCO Chair and UNITWIN Network on Education Law, and this proposal is being considered
by UNESCO.



The Chief Directorate: International Relations reports on the following Strategic Objectives:

1.

To strengthen South Africa’s solidarity and leadership in education in Africa via bilateral,
multilateral and outreach initiatives

>

Reports on Joint Bilateral Commissions serviced

The SA/DRC BNC that was held in South Africa from 31 March to 3 April 2008. The Guinea
JCC was held in Conakry, Guinea, from 24 to 25 June 2008. The Department of Education
was represented at the SA/Nigeria BNC, held in Abuja, Nigeria, from 19 to 23 May 2008. The
Department was represented at the SA/DRC BNC meeting that was held in Kinshasa from 27 to 29
October 2008, and at the SA/Nigeria Special Implementation Committee that was held in Pretoria
from 5 to 6 November 2008. The SA/Rwanda JCC was held from 24 to 25 March 2009. Reports
on the above activities have been submitted to the Minister and the Department of Foreign Affairs,
and are lodged with the Chief Directorate.

Reports on multilateral meetings/forums/technical committees/working groups of the
SADC, the AU and NEPAD

The Chief Directorate reported on its participation in the ADEA conference, held in Mozambique
from 5 to 9 May 2008. A report was also submitted on South Africa’s participation in the SADC
Integrated Committee of Ministers meeting, held in Swaziland from 17 to 20 June 2008. The Deputy
Minister and DoE officials attended the SADC Conference of Ministers of Education, held in Lusaka,
Zambia, from 1 to 5 July 2008, and a report has been tabled in this regard. The Department of
Education hosted the SADC Secondary Schools Essay Competition. The winners attended the SADC
Summit, which was held from 15 to 17 August 2008, to receive their prizes. The Minister and
Director-General attended the ADEA Bureau and Steering Committee meeting, held in Tunisia from
21 to 23 October 2008, and a report has been tabled in this regard. The Department participated
in a workshop, convened by ADEA, for the Working Group Coordinators, which was held in Tunis
from 2 to 6 March 2009. Reports on the above activities have been submitted to the Minister and
the Department of Foreign Affairs, and are also lodged with the Chief Directorate.

Report on the implementation of the AU Action Plans for the AU Second Decade of
Education

A report on the implementation of the AU Second Decade Plan of Action was compiled for the
SADC Conference of Education Ministers meeting, held in Lusaka, Zambia, from 30 June to 5 July
2008. A progress report was tabled on the implementation of the Second Decade of Education
Plan of Action, and the Department is on target in meeting its commitments. The Department of
Education facilitated the ADEA Secretariat’s participation in an EFA high-level meeting, held in
Norway during December 2008, in order to work with AU countries in meeting their targets. The
Department was represented at the Restricted Technical Workshop on Performance Indicators of the
Second Decade of Education Plan of Action, which was held in Senegal from 4 to 6 March 2009,
and at the AU Pan-African Conference on Literacy, Curriculum and Book Sector Development in
Africa, which was held in Tanzania from 24 to 27 March 2009. Reports on the Action Plans have
been submitted to both the DoE and the AU.



Reports on cooperation with the African Union and NEPAD Secretariat

The Chief Directorate reported on the COMEDAF Steering Committee and Bureau meeting, which
was held in Ethiopia from 31 March to 3 April 2008. The Director-General chaired the Steering
Committee and the Minister chaired the Bureau of Ministers meeting. The Minister and the Director-
General attended and chaired the COMEDAF Bureau and Steering Committee meeting, which was
held in Addis Ababa from 18 to 20 November 2008. Processes are in place to support NEPAD in
hosting a National Conference on Education and Culture, which is scheduled take place during the
latter half of 2009. An official in the Chief Directorate has been seconded to the NEPAD Secretariat
to assist with preparations for this conference.

Reports on visits to, and the hosting of priority countries, to develop the framework for
the implementation of the outreach initiatives

A report on the Department’s visit to South Sudan from 3 to 4 April 2008, and to Burundi from 7
to 8 April 2008, was submitted to the Minister. The Department hosted a delegation from Eritrea
from 12 to 16 May 2008, and the Irene Primary School hosted a group of students from Mali
from 16 to 26 May 2008. Reports have been tabled in this regard. Bilateral relations with these
countries were strengthened. The Department hosted a delegation of senior officials from Ghana
on a familiarisation visit from 1 to 3 September 2008. A report has been tabled in this regard. A
report on the Partnership Conference, to engage donors and solicit funds for projects in Kinshasa
in the DRC, held from 29 to 31 July 2008, and which was attended by departmental officials, has
been tabled. The Chief Directorate reported on the attendance by the Deputy Minister and DoE
officials of a regional conference in preparation of the 48th International Conference on Education
(ICE), held in Cameroon from 16 to 19 September 2008. They also met with their counterparts
in Cameroon to discuss further co-operation. The Department furthermore hosted a visit by the
Namibian Minister of Higher Education, which took place on 16 September 2008, and reports in
this regard have been submitted. Agreements between the Department and Burundi, South Sudan
and Rwanda are being processed via the appropriate legal channels. A Department of Education
delegation visited Swaziland from 22 to 23 September 2008, to assess a matriculation examination
centre.

2, To develop and maintain bilateral and multilateral programmes with countries from the
Middle-East

>

Report on the number of visits to, and the hosting of countries to develop and maintain
bilateral and multilateral programmes, and sign cooperation agreements

The Syrian and Oman agreements were finalised and are now ready for signature. A visit by the
Syrian Minister of Education, scheduled to take place from 17 to 20 August 2008, was postponed
due to unforeseen circumstances. A report on the Department’s hosting of the Palestinian Minister
of Education and her delegation from 6 to 10 October 2008, has been submitted. The Chief
Directorate also reported on the meeting between the Iranian Embassy and the Ministry to review
progress on the Tenth SA/Iran JCC. The Department furthermore hosted a Saudi official on 7
November 2008, to share information on the South African Qualifications Framework, an a report
has been tabled in this regard.



Report on the establishment of a Middle-Eastern Studies Programme at an identified
university

Officials from the Department visited Syria from 1 to 4 May 2008, to begin discussions on a Middle-
Eastern Studies Programme. Following this visit, a report was submitted to the Minister, with a draft
proposal on how the programme should unfold. A meeting has subsequently been convened to
discuss the way forward, resulting in consultants developing a brief concept note, explaining the
importance and scope of establishing a Middle-Eastern Studies Programme in South Africa. The
Minister wrote to the University of Cape Town, requesting the University to host the programme,
and to MTN with regard to a possible sponsorship. A proposal was developed with a fully costed
budget, amounting to approximately R7.3 million over a five-year period. UCT has agreed to host
the programme. Discussions with MTN to sponsor the programme are ongoing.

3. To develop and maintain bilateral, multilateral and outreach programmes

>

The number of Development Cooperation Agreements negotiated, signed and serviced

The Department participated in the SA/USA Annual Consultations on 8 May 2008, and in the SA/
USA Bilateral Forum on 15 May 2008. The Chief Directorate facilitated the drafting of the Strategic
Objective Agreement Grant (SOAG). The Department facilitated the amendment of the SOAG
with the USA, which has subsequently been signed by the Minister. The Department submitted
input for South Africa’s Universal Periodic Review Report on Human Rights to the UN Human
Rights Council, at a meeting held in Geneva on 15 April 2008. A follow-up report, containing
recommendations on South Africa’s Universal Periodic Review Report, was tabled on 11 June
2008. The Department facilitated the initial civil society response to the OECD report on the South
African education system, in preparation for the launch, by coordinating a round-table discussion
with experts on 1 September 2008. The Department also coordinated the public seminar for the
release of the OECD Report, held on 6 October 2008. The Department participated in the SA-EU
Annual Consultations on 16 October 2008. The Department coordinated the ceremonial hand-
over of the School Infrastructure Support Programme, funded by the EU, in Limpopo on 17 October
2008. The Department furthermore participated in the SA-EU Joint Cooperation Council on 3
and 4 November 2008, and in the Nordic Annual Consultations, which took place from 13 to 14
November 2008.

The number of Joint Bilateral/Binational Commissions/Forums serviced

The Department participated in the South Africa-Russia ITEC, held at St Lucia on 11 December
2008. The DoE is currently facilitating negotiations between stakeholders to secure sector-wide
consensus with regard to the mutual recognition of medical qualifications between South Africa
and Russia. The Department facilitated the amendment process and the signing of Amendment No.
3 of the SOAG Agreement with USAID. A high-level delegation, led by the Minister, embarked on
a familiarisation visit to Finland, to explore new areas of cooperation. They also visited Norway to
participate in the Eight EFA high-level meeting, held in December 2008. The high-level meeting on
EFA adopted the Oslo Declaration, which calls for increased financial commitment to developmental
needs by donor countries. The Department facilitated amendments to the draft German ARBITUR/
NSC Agreement, that was referred to the Presidency, seeking presidential authorisation for the
Minister to sign the Agreement before 22 April 2009.

Following a visit to South Africa by a Flemish parliamentary delegation in March 2008, the
Department is holding discussions with Flanders on a new dispensation of collaboration. Via the
JIPSA Programme, the Department secured €300,000 in development funding from Ireland, to be
used by the FET Branch for the training of Mathematics and Science Educators in Dinaledi Schools
in the Free State.



A meeting between the Minister and the French Minister of Education took place at the International
Conference on Education, held in Geneva during November 2008. Discussions centred mainly
around collaboration in education, South Africa’s readiness for the 2010 Soccer World Cup, the
constructive role that French, as a tourist language, could play, as well as the French-South Africa
Craduate School in Electronic and Electrical Engineering (F’'satie). Collaboration in automotive
engineering is evidenced by the operations of F'satie, located at Tshwane University of Technology.

The Belarusians had put forward a proposal for a Ministry-to-Ministry Agreement between the
two countries. They were informed that South African law only provided for Government-to-
Government Agreements. A response from the Belarusian side is being awaited. The current cycle
of collaboration with Sweden on developmental support, has ended. Discussions about possible
future cooperation, and more in particular in the area of trilateral arrangements, are ongoing.

4. To forge greater collaboration in education between South Africa and countries from the
South

>

The number of Development Cooperation Agreements, between South Africa and
countries from the South, are in the process of being signed and serviced

The Department facilitated the dispatch of Indian experts to South Africa, to advise the DoE on
district development. India has since requested a delay in the departure of its representatives.
The Department convened a meeting with the Indian High Commissioner on the recruitment of
Mathematics and Science teachers, as well as rural education experts. The Indian side has since
requested a delay on both district development and rural education. The Department is concerned
about this delay, and is following the matter up with the Indian Ministry of Education. India
postponed the meeting, scheduled for February 2009, on the establishment of a Joint Management
Committee that would oversee the implementation of a signed MoU. All the processes are in
place for the implementation of the plan for the transfer of skills from India. However, the delays
on the Indian side means that this issue has not yet been settled.

The Department hosted a familiarisation visit of Vietnamese officials during November 2008, to
look at best practices and challenges pertaining to their respective systems. Negotiations with
various embassies for the recruitment of Mathematics and Science educators are ongoing. The
DoE has appointed a service provider to recruit teachers globally. Negotiations were held with
the Embassies of Uganda, Kenya, India and the Netherlands. Information packs on recruitment
were dispatched. Follow-up negotiations with the Kenyan, Indian, Egyptian and Nigerian High
Commissions on the recruitment of Mathematics and Science teachers, have taken place. All
governments concerned have undertaken to assist the Department and are ready to support
initiatives, aimed at recruiting teachers from their countries.

A meeting with the Chinese Ministry of Education was held to review the work of the Centre for
Chinese Studies. The Centre facilitates recruitment of South African learners to study in China
on government scholarships. It supported the Department of Foreign Affairs on the 10-year
celebrations programme, held in July 2008, and facilitated a meeting in March 2009 between
South African and Chinese academics on aid to Africa, pertaining to the advocacy of, and research
work on China.



The number of Joint Bilateral Commissions serviced

An academic seminar, in celebration of 10 years of diplomatic relations with China, has been
postponed to 2009. China and South Africa agreed to upgrade four existing FET colleges. China
is to send a technical team to South African in 2009, to do feasibility studies on the refurbishment
of FET colleges. The Department two officials to study for master’s degrees in China, on a once-
off scholarship offer. The Department also sent three students to China on the existing SA-China
Government Scholarship Programme.

The Department of Justice and Constitutional Development and the Department of Foreign Affairs
approved a draft Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with Brazil. South Africa and Brazil are
scheduled to sign in 2009, because neither the South African nor the Brazilian Minister could make
the planned trip to India to sign during October 2008. South Africa and Malaysia are reviewing a
draft agreement for possible signature in 2009. A successful bilateral meeting was held with the
Indian Minister of Education to review the implementation of the agreement.

Trilateral Commissions serviced

The Department met all its commitments regarding IBSA activities and meetings in Somerset West
in May 2008, in Brazil in August 2008, and in India in October 2008. Three education focal
point meetings were held outside of these meetings. The South African and Brazilian Ministers of
Education could not attend the Third IBSA Summit in India, held in October 2008. The Heads of
State approved the plans of action as proposed by the IBSA working groups. Reports were tabled
at the Commission meeting on the functioning of the academic programme.

An academic seminar took place in Brazil from 13 to 15 August 2008, with 11 South African
academics and two DoE officials in attendance. The academics presented papers at the seminar.
A report on the outcomes was presented at the Third IBSA Summit, held on 15 October 2008. The
Department provides ongoing support to South African academics in the context of IBSA. Short
visits by academics took place between the respective institutions, but not all project areas could be
accommodated, due to limited funds.

Nine projects were identified at the Academic Seminar, held in Brozil, with regard to the
implementation of the IBSA MoU programme on higher education. All three IBSA academics are
ready to roll out their projects in 2009. Concerns were raised by South Africa that funds might not
meet the expected expenditure, since the academics would have to meet their counterparts in both
Brazil and India. The Department will seek additional funding for the academics’ involvement in
these projects. The Department will run with two of the nine projects, but encourage the academics
to be involved in the remaining seven. Negotiations with institutions are ongoing. Discussions
between the Department’s Indian and Brazilian counterparts were delayed, as difficulties were
experienced with their availability for a teleconference.

5. To effectively integrate and coordinate UNESCO activities in South Africa that include
other government departments, and to cooperate with civil society organisations

>

Report on the review of the UNESCO Commission’s strategy at national, sub-regional
and regional level

The meeting was held during May 2008. The chairperson of the National Commission, the member
on the UNESCO Executive Board, as well as the delegates who attended the various commission
meetings during the General Conference, reported on the decisions and activities.



Monitoring of, and reporting on the progress of the integration and coordination of
UNESCO programme declarations and conventions at government and civil society
level

A request was submitted to the Department of Social Development (DSD), requesting that it took
the lead in establishing an SHS sector. Negotiations to establish the SHS sector in the National
Commission are at an advanced stage, with the Department of Social Development looking at a
date when the two Ministers could launch the Sector — possibly at a press conference. Representatives
of the SHS come from the DSD.

The communication sector and the education sector jointly arranged an event for Press Freedom
Day, where a local community radio station cooperated with some ASPnet schools to highlight the
day and its meaning. Seven participation programme applications were forwarded to UNESCO,
Paris, for consideration. The L'Oreal Women in Science Award and the Literacy Prize for Peace
Education nominations were sent to Paris for consideration. Questionnaires on DESD and UNLD,
and an outline of programme activities that the DoE is engaging in to link up with the 60th
celebration to commemorate the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, were submitted to Paris.
Five ASPnet schools celebrated International Day for the Remembrance of the Slave Trade and its
Abolition, at the Iziko Museum in Cape Town. An UNESCO Prize for Peace Education was awarded
to the Institute for Justice and Reconciliation. KwaZulu-Natal’s Operation Upgrade was awarded
the UNESCO Confucius Prize for Literacy.

The UNESCO/Keizo Obuchi research fellowship application forms were dispatched to various
tertiary institutions. In September 2008, the DoE nominated the Thutong Education Portal for the
UNESCO King Hamad Bin Isa Al Khalifa Prize for the use of ICTs in Education. The Department
submitted a request for nomination to GCIS for the World Press Freedom Prize 2009. Material on
Human Rights Education was submitted to UNESCO in Paris during the 60th celebration of the
Universal Declaration of Human Rights. South Africa won the UNESCO Prize for Peace Education,
the UNESCO Literacy Prize, and was awarded a UNESCO L'Oreal Fellowship Programme for
Young Women in Science and the L'Oreal Award for Women in Science.

NATCOM convened a strategic planning meeting, which resulted in the establishment of an
Intergovernmental Working Group (IWG), which is in the process of developing a plan for South
Africa’s engagement with UNESCO. The IWG met on several occasions during the period under
review, with the last meeting being held on 25 February 2009. The Terms of Reference for the IWG
was adopted and subsequently dispatched to all Directors-General of UNESCO’s competency
departments. The summary of decisions taken at the 180th session of the UNESCO Executive Board
was sent to government departments, with a view to obtain inputs for the 181st session, schedule to
take place during April 2009. A database on all UNESCO stakeholders was completed.

The IWG was established to ensure alignment with, and cooperation in UNESCO activities to
decide on priorities. The IWG met three times during the period under review. Scheduled meetings
of the full NATCOM were also held. All sector committee meetings have taken place to date, and
inputs to the 35C5 General Conference 2009 document were discussed and disseminated to all
stakeholders. In February and March 2009, all sector committees met to discuss plans for the
second year of the current biennium. New chairpersons and deputy chairpersons were elected
for the Science and Communications Sector Committees. The first National Commission meeting
for 2009 was held on 28 January. Reports on all activities were disseminated. An Education for
All (EFA) Stakeholders meeting was held at the University of the Witwatersrand in November
2008, to discuss progress made towards achieving the EFA goals A UNESCO Chair on Teacher
Education was established at the University. The University of Pretoria submitted a proposal for the
establishment of a UNESCO Chair and a UNITWIN Network on Education Law, which are being
considered by UNESCO.



1) Highlights and achievements

The branch continued to perform above expectations during this quarter and this financial year. A number of
key initiatives were completed. The National Norms and Standards for School Infrastructure were approved by
the Council of Education Ministers (CEM) for public comment. The National Education Information Management
Systems (NEIMS) is about to be operationalised.

Amendments were approved in the National Norms and Standards for School Funding, with regard to
independent schools. The target of 60% of learners in no-fee schools was achieved. The Minister of Finance
approved the funding norms for FET colleges.

In spite of government funding constraints, the education system bids with regard to Grade R and other facilities,
such as libraries, laboratories, sport and security infrastructure, were approved, additional funds were made
available for reducing learner:educator ratios in poor schools, and the number of learners in no-fee schools
were increased.

The teacher lap-top initiative is about to be finalised and the post-provisioning model was successfully piloted.
The Ministerial Committee on the Establishment of the National Education Evaluation Committee completed its
report, and additional funds were allocated to begin start with its establishment.

The Human Resources Development Strategy for South Africa was approved by Cabinet. EMIS is continually
improving the quality of data collections and the Learner Unit Record Information Tracking System is on track.
Considerable progress was achieved in the finalisation of a learner attendance policy and system.

Legal services continued to provide a commendable service, both in terms of legal and legislative matters.

2) Challenges

The provision of information by the provinces continued to pose a challenge. In spite of successful education
bids being announced in the Medium-term Budget Policy Statement, provincial governments failed to honour the
Policy Statement in full and funds were not allocated for the identified priorities.

3) Significant developments affecting the work of the Directorate

The approval of the HRD-SA, as well as the Report of the Ministerial Committee on NEEDU, will have significant
impact on the structure of the Directorate.

4) Policy developments and legislative changes

*  Policy and norms and standards for school infrastructure are to be published after concurrence by the
Minister of Finance

*  Amendments to the EMIS Policy

*  Amendments to, and a review of school funding

. Legislation with regard to the NEEDU

*  Learner attendance recording and monitoring and evaluation policy

*  The Education Laws Amendment Bill



CHIEF DIRECTORATE: FINANCIAL AND PHYSICAL PLANNING AND ANALYSIS
1. DIRECTORATE: PHYSICAL PLANNING
1) Highlights and achievements

The update of NEIMS via information received from the provinces has commenced. DoE staff members were
also trained in writing queries directly from the database. Training of physical planners on the assessment of
schools, with a view to the update, took place in Gauteng, the Free State, North West and the Northern Cape
during December 2008, and in Mpumalanga and the Western Cape during January 2009. The Service Level
Agreement with SITA, as well as the Project Charter for Phase Il of NEIMS, was signed with SITA in January 2009,
and work on matters identified in the Charter has commenced. The URS was signed and the SDS was completed
and is ready for signature. Provincial departments were given access to the server hosted at SITA, and officials
from the Directorate were trained to use Business Objects. The SITA certification process was concluded. The
process to have NEIMS on the DoE website was started, it is ongoing and a range of reports are now being
generated from NEIMS. All the provinces were linked to the NEIMS database and could therefore use the
database for planning and reporting purposes.

The European Commission Funded Schools Infrastructure Support Programme, aimed at rehabilitating 27
schools in three targeted provinces, namely Limpopo, KwaZulu-Natal and the Eastern Cape, was successfully
completed and the programme ended in February 2009. A hand-over ceremony was held at the Sefoko Primary
School in Limpopo on 17 October 2008. Capacity development of SGBs and SMTs on the maintenance of
facilities was concluded, and the Short-term Expert for Facilities Management System submitted his report and it
was discussed at the HEDCOM subcommittee meeting of 26 February 2009.

The launch of the Arcellor Mittal project was successfully conducted by the Minister of Education on 2 February
2009, and the contractor for Meetse a Bophelo Primary was appointed on 15 March 2009. Planning for two
schools in the eastern Cape, to be built in 2009, has commenced.

A total of R2.7 billion was allocated by the Minister of Finance for capacity, maintenance and infrastructure
provision. This allocation will also be used for the eradication of unsuitable structures. A technical committee,
comprising representative from the DPW and the National Treasury was established to monitor progress in
this regard, and is meeting once a month. A total of 164 schools benefited from this programme during the
2008/09 financial year.

2) Challenges
Information provision by provinces with regard to school infrastructure still posed a challenge.
3) Policy developments and legislative changes

The Infrastructure Policy was approved by the CEM on 02 June 2008, and the Norms and Standards were
approved on 6 October 2008. The Policy and the Norms has subsequently been approved by Cabinet, and
published in the Government Gazette for public comment on 21 November 2008. Work on delivery capacity to
accelerate the delivery of school infrastructure, based on work done by IDIP Organisational Design, as well as
the preliminary costing on backlogs, estimated at R216 billion, was approved by the CEM on 6 October 2008
and by Cabinet on 3 December 2008. Meetings were held with the National Treasury to discuss the Long-term
School Infrastructure Development and Financing Strategy.



2. DIRECTORATE: FINANCIAL PLANNING
1) Highlights and achievements

The list of provincial no-fee schools, and the proportion of no-fee learners for 2009, were published in October
2008, when the Minister declared 40% of poor learners nationally to attend no-fee schools in 2009. As a result
of some provinces being able to extend the no-fee status beyond the declared proportion (40%), there are about
60% of learners (i.e. 7 712 849 learners, including learners in provincial voluntary Quintile 3 no-fee schools),
attending 64% of no-fee schools (i.e. 17 194 schools, including voluntary no-fee schools), in terms of the South
African Schools Act. Funds to extend the no-fee status to more schools, and to compensate schools in Quintiles
4 and 5 in 2010 for fee exemptions granted to poor learners, were made available in the 2008 MTBPS.

As a follow-up to the telephone survey conducted during May 2007, a visit to the schools took place during
October 2008. A report was compiled on the situation of no-fee schools, identified problem areas and follow-up
activities, and presented to the Minister in December 2009.

Work commenced on the assessment of 100 schools with regard to the implementation of School Funding
Norms and Standards, as well as to establish a long-term monitoring framework and strategy. The service
provider was appointed in November 2008, and the final report will be completed in September 2009.

The following amendments to the School Funding Norms were published during 2008/09:

i. Regulations on the dates of transfer of allocations to schools by PEDs.

ii. Regulating subsidies for independent schools, introducing a requirement for learner achievement
in primary schools for subsidy purposes.

1. A change of date for categorising independent schools that are eligible for subsidies.

The implementation plan for ABET and Grade R Funding Norms was approved by HEDCOM in March 2009.
The Minister published the Funding Norms for FET Colleges on 16 March 2009, after concurrence by the
Minister of Finance. HEDCOM approved the implementation plan during March 2009.

2) Challenges

A Methodology for Costing a Basic Minimum Package for Schooling could not be developed, due to the high
prices from bidders, which exceeded the available funds. This issue is being reviewed and work will commence
sometime during 2009.

The Funding Norms for Inclusive Education and Special Schools were not developed, as extensive work on policy
matters regarding the level of need for inclusiveness, still has to be finalised.

3) Policy developments and legislative changes

A general review of the school funding policies is ongoing. On 23 February 2009, the CEM approved the
broad thrust of the proposed amendments and recommended further work on the matter. A survey of Quintile
3 to 5 schools on fee levels is in the process of being conducted. Upon completion of the survey, a draft policy
on the compensation of schools for exempting poor learners from paying school fees will be developed. The
funding principles for focus schools were developed. The proposed amendments to the School Funding Normes,
pertaining to awards to schools that perform well, was approved by the CEM and forwarded to the Minister of
Finance for concurrence.



3. DIRECTORATE: ECONOMIC ANALYSIS
1) Highlights and achievements

Areport on the assessment of economic credibility and policy compliance of the Provincial Education Departments’
Annual Performance Plans (APPs) for 2008/09 was compiled and sent to the heads of education departments in
December 2008. The report is expected to assist PEDs in compiling their 2009/10 APPs.

The Directorate participated in the first-quarter and mid-year PEDs performance reviews and feedback from
officials of the Directorate was incorporated into the report to the Minister of Education. The Directorate: Economic
Analysis successfully participated in the Budget Standard Exercise, and a report was compiled and submitted to
the Minister of Education for noting on the preliminary allocations for the 2009 MTEF, as well as on the funding
of priorities. The priorities roadmap was used as a guideline for an optimal budgeting process within the DoE.
This facilitated the success of the education priority process, with regard to, inter alia, the METC and 10 X 10.

The annual sector priorities process was successfully , with education sector bids receiving support in the Medium-
term Budget Policy Statements, as well as in national and provincial baseline increases. Although funding will
only flow as from the 2010/11 financial year, PEDs have already been provided with targets in terms of how
the additional funds should be spent, and this should ensure accountability for, and control of the additions to
baselines from the 200/11 MTEF

The 2007/08, a UNESCO report was compiled, and is en route to the Director-General’s office for finalisation
and submission to UNESCO.

Letters were written to PEDs and the National Treasury, alerting them to the discrepancies on the “off which items”
in the 2008/09 budget statements. However, this matter still seems to pose a challenge to the education sector.

2) Challenges

The Education Investment Review and the finalisation of the education financing tool have not yet completed,
due to a past lack of capacity within the Directorate. However, the Directorate is now on track to ensure the
completion of these projects, since it now has a full staff establishment.

CHIEF DIRECTORATE: INFORMATION MONITORING AND EVALUATION
1. DIRECTORATE: EDUCATION MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS
1) Highlights and achievements

1.1. SA-SAMS was rolled out to 10 000 schools and the active usage of SA-SAMS has been increased to
approximately 5 000 schools. Active usage is measured in terms of the number schools that are able to
submit data from SA-SAMS and/or print learner reports from SA-SAMS. New modules, such as the IQMS
module for educator performance, the SIAS module for the evaluation of SNE learners, and a library
module were added.

1.2. The development of the Learner Unit Record Information and Tracking System (LURITS) system was
completed, the testing phase was successfully concluded and the system was launched by the Minister in
September 2008. Provinces have commenced loading data onto the system. LURITS administrators were
also contracted and trained to manage the system at provincial level.

1.3. A collaborative partnership was formed with the GITO office, by establishing a centralised DoE Virtual
Private Network (VPN) at SITA for all the systems that comply to the required hosting and support service
level agreements made with SITA. It is the first time that all DoE systems have been housed together in a
central, secure environment.

1.4. There was an increase in the number of electronic data capture tools developed for DoE directorates, and
the EMIS data capture tools were improved.



2) Challenges

2.1. The lack of capacity at provincial level in EMIS units to support both SA-SAMS and the LURITS implementation,
remains a challenge. DoE contracted the services of 15 LURITS administrators to assist the provinces in this
regard of which three are in the Eastern Cape, three in KwaZulu-Natal, two in Limpopo and one each in
the other provinces and at national level.

2.2. The lack of IT infrastructure and, more in particularly, connectivity, posed a major challenge to the
LURITS project. The ITC feasibility study will assist with the provision of computers to some schools during
2009/2010, and the DoE will assist schools with paper systems to load data onto LURITS via a scanning
procedure.

3) Significant developments affecting the work of the Directorate
During the period under review, there were not significant developments that affected the Directorate’s work.
4) Policy developments and legislative changes

No policy developments and legislative changes, applicable to the Directorate, took place during the period
under review.

2. DIRECTORATE: NATIONAL HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT
1) Highlights and achievements

Approval of the Revised Human Resources Development Strategy for South Africa (HRD-SA)
2010-2030

The draft Revised HRD-SA was developed via an extensive consultation process with officials from various
departments and provinces, by the Skills Focus Group’s NHRD Task Team, as well as the Economic Cluster’s Skills
Focus Group. Consultations also took place with the Economic and Social Clusters, FOSAD and the Economic
and Investment Committee. The draft Revised HRD-SA was presented at the July 2008 Cabinet Lekgotla, where
the Strategy was preliminary approved and the Minister was mandated to consult with social partners, as well
as to operationalise the Strategy.

A number of briefings and consultations took place with relevant stakeholders, including NEDLAC constituencies.
Briefings with NEDLAC started on the 22 October 2008 and it were completed on 22 January 2009, when it
was agreed that the consultation process would be finalised via JIPSA structures. In an effort to extend the
consultation process and to ensure that all stakeholders were consulted, the draft Revised HRD-SA was published
in Government Gazette No. 31646 of 28 November 2008, for public comment by 31 December 2008. A
number of inputs and comments was received from different institutions. These were analysed and presented at
the JIPSA TWG and at JTT meetings respectively on 24 and 25 February 2009.

The Strategy was then amended, based on the inputs and comments received from the various stakeholders.
The amended version of the draft HRD-SA, including the migration of JIPSA into HRD-SA, was presented to, and
approved by Cabinet on 18 March 2009.

2) Challenges faced during implementation

The delay in delivering on all our planned activities as per the operational plan was due to the delays encountered
during the consultation process.



3. DIRECTORATE: EDUCATION MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEMS (EMIS)
1) Highlights and achievements

Acquisition and processing of education information

EMIS collects, processes, integrates, publishes and disseminates education and training information for planning,
accounting, policy-monitoring and decision-making purposes. For the first time in the history of EMIS, the return
rate for education information collected during the SNAP Survey, reached almost 100%, which means that 99%
of ordinary schools surveyed responded and submitted information.

The timeliness of education data from the provinces also improved to zero delays.

The quality assurance process for education data was greatly enhanced by means of a formalisation of
information gap analysis before publishing took place.

Cooperation between EMIS and FET, with regard to the implementation of the E-survey process for colleges also
improved the data collection process in this sector.

EMIS publications

Two publications were produced during the 2008/2009 financial year, namely School Realities 2008 and
Education Statistics in South Africa 2007. Some 10 000 and 40 000 copies respectively of the two publications
were distributed to the Ministry, departmental top management, schools, educational organisation and all listed
education stakeholders.

The publications are posted on the Department of Education’s website as well.

The EMIS publication, entitled School Realities 2008, was published and distributed six weeks before the deadline.
This was an improvement in the timeliness of dissemination of education information to its national users.

There was no “feedback” query by the Treasury regarding education information submitted to it during 2008.
This is an indication of an improvement as, in the past there had always been queries.

A comprehensive SNE report was compiled and disseminated to the Branch.
Improvement in the quality of education information

Phase Il (2008/2009) of the Data Quality Audit, conducted via the sample of 4% of ordinary schools was
completed. FET colleges; ABET centres and SNE schools are currently being audited for the second phase of the
three-year Data Quality Audit.

The recommendations of the DQA project were followed up, as explained in Part 2 of this Annual Report.

The finalisation of the Education Information Standards had proven to be a challenge to EMIS, as the
Directorate’s capacity was not adequate to complete this task. As a result, the CSIR was appointed to finalise the
Education Information Standards. The Standards should be completed during November 2009. The finalisation
of the Education Information Standards is perhaps the most urgent delivery challenge facing the Directorate at
present.

EMIS capacity-building
The University of Pretoria and the Cape Peninsula University of Technology were finally selected to assist EMIS

with capacity-building programmes and research. The Memorandum of Agreement is currently being finalised
by the Department’s legal services.



Cooperation with government departments

EMIS continues to cooperate with the National Education Statistical Information System (NESIS), which is a
regional UNESCO organisation, the SADC and the AU Working Group. Activities that took place during the
period under review included a workshop to formulate Education Information Standards for the region, and
an EMIS meeting, which was attended by delegates from 10 African Countries, to discuss School Management
Record Systems.

2) Challenges and corrective steps

The development of the Education Information Standards is not proceeding at the expected pace. It was planned
that by the end of the period under review, eight standards would have been ready for gazetting. However,
only one is ready, namely the Data Quality Audit. The remaining seven Standards should be completed during

November 2009.

The work on the finalisation of the Standards was originally outsourced to a service provider. Unfortunately the
product was not satisfactory.

External developments impacting on service delivery

There were no external developments impacting on service delivery during the period under review.
Legislative and policy developments

In the quest to improve the quality of education information, the following measures were decided upon:

1. The Education Information Policy will be amended to include EMIS officers at all levels of government’s
education administration, namely at district and institutional level.

2. The Data Quality Standard was approved and is ready to be gazetted.
4. DIRECTORATE: RESEARCH COORDINATION, MONITORING AND EVALUATION
1) Highlights and achievements

The Directorate: Research Coordination, Monitoring and Evaluation drafted a policy on Learner Attendance that
was approved by the Minister and HEDCOM for implementation during January 2010.

All national and international reporting requirements that generally relate to the education sector were responded
to timeously. The following reports were submitted to the relevant agencies:

*  The United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child
*  The African Union’s Second Decade of Education

*  Progress on the goals of Education for All

*  Development Indicators for the Presidency.

The 2009 Macro Indicator Report was compiled and submitted to the Minister for approval. The report was
presented to round-table of educationists.

The 2009 Service Delivery Report was compiled. It will be outsourced for editing and enhancement by a service
provider.

The study on the Language of Learning and Teaching in schools (LOLT) was completed by the service provider.
The Advisory Group on LOLT provided useful inputs to the study. The report is currently being assessed by the
Directorate.



Transversal engagement on monitoring and evaluation across various branches in the Department took place
via the M & E Transversal Team, as well as via engagement with individual units in the Department on specific
projects.

2) Challenges

The study on Teacher Leave was contracted out to the Human Sciences Research Council by UNICEF, which is
funding the project. A reference group for the study was established. There was a delay in the procurement
process, due to a number of reasons. Firstly, the attempt to link this project to a World Bank proposal on
service delivery was not successful. Secondly, the methodology for the project had to be changed, due to the
identification of available data which had previously been regarded as invalid. Thirdly, the contractual process
took longer than planned.

Procurement challenges were experienced in developing the framework for the monitoring and evaluation
(M & E) of policy implementation and capacity-building with regard to M & E. Proposals received from potential
service providers, following a public advertisement of the tender, were found to be unsatisfactory. An alternative
service provider has been found via UNICEF, which is funding the project.

Significant developments affecting the work of the Directorate
There were no significant developments during the period under review that affected the Directorate’s work.
Policy developments and legislative changes

A policy on learner attendance recording and monitoring and evaluation is in the process of being developed.
CHIEF DIRECTORATE: EDUCATION HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

This report reflects the highlights and achievements, as well as the challenges experienced by the Chief
Directorate: Education Human Resources and Management, during the period under review.

1. DIRECTORATE: EDUCATOR PERFORMANCE AND MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT
1) Highlights and achievements

The Directorate is responsible for the implementation of the IQMS, which forms part of the Performance
Management System for all educators employed by the Department of Education. During the period under
review, he Directorate convened quarterly national IQMS committee meetings in order to discuss provincial
progress reports. Provincial reports indicated that the level of awareness in the implementation the IQMS is
increasing and that educators are keen to develop professionally in order to improve the quality of teaching and
learning.

As from 1 June 2008, nine external IQMS project managers, and 37 IQMS moderators were appointed on
confracts that renewable annually over a period of three years. The moderators commenced with their school
visits during August 2008. They had visited a total of 3 382 schools as at 27 February 2009. All moderators were
well received by the schools and their presence and guidance were highly appreciated — with the exception of a
few schools in the Eastern Cape and North West. The moderators reported that a significant majority of schools
were trying their best to implement the IQMS processes, even though they were experiencing serious challenges
and difficulties.

The Directorate also developed a 14-series audio-visual training programme on the IQMS, in order to assist
schools with the implementation of IQMS. It is anticipated that the duplication and distribution of the material
will take place during the third quarter of 2009.



Furthermore, three surveys were conducted during the period under review. The first survey focused on the
completion of the NCS work, as well as on the rate of teaching during the examination period. The second survey
was conducted in district offices to assess their state of readiness in terms of the handling of data pertaining to
summative scores and School Improvement Plans (SIPs). The third survey was conducted at a number of schools
during the first three days after the start of the 2009 academic year in January 2009. lts purpose was to establish
the schools’ state of readiness for the new school year.

2) Policy development

The IQMS Collective Agreement No. 8 of 2003, was amended and, amongst others, the language and instruments
were simplified, the requirements of NCS incorporated into Performance Standards 1 to 4, descriptors were
reworked to improve progression in the rating, and learner achievement was strengthened.

Furthermore, processes are currently underway to establish the National Education Evaluation and Development
Unit (NEEDU). A Ministerial Committee was established in this regard, to recommend mechanisms to the Minister,
mechanisms via which independent evaluations could be conducted of schools, educators and learners. The
committee’s final report of the committee has been submitted to the Minister during January 2009. Processes
are also in progress to establish an interim structure that will facilitate the implementation of recommendations
contained in the committee’s report. Processes to develop legislation in this regard have also commenced.

3) Challenges
The following challenges were encountered:

The proposed amendments to the IQMS instrument, as well as to the moderation instrument are awaiting
finalisation at ELRC level.

A full quota of external moderators has not being appointed as yet, due to a shortage of suitable candidates.
Challenges were experienced in obtaining access to some of the schools, due to resistance by the trade unions.

2. DIRECTORATE: EDUCATION HUMAN RESOURCES PLANNING, PROVISIONING AND
MONITORING

1) Highlights and achievements
Supply and demand

A Concept Paper on Demand, Supply and Utilisation of Educators, addressing issues such as effective human
resources planning systems and structures; educator recruitment strategies; human resources data and
information integrity; and educator competency and qualifications, was approved by the CEM.

Consequently, several initiatives have been undertaken, including the development of a national framework for
human resources planning in education; ensuring that the functionality of Persal as the main source of human
resources planning and management information is optimally utilised; and the development of a National
Recruitment Unit to support provinces in the recruitment of educators.

Post-provisioning Norms

The new Post-provisioning Norms (PPN), which place considerable emphasis on avoiding excessive class sizes,
have been approved by HEDCOM and the CEM.

The PPN is a set of calculations that determines the class sizes in terms of the number of management and
teacher posts allocated to a school, on the basis of curriculum requirements and budget availability. This model
is also pro poor schools and promotes the allocation of posts to deal with multi-grade teaching in small schools.



2) Challenges
Education Human Resource Management Information System (EHRMIS)

The development of an Education Human Resource Management Information System (EHRMIS) got off the
ground. It is envisaged that when completed, the system would be able to integrate other existing systems with
regard to human resource issues. The aim is to have the project up and running in the 2009/10 financial year.
The delay in implementation was caused by a change of focus, as the entire project had to be reengineered.

3. DIRECTORATE: EDUCATION LABOUR RELATIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE
1) Highlights and achievements

The Directorate is responsible for maintaining of industrial peace within the education sector and also ensures
that the Conditions of Service for Educators are maintained. Unlike the events of 2007, there were no incidences
of labour unrest reported within the education sector during the period under review.

The past financial year also saw the appointment of a service provider to assist with the recruitment of foreign
educators. This emanated from a decision of the CEM. Further meetings with African countries, such as Kenya,
Egypt and Nigeria also established that they were willing to assist with the appointment of educators coming
from their countries. It is also important to note that the transfer process of employees in the FET sector, which
was a cumbersome process, was successfully facilitated.

Two ELRC Resolutions on OSD were signed during 2008. One dealt with the framework for the establishment
of the OSD, and the other with establishing the process of finalising some aspects of the OSD. The changes in
the new system were successfully implemented by PERSAL and later by practitioners in the various provinces. The
workshops and continued correspondence assisted in avoiding a breakdown in the system.

The policy relating to the laptop initiative was approved by the Minister and will now form part of the Conditions
of Service for Educators, allowing educators to procure laptops for professional usage. The Department will
support educators in paying them an allowance in lieu of obtaining a laptop. This should enhance quality and
service delivery.

2) Challenges

While a service provider for the recruitment of foreign educators was appointed, no provinces made any
advances to recruit educators externally. There is a risk involved in this exercise, as there rests an obligation on
the Department to provide at least 500 posts for recruitment.

There are currently unfortunate delays experienced in the implementation of the project, which have been
referred as process matters emanating from the OSD.

CHIEF DIRECTORATE: LEGAL AND LEGISLATIVE SERVICES
1) Prelude

The Chief Directorate: Legal and Legislative Services has established itself as one of the indispensable units
without which the strategic objectives of the Department cannot be realised.

The Unit became a fully-functional chief directorate on 1 February 2008. During the period under review, the
Chief Directorate accomplished a number of tasks, enhancing the attainment of the Department’s strategic
objectives in general, and the strategic objectives of the Unit in particular. The Chief Directorate made an impact
on the Department by providing much needed support to other units, as well as to other departments.



2) Strategic objectives of the Chief Directorate

The Chief Directorate has the following strategic objectives:

(a) Drafting regulations and legislation and assisting with their processing.

(b) Monitoring and supporting the provinces with regard to implementation, and assisting them with the
drafting of legislation.

(c) Providing legal advice.

(d) Managing the administration and secretarial services of the Hedcom Legal Subcommittee.

(e) Managing all the Department of Education’s litigation.

() Monitoring, coordinating and evaluating all litigation in the provincial education departments, which might
have a national impact.

(@) Monitoring, coordinating and evaluating human rights abuses in the education system.

(h)  Scrutinising and providing advice on all domestic and international contracts.

(i)  Coordinating complaints of a legal nature.

(i  Providing general legal advice to both the national Department and the provinces.

3) Major achievements
3.1 Legislation

The year 2008 was a busy one for the Chief Directorate, which had to ensure that the following three maijor bills
were tabled in Parliament:

(i)  The Higher Education Act 2008.

(i)  The General and Further Education and Training Quality Assurance Act 2008.

(i)  The National Qualifications Framework Act 67 of 2008.

The first and the second bills were referred to as consequential bills. This was due to the fact that they were

amendment bills, owing their origin to the NQF Bill. The NQF is a technical piece of legislation, which perhaps

explains why it was signed long after the parliamentary process had been completed. Over and above the

aforementioned legislation, the Chief Directorate also developed, or assisted in developing the following

documents:

(i) Section 38A Regulations.

(i)  Notfice for the device for drug testing.

(iii)  Guidelines for search and seizure of dangerous weapons and drugs.

(iv) Regulations pertaining to the administration of NCS and FET examinations.

(v)  Norms and Standards for School Funding.

(vi)  Norms and Standards for School Infrastructure, which will be converted into regulations in terms of Section
5A of SASA)

(vii) Regulations for Financial Assistance of the Victims in terms of the Promotion of Unity and Reconciliation Act
(as administered by the Department of Justice).

The Chief Directorate also participated in, and provided comment in terms of the legislative programmes of

other departments. These include:

()  Comment on Regulations developed by the Department of Social Development in terms of the Children’s
Act 38 of 2005.

(i) Law Review by the South African Law Review Commission.

(i)  Assignment/Allocation Of Roles And Functions For Traditional Leadership By Organs Of State In Terms
Of Sections 19 And 20(1) of The Traditional Leadership Governance And Framework Act 41 of 2003
(administered by the Department of Provincial and Local Government).

(i)  Regulations pertaining to the Intellectual Property Rights of publicly financed research and development
(IPR-PFRD) — Department of Science and Technology.

(iii) Draft Fitness Regulations, 2009 — Department of Sport and Recreation.

(iv) Comments on the Recognition of the Customary Marriages Amendment Bill, 2009.

(v) Comment on the Marriage Amendment Bill, 2009.



The Chief Directorate succeeded in putting in place mechanisms necessary for transforming the South African
education system. A few examples of the achievements of the Department during the period under review include
the FET Colleges Act 16 of 2006, which was implemented to ensure that the staff of FET colleges were employed
by the colleges; the National Qualifications Framework Act of 2008, which was enacted; the Regulations on
Drug Testing Devices and the guidelines for search and seizure proceedings were drafted, so as to assist with
the implementation of the amendments of SASA; and the Section 38A Regulations and National Education
and Training Council Regulations were developed. Moreover, the Directorate: Physical Planning developed the
Norms and Standards for School Infrastructure, and the Examinations Unit developed a GET Assessment Policy,
and the Chief Directorate was involved in both these processes.

Furthermore, a process of constant monitoring and evaluation and subsequent review of the education laws
assisted in identifying shortfalls in existing law.

The immense expansion of the Unit added value to the much needed service delivery in the public service. It is
apparent that the Chief Directorate has become the backbone of the Department with regard to compliance
and policy development.

3.2. Litigation
3.2.1 Legal challenges

The Chief Directorate dealt with a number of legal challenges facing the Department, such as lawsuits
and letters of demand. Many of these challenges were resolved at the initial stage (letter of demand),
which meant that lawsuits were averted. The majority of legal challenges were resolved in this way and
a very small number actually got to court. Thirteen cases were formally instituted, all of which were
concluded in favour of the Minister and the Department.

3.2.2 Monitoring, coordinating and evaluating all litigation and implementation of legislation in the
provincial education departments, which might have a national impact

The Chief Directorate concluded a series of visits to the provinces during the period under review.
Reports to the heads of provincial education departments have subsequently been drafted and will soon
be forwarded to them.

3.2.3 Monitoring, coordinating and evaluating human rights abuses in the education system

The Chief Directorate provided a comprehensive report to the Human Rights Commission on the
implementation of the Millennium Development Goals. This report was finalised and submitted to the
Human Rights Commission against very tight time-frames. The Department was summonsed by the
Human Rights Commission to respond to allegations by special schools that the state had neglected
its responsibility towards learners with special needs. The Chief Directorate played a substantial role in
resolving and clarifying the matter.

3.2.4 Scrutinising and providing advice on all domestic and international contracts

The Chief Directorate scrutinised and advised on a number of contracts during the period under review.
Most of these contracts have subsequently been signed. The Chief Directorate played a significant
role in the handling of all the procurement bids relating to the Department. It resolved many legal
impediments in the finalisation of the various bids and no court challenges were encountered with
regard to any contract.



3.2.5

Coordinating complaints of a legal nature and providing general legal advice to the national
Department and the provinces

During the period under review, the Chief Directorate provided a number of legal opinions on, amongst
others:

* the National Credit Act on schools

* Liquor licenses for schools

*  The curriculum followed by independent schools

* The Children’s Amendment Act

* A Catholic public school situated on private property

These opinions contributed to clarifying the issues and assisted with the smooth running of schools.

4

4.1

Challenges and corrective steps

In respect of gaining the cooperation of PEDs, one of the key challenges facing the Chief Directorate
related to the monitoring function. The observation made in this regard is that some provinces were
reluctantly participating in the provincial visits made by the Department. This has manifested itself in one
or more of the following:
(a) Sometimes a province kept on changing the scheduled dates for the visit. This impacted negatively
on the Chief Directorate’s planning and had undesirable administrative and logistical consequences.
(b) In some cases, a province agreed to the visit, only for the Chief Directorate to discover that the
officials who should have provide reports, were simply not available, due to one reason or another.
(c) In some instances, a province accepted the arrangements and ensured that all official required to
participate in the meeting were available, but the required information was scanty or not available
at all.

These factors proved to be an impediment in the attainment of the support function as a strategic objective.
Measures that will be put in place include providing reports to the Heads of Departments about this unfortunate
state of affairs. The need for cooperation will also be discussed at the Hedcom Legal Subcommittee meeting.

4.2

4.3

5.

The NQF Act was tabled in NEDLAC for consultation. NEDLAC attempted to prolong the consultation
process, which would have resulted in a delay in tabling the legislation in Parliament. The Chief
Directorate managed the consultation within the set time-frames and had to engage in many meetings
to resolve queries of the constituencies within NEDLAC.

The need existed to coordinate and assist in lawsuits relating to education issues, where the Minister
or the Director-General was not cited as a party. An agreement was reached with the members of the
CEM and HEDCOM to regularly communicate and report on cases. Circulars were sent to schools to
ensure that departments were kept informed of any cases where schools were cited as a party in court
proceedings.

Internal challenges

One of the strategic objectives of the Chief Directorate is to provide support to other initiatives by the Department.
However, numerous calls were made to other units to develop Regulations in terms of section 5A of the South
African Schools Act, 84 of 1996, and they have not yet heeded the call. To date, only Physical Planning has
developed norms in terms of the said section. Therefore, there is a need for other sections to develop the
required norms, in line with the spirit and purport of section 5A.



CHIEF DIRECTORATE: CURRICULUM AND ASSESSMENT

The key thrust during the period under review was towards ensuring increased access to Grade R for all 5-year-
olds. In total 700 000 learners were registered in Grade R classes at public schools and independent schools/
community centres at the beginning of 2009. A detailed report on the state of readiness of the provinces and the
national Department of Education to utilise the additional funding in order to attain universal access to Grade R
was finalised. Material was developed for pre-Grade R learners, aimed at to guiding the development of young
children.

A key focal area during the period under review was the investigation and development of systems for the
piloting of the General Education Certificate (GEC), and an advocacy campaign to inform teachers, learners and
parents about the GEC. Standardised Assessment or Common Tasks for Assessment: Section A, was finalised
for implementation during the second term, as part of the piloting of the GEC in 2009. An evaluation of the
implementation of the NCS in the Intermediate Phase was conducted, indicating that implementation was on a
continuum from very weak to excellent. The report indicated that many teachers required further training and
support.

As part of the Drop All and Read Campaign, bags and books were delivered by the Minister, the Deputy Minister
and senior managers to 6 750 Grade R and Grade 1 learners in Thabo Mofutsanyane in the Free State,
and Lusikisiki in the Eastern Cape. Senior managers combined the delivery with an advocacy and information
programme for principals and teachers. Processes were put in place to reach an agreement on the importation
of 100 mobile library vans from Japan, over a period of time so that ultimately, each district would be able to
offer a mobile library service. Some 2.4 million Ithuba books in 11 languages were delivered to 2 000 schools,
in order to provide suitable reading material for Intermediate Phase learners. Braille and large-print Ithuba
books, as well as audio tapes of the books are being supplied to all schools for the blind.

An investigation into the readiness of provinces to utilise the additional funding provided for the implementation
of inclusive education, was finalised. The investigation indicated that, while some provinces had undertaken
excellent work in upgrading special schools by providing vehicles to transport learners and purchasing the
relevant resources, some provinces had not succeeded in making much headway. The tender to procure
assistive devices for the amount of R9 million was completed and learners were assessed for individual needs.
Distribution and training will now commence. The process will, however, require greater clarified direction and
more support from the Department of Education. Utilising Swedish funding, ring-fenced for the advocacy of
inclusive education, 13 three-minute television programmes were produced and flighted twice a day for 13 days
at 15:30 and 21:00 respectively, to approximately one million viewers per flighting. This will be followed by print
and radio messaging.

CHIEF DIRECTORATE: INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The course materials for the ACE:SL programme were reviewed and signed off by the DoE. Currently, the
programme is in the process of uploading the refined course materials on Thutong. The national field-test will
be concluded in 2009 for the first and second cohort. The external research evaluation process is in its final
impact phase.

Circuit managers and SMT members in the seven participating provinces were trained in the management of the
NCS. Provinces are preparing for the roll-out of the NCS management, which the DoE will monitor and support.

SGB Election Guidelines were printed and are in the process of being delivered to the provinces. The advocacy
messages for the SGB elections, in the form of posters and flyers, were compiled and delivered to the provinces.
Struggling provinces were visited and provided with support, so as to ensure their readiness for the SGB elections.

Training for provincial and district electoral officers were conducted in all the provinces. SMG participated in the
training and monitoring of the training sessions.



The following key activities were undertaken in respect of district development:
a) Audit of district abilities and the development of plans for the resourcing of education districts

District audit is an ongoing process that has a direct impact on the development of policy in terms of the
organisation, roles and responsibilities of education districts. Using the revised DEMIS instrument, 100% of
the district data was collected from the 81 districts. This process was completed on 31 March 2009. The
data is continuously captured and updated to improve district capacity. There was a delay in the capturing
of the data, due to a lack of human resources and computer software problems. The software problems
were reported and the necessary attention is being paid in order to resolve the problems.

b) Policy on the Organisation, Roles and Responsibilities of Education Districts, promoting improved
learner achievement

The Policy on the Organisation, Roles and Responsibilities of Education Districts was approved by the CEM
on 4 August 2008. A detailed implementation plan was developed for the testing and initial roll-out of
the Policy. Norms were established for districts, which would be implemented as soon as the Policy has
been tested and finalised. A draft Handbook for District Directors, and an accompanying Handbook of
Delegations of Authority, will be completed during 2009. There was a delay in the implementation of the
Policy, due to first-day school visits by DoE officials and provincial officials who were involved in these
meetings.

c)  Training and Development

The proposed partnership between Harvard University, the Association for Curriculum Supervision and
Development (ASCD) and the DoE was establish and has progressed to an advanced stage. The point has
been reached where there is a need to formalise the Memorandum of Agreement between the relevant
stakeholders before further work on the conceptualisation, design and development of the capacity-building
programmes could be undertaken. The delay in the formalisation of the MOA has brought progress to a
halt at this stage.

CHIEF DIRECTORATE: TEACHER EDUCATION AND DEVELOPMENT

During the fourth quarter of the 2008/9 financial year, the Chief Directorate: Teacher Education and Development
achieved many of the targets set for the financial year in question, and in some instances it went beyond what
was being planned. However, there were also some areas where targets were not met. This report provides a
summary of all relevant activities during the period under review.

The Teacher Recruitment Campaign was successfully implemented and resulted in all institutions reporting a
50-to-100% increase in applications for initial teacher education programmes by January 2009.

The Funza Lushaka Information Management System (FLIMS) was successfully developed and systematically
assessed. It is 90% complete and will be finalised during the next financial year. FLIMS' report-generating facility
is still being developed, and once historical information has been uploaded on to the system, it would be able
to generate reports on the programme as required.

Bursaries were awarded to 5 428 candidates during the 2008/09 financial year, and an amount of R171 355
582,00 was disbursed. Placement of graduates was monitored by matching graduates on the PERSAL system.
Some 806 out of the 812 graduates were successfully placed in permanent positions.

The CPTD design document was completed and followed by a field study, which indicated that further
development and support work was required before full-scale implementation could take place. A total of 11
drafts for the Endorsement Handbook were prepared, and the ICT prototype was developed. These will be
piloted during a year-long process, starting in July 2009 and ending in October 2010. The pilot report will
serve as the evaluation report of the pilot design and its attendant parts, to guide implementation decisions
from 2011 onwards. During the period under review, the partnership with SACE with regard to this project



was strengthened considerably. Within the context of tight time-frames, delays in budget transfers and limited
capacity at SACE, significant progress was made.

Atotal of 1 994 teachers were supported via the MST ACE Programme, and the 3 065 via the NPDE Programme.
Both these programmes were effectively monitored and reports were prepared. In the case of the NPDE, in-depth
research was undertaken and a draft evaluation report was submitted to Senior Management for discussion
purposes. This will influence policy decisions on future upgrading. In addition, an internal evaluation report on
ACE Programmes in general was prepared, and a moratorium on new ACE Programmes was put in place. The
issue of accredited formal upgrading and future CPTD Programmes is being considered as part of the policy
revision process. Processes for effectively collecting data, and monitoring and evaluating the provision of such
programmes in future are currently being developed. While the five-year plan for upgrading teachers has not
been completed as yet, the research already undertaken will be fed into a comprehensive national teacher
development plan for the system, which will be finalised in 2009/10.

Programmes and qualifications were received and evaluated and approved on an ongoing basis. Due to
capacity constraints and increased numbers of foreign qualifications being received, backlogs have built up and
it is not always possible to keep to the service ideal of seven weeks. Applications for evaluation received from
local teachers and provinces were 80% on target during the period under review, but applications received from
foreigners were only 40% on target.

The policy revision and development process is underway. However, the target of completing this process
during the 2008/09 financial year was not met, due to external constraints and, more in particular, the lack of
finalisation of standard-setting processes via the Council on Higher Education (CHE). These have been expected
to be completed during July 2008, but completion is now only likely in July 2009. However, a Working Team
on Policy Development was established in the Chief Directorate, and time-lines were set to complete the work.
Draft documents on teacher qualifications were developed for internal discussion purposes, and both formal
and informal meetings took place with other affected sections.

CHIEF DIRECTORATE: QUALITY PROMOTION AND ASSURANCE
a) Monitoring earning outcomes in the GET Band

The Chief Directorate established a stable system of monitoring and tracking learning outcomes over time, at
levels lower than Grade 12. In 2008, important baseline information was established on performance in literacy
and numeracy in the Foundation Phase, and language and Mathematics in the Intermediate Phase, via the first
Annual National Assessment (ANA) that was undertaken at all schools.

As a standard practice, the Department provided feedback to the system, following the 2008 ANA and 2007
Systemic Evaluation Survey — highlighting areas of under-performance that required attention by teachers and
district officials.

By way of the national surveys, the 2008 Annual National Assessment, as well as international studies, the
Department was able to establish a baseline in all primary schools against which to measure improvement over
time.

The Directorate now has the empirical data on the levels of achievement in South African schools, how
achievement is distributed across the schools and, even more important, what skills and competencies require
more attention during the teaching and learning process.

b) Monitoring school performance in the system

The Department (via provincially-employed school supervisors) has been evaluating school performance in nine
critical areas on an annual basis, as required by the Whole School Evaluation (WSE) Policy.



Following the external evaluation of these schools, detailed reports with accompanying recommendations were
provided to the schools, highlighting areas where schools needed to improve and areas where schools were
performing well.

With the passing of the Education Laws Amendment Act of 2008, and the introduction of the Foundations for
Learning Campaign in 2007, schools had to be advised on to comply with the requirements and provisions of
this legislation and policy. In 2008, the Department developed clear guidelines to assist schools to comply with
the requirements of the Act and the campaign.

In 2007, the Minister commissioned a Ministerial Committee on Schools That Work to, amongst other inter alia,
conduct a pilot study on schools in the middle quintiles that performed well in the Senior Certificate examinations
— i.e. the schools that work — to establish the circumstances under which these schools achieved good results,
while others in the same situation did not.

The Department used the findings of the Ministerial Committee to:

* prepare a booklet to share good practices that the Ministerial Committee had observed in schools that work
with all schools in the system; and to

* incorporate the good practices as part of the revised criteria that schools and supervisors are expected to
use during internal and external school evaluations.

c) Supporting schools serving learners from poor and disadvantaged communities

Over 15 000 of the poorest schools in the system benefited from QIDS UP Depending on their needs, these
schools received the following kinds support:

*  Resources to support curriculum implementation. These included reading books, numeracy/mathematics
kits, mobile libraries, and educational material for Grade R.

*  Support provided to teachers. These included training.

*  Support to principals to improve their leadership and management skills. SMTs were provided with tools and
the necessary training to manage their schools more professionally.

*  Appropriate infrastructure. These included the renovation of school buildings; the construction of additional
classes; the provision of suitable mobile classrooms as an interim measure; the provision of water, sanitation
and electricity; the provision of furniture and fencing.

*  Support in the monitoring of the improvement of learning outcomes, using national surveys and the National
Annual Assessments.



1) Highlights and achievements

The main highlights and achievements of the 2008/09 financial relate to support provided to schools and

colleges in respect of curriculum and assessment.

At school level, the DoE provided support in the following ways:

* |t screened and approved textbooks for Grades 10, 11 and 12 and for Grade 12 literature.

e It developed Practical Assessment Tasks for 2009 for the 16 subjects in the NCS, which have a practical
component.

* |t developed exemplar examination papers for the high enrolment subjects and published these in Study
Mate / Studie Pel, in the Sunday Times and on the DoE and Thutong websites.

* Ittrained and supported subject advisers and teachers.

* It supported the National Strategy for Mathematics, Science and Technology Education by providing
textbooks, study guides and calculators to selected Dinaledi schools. Dinaledi schools also participated
in the Mathematics Olympiad. The target of doubling the number of high-level Mathematics passes was
achieved, as 63 000 learners passed Mathematics with a mark of higher than 50%.

At college level, the two major achievements were reaching the targets set for student enrolment on the NC(V)
in 2009, and completion of the R1,9 billion re-capitalisation grant.

There are 105 000 students enrolled at 50 public FET colleges in 2009, of whom 80 000 are on Level 2, some

20 000 on Level 3 and 5 000 on Level 4. In order to support these students the DoE developed:

* a framework for the award of bursaries worth R600 million and awarded bursaries to more than 45 000
students;

* a framework for Student Support Services, which included a tool for the screening and placement of all
students in 2009;

* a framework for lecturer development, and it trained 2 052 lecturers for the NC(V); and

* It developed Mathematics and Mathematical Literacy support programmes.

In relation to curriculum, two new NC(V) programmes were approved and introduced. The DoE also supported
the delivery of the curricula for all new NC(V) programmes, by way of monitoring visits. In 2008, work began
on the alignment of Level 4 practical assessment tasks, including trade tests and with the needs of the industry
in mind.

On 31 March the three-year R1,9 billion FET College Re-capitalisation Programme, which funded classrooms,
workshops, equipment, ICT and lecturer development, was completed. Plans and proposals for the implementation
of the Norms and Standards for Funding began.

Over 800 applications for registration as private FET colleges were processed upon receipt, and 129
determinations were completed. The register of private colleges, which had been conditionally registered, as
well as those on the extension list, was published.

Examination papers for more than 8 000 schools, FET colleges and ABET centres were set and distributed
timeously to provinces and colleges. The DoE oversaw the marking and resulting processes. The results of the
maijority of the 1,3 million students, who had written the examinations, were provided on time.

The ICT in Schools Feasibility Study was finalised and presented to stakeholders.

2) Challenges

The major challenge faced was inadequate funding to support the Second Chance Grade 12 learners and the

expanded examination processes. Funding was obtained from other branches to cater for the overspending, and
various projects had to be suspended due to a lack of funding.



Another challenge faced was the poor support to Grade 12 teachers and learners by district offices. In some
instances, essential learning material, procured by the DoE, was not delivered to schools by district offices.
Constant monitoring was conducted to ensure that schools received the LTSM.

The issuing of results to 26 000 learners, who had written the National Senior Certification examinations, was
delayed as a result of the non-submission and slow capturing of school-based assessment marks, as well as
a variety of administrative errors. The new computer system also posed problems and resulted delays in the
release of results.

3) Significant developments
The following significant developments took place in the 2008/09 financial year:

The National Curriculum Statement (NCS) was implemented in Grade 12 in 2009. This development marked
the final year of implementation of the NCS. The NCS had been introduced into the Foundation Phase in 2002,
and then progressively into Grade 12 during 2009. All grades now follow the NCS.

The first National Senior Certificate examinations was written by more than 588 000 Grade 12 learners during
2008. This required significant preparation and planning. In 2008, more than 102 000 learners achieved the
minimum requirements for higher education studies, which turned out to be 20 000 more than in 2007. A total
of 63 000 learners achieved high-level Mathematics passes. This also presented an increase on previous years.
The 500 Dinaledi schools contributed to this achievement.

In respect of the old curriculum, learners who did not pass the Senior Certificate in 2007, as well as other
learners who wished to obtain a Senior Certificate, were given support via the Second Chance Programme.
Three further opportunities were scheduled to be offered to these learners, namely in May/June 2009, as well
asin 2010 and 2011.

In FET colleges, the National Certificate (Vocational) Level 3 was offered for the first time to 10 000 students at
50 FET colleges in 2008, and to 20 000 students in 2009. The National Certificate (Vocational) Level 4 will be
offered for the first time to 5 000 students in 2009.

The Department of Education completed a feasibility study into ICT in schools. This study provided the framework
for the expansion of ICT in schools. The Thutong Portal, the curriculum website of the Department, was re-
designed and launched during 2008.

4) Policy developments

In the 2008/09 financial year, the following policies were developed, consulted on and gazetted:

*  The National Plan for Further Education and Training Colleges of South Africa, which sets out the strategic
goals and plans for public and private colleges from 2009 to 2014.

* The Norms and Standards for Funding of Further Education and Training Colleges. These norms provide
for programme funding for FET colleges and mark an important development in improving the efficiency and
effectiveness of FET colleges. Detailed support work will be undertaken in 2009, to ensure careful
implementation of these funding norms.

In addition to these policies, Regulations Pertaining to the Conduct, Administration and Management of
Assessment for the National Senior Certificate Examinations were developed to provide a regulatory framework
for the first National Senior Certificate examinations in 2009.



The Branch had set itself eight broad priorities, which are in line with the five departmental strategic priorities,

as outlined in the 2008/09 Operational Plans. A large number of activities were successfully carried out, aimed

at realising the set key priorities, which are to:

i)  support schools that experience high levels of crime and violence to become safe and caring schools;

i) increase the participation and success rates of girls in gateway subjects and preventing barriers to equity
and access for girls in the education system;

iii)  ensure access to, and the retention of learners in rural and farm schools;

iv) implement special social cohesion plans;

v)  review Adult Education and Training (AET) and facilitate the implementation of the Mass Literacy Campaign;

vi) facilitate the implementation of school sporting activities and enrichment programmes;

vii) support and strengthen curriculum-driven HIV and Aids activities via peer education; and

viii) to ensure the successful and increased implementation of the National School Nutrition Programme (NSNP).

1. Supporting schools that experience high levels of crime and violence to become safe and
caring schools

In line with the broad priorities of the Branch: Social and School Enrichment, the Directorate: School Safety and
Enrichment Programmes focused delivery on the following priorities:

Ministerial Project to Create Safe and Caring Schools

CCTV Systems were installed at eight of the Ministerial Schools Project, namely (Mountview, Thautogauta, SC
Kearns, Makgofe, Khumbula, Senaoane, Retshugile and Eminyezaneni Secondary Schools. Due to the derelict
buildings of the Kei Road Combined School in the Eastern Cape, it was recommended that a CCTV System not
be installed.

Further funding to the amount of R1 532 838.78 is still required in order to upgrade the systems installed at
Mountview Secondary School in the Western Cape, Thautogauta Secondary School in the Free State and SC
Kearns Secondary School in the Northern Cape. The upgrading is necessary, so as to improve the functionality
of the system, to provide full coverage of “hot spot” areas and, in the case of SC Kearns, to link the school with
the hostel facilities.

The introduction of the CCTV systems, combined with the security fences, gates and the metal detectors, impacted
positively on instances of crime and violence at the nine high-priority schools.

Guidelines and tool-kit for child-friendly schools

The guidelines and tool-kit for child-friendly schools was submitted for further comment and discussion.
Capacity-building: Positive discipline and classroom management

Training materials, provided by Girls & Boys Town, were refined and submitted for approval. The CFO advised
that the BEC/BAC process had to be followed to procure a service provider. The required documentation was
prepared and submitted to BEC/BAC. It is envisaged that all staff members will be trained in positive discipline

and classroom management from April to August 2009.

An Exemplar Code of Conduct for Learners at all Public Schools was drafted, approved and distributed to all
provinces for implementation.



National Monitoring Strategy: Safe and Caring Schools

The Ministerial Project on Safe and Caring Schools had been initiated in 2006. The Department, in collaboration
with the provinces, implemented several interventions across the 585 identified schools. These ranged from
the implementation of infrastructural measures to various developmental programmes. A National Monitoring
Strategy was developed to determine the impact of the various inferventions on the incidence of crime and
violence at the 585 schools. The Strategy was circulated amongst the Provincial School Safety Coordinators for
their input. Provinces were requested to identify five schools per province, at which the Strategy would be piloted.
It was envisaged that this pilot project would commence in April 2009 and concluded by the end of July 2009.

The Directorate: School Safety and Enrichment Programmes furthermore assisted and supported the Directorate:
Race and Values in Education with the implementation of youth camps in all nine provinces, as well as with the
implementation of the Exploring Humanitarian Law Project.

2. Increasing the participation and success rates of girls in gateway subjects and preventing
barriers to equity and access for girls in the education system

The Directorate: Gender Equity completed the following activities during the period under review:

The obijectives of the Directorate are to ensure that gender-related barriers in the education system are reduced;
to build an awareness and understanding of gender equity in the education system and to ensure that all
educational institutions promote gender equality; and to monitor and report on targets set for gender parity and
equality at all levels of the system.

Sexual harassment and violence

The Guidelines for the Prevention and Management of Sexual Violence and Harassment in Public Schools were
finalised and published during the first half of 2008. The Guidelines were printed and distributed to relevant
members of staff in the districts and to secondary schools, via the districts.

Learner pregnancy

During 2007, the Measures for the Prevention and Management of Learner Pregnancy were distributed to
all schools, via the educational districts. Since that time, the Directorate has been working with Gender Focal
Persons in all nine provinces, in order to support the introduction of the Measures into schools, as well as to
develop programmes to prevent and manage teenage pregnancy.

Support for the Measures for the Prevention and Management of Learner Pregnancy continued during 2008. This
included several meetings with education sector groups, including the SGB Forum, the South African Principals
Association, teacher unions and continued discussions at the quarterly HEDCOM subcommittee meetings of
Gender Focal Persons.

With the support of UNICEF, a desktop study on the prevalence and determinants of learner pregnancy in South
Africa was conducted. A service provider was appointed by UNICEF to conduct this four-month study. The delay
in appointing the HSRC as service provider to conduct the research has resulted in the fact that the first report
on this study is not yet available. Unfortunately, the procurement of this service was not under the Department’s
control, and delays were experienced.

Teacher support materials

The Department developed a set of broadsheet inserts as part of a campaign to raise awareness of the Guidelines
and Measures. The six-series broadsheet inserts, which appeared in The Teacher newspaper between September
2008 and March 2009, was developed to provide teacher support materials on two issues, namely focusing on
how to prevent and manage teenage pregnancy, and sexual violence and harassment in schools. The series is
entitled Generations, and it was also posted on the departmental website. Specific attention was paid to both the
Guidelines and the Measures, as well as to the challenges that teachers and school managers face in working
with these issues in schools.



District workshops

Three district workshops were held during February and March 2009, to raise awareness of the Guidelines and
the Measures, and to support districts in building teams that would be able to intervene in problem cases when
they arise, and to support schools in the handling of gender-related social issues in the system. The workshops
were held in the Vhembe District in Limpopo, in the Bushbuckridge region in Mpumalanga, and in the Bizana
District in the Eastern Cape. The workshops involved a broad range of district-based officials, some provincial
officials and, in some instances, school principals from the district concerned. In some instances, provinces
developed their own campaigns around both sets of materials. Gauteng, for example, printed posters related to
the Guidelines, which were distributed to schools.

The Directorate also started discussions with the South African Council of Educators (SACE) to explore a partnership
in addressing sexual violence and harassment perpetrated by teachers, as well as to prevent teacher-learner
relationships being formed.

The Directorate participated in SGB training workshops that were conducted by the Directorate: Race and Values
in Education, by doing presentations on the Measures and Guidelines at a number of these workshops.

Strengthening the Girls and Boys Education Movement

The Department is currently working on the strengthening of the Girls Education Movement (GEM) and the Boys
Education Movement (BEM) clubs in schools in all provinces. The GEM/BEM Programme involves the formation
of school-based, child-led clubs that support learners in curricular and enrichment programmes. As part of
this process, an audit of existing clubs is being conducted, in order to provide a comprehensive database for
operating the GEM/BEM clubs. A database is already available, but its accuracy needs to be confirmed in
collaboration with the provincial Gender Focal Persons.

During the period under review, the Directorate participated in a number of road shows organised by the
Umsobomvu Youth Fund, during which presentations were made to young people in schools on the benefits of
GEM/BEM clubs. A number of provinces continued their involvement in these road shows.

A Guidebook was produced for the GEM/BEM clubs, and is being distributed to operating clubs, and used as an
advocacy tool for establishing new clubs. The Guidebook is also available on the departmental website.

A successful national empowerment camp for the GEM/BEM movement was held from 7 to 12 December 2008.
The Department hosted this camp in partnership with UNICEF for members of the clubs from all provinces.
Five learners and a chaperone from each province attended the camp. In addition, with UNICEF’s support, five
learners each from Liberia, Botswana and Uganda, attended the December camp. The theme of the camp was
Enjoying Rights, Taking Responsibility and Making Positive Choices. The five-day programme included focusing
on understanding gender equity in education, developing life skills, career guidance and understanding rights
and responsibilities. The programme also included a visit to the Apartheid Museum.

On 30 August 2008, as part of the Department’s Women’s Month activities, a dialogue took place between
the Deputy Minister and 18 GEM club members from all provinces. The discussion focused on a number of
issues facing young women in schools, including learner pregnancy, sexual harassment and poverty, and it also
included discussions on values, the history of Women’s Day, and the activities of GEM clubs.

GEM/BEM club members from Gauteng participated in the annual Torch of Peace hand-over ceremony from the
Ministry of Education to the Ministry of Justice and Constitutional Development, which took place in Pretoria. The
Department had received the Torch of Peace from the Ministry of Transport in early January, as per the annual
schedule, and the Torch was then passed from provincial MEC to provincial MEC, through all nine provinces,
culminating in the Pretoria event on 20 March 2008. As part of the preparations for the event, a group of
GEMMERS and BEMMERS from Gauteng held discussions about safety challenges in their schools and what
part they could play in the Torch of Peace Campaign. They also developed posters against sexual harassment
and violence in schools, which were displayed at the hand-over event. The learners furthermore performed the
GEM/BEM camp song, which had been composed during the December camp, in a collaboration effort between
UNICEF support personnel and the learners themselves.



Monitoring of gender equity in the education system

In July 2008, the Directorate presented a draft document, entitled Towards a National Framework for Addressing
Gender Equity in the Education System: 2008-2010, for the Minister’s advice. As a result of these discussions,
the Directorate, with the support of the Directorate: Research Coordination, Monitoring and Evaluation, is
investigating “mapping” the education system in terms of gender equity, so as to provide the Minister with
an overall picture of the status of gender equity in the education system. As part of this process, existing data
collection methods and indicators used will be examined, in order to develop a more systematic approach to
analysing gender equity in the education system in the longer term. This process was delayed due to staffing
shortages. A new Director: Gender Equity, assumed duty on 1 April 2008, and was in the post for seven months,
before leaving again in November of the same year. This has affected the overall productivity of the unit.

Other programmes

In June 2008, the Department participated in the National Youth Festival, establishing an education “hub”,
which provided information on educational opportunities in the higher and further education sectors to young
people in the Western Cape. As part of this programme, visitors to the hub were introduced to recipients of the
Carnegie-South Africa Scholarship Programme.

The Directorate participated in the Girl Guides Association’s World Conference, held in Gauteng. The Deputy
Minister spoke at this event, which was supported by the Directorate: Gender Equity.

3. Ensuring access to, and the retention of learners in rural and farm schools

National Framework for Quality Education in Rural Areas

The draft Implementation Plan for Rural Education was subjected to a number of consultations during the
2008/09 financial year, which culminated in a second draft entitled, A National Framework for Quality Education

in Rural Areas. The document calls on all role-players in education to sharpen their focus on the delivery of
quality education in rural and farm schools. The draft plan identifies the following focal areas:

*  Improving the quality of teaching and learning in rural and farm schools.
*  Attracting learners to, and retaining them at rural and farm schools.
*  Planning, restructuring and improving infrastructure in rural and farm schools.

*  Developing effective school governance and management of rural and farm schools.
. Promoting advocacy and sustainable partnerships to implement programmes directed at broader rural
development and community participation in rural and farm schools.

The Minister commented as follows on the second draft at a meeting held on 10 July 2008, where the draft was

presented:

a) The Minister approved the five focal areas of the implementation plan.

b) The implementation plan had to be clearer with regard to practical strategies that would make an impact
in the short term.

c) The implementation plan should include data on rural and farm schools, combined with an extensive
analysis of the nature of these schools.

d) A more specific definition of “rural” and “rural education” had to be included in the draft document.

The Directorate: Rural Education presented the second draft Implementation Plan for Rural Education at a

HEDCOM workshop on 25 August 2008. HEDCOM recommended the following:

a) The Directorate should collaborate with Systems Planning and Monitoring in order to confirm the data
presented in the draft plan, as well as to strengthen the definition of “rural”.

b)  The draft plan could be presented at the CEM.

Following the recommendations of the Minister and HEDCOM, the DDG: Social and School Enrichment wrote to
the DDG: Systems Planning an Monitoring, requesting the assistance of the Branch, in order to confirm the data
presented in the draft plan and to strengthen the definition of “rural”. The Directorate is presently working on a
definition of “rural” for the plan and a draft document, pertaining to this, has been produced.



Projects

Guideline documents

The Guidelines for the Merger and Closure of Rural and Farm schools, as well as the Guidelines for the
Implementation of Section 14 Agreements were accepted by the Rural Education Interprovincial Committee
meeting. In addition, the guideline documents were scrutinised for legislative and policy compliance by the
Directorate: Legal Services. The guideline documents were presented at a HEDCOM workshop on 25 August
2008. HEDCOM recommended the following:

a) The Directorate should include a section, dealing with the expropriation of land, in the Guidelines for
the Implementation of Section 14 Agreements.

b) The Directorate should advise HEDCOM regarding policy changes to eliminate the need for Section 14
Agreements.

c) Both guideline documents could be presented at the CEM.

In response to the recommendations received by HEDCOM, the Directorate worked with the Directorate: Legal
Services, Directorate that assisted with the development of a paragraph on the expropriation of land, which has
been inserted into the Guidelines for the Implementation of Section 14 Agreements.

Multi-grade Teaching (MGT)

A discussion document on teacher development in multi-grade teaching was drafted by a task team, constituting
representatives from the provinces, from the Directorate GET, officials who played an instrumental role in the
multi-grade initiative in the Western Cape, as well as from higher education institutions. Two provinces, namely
the Eastern and Northern Cape, requested support in piloting the Teacher Development Programme with 100
teachers, 30 officials and HEI representatives. The process of facilitating a partnership with the Cape Peninsula
University of Technology (CPUT) and the Eastern Cape Department of Education was completed.

The Eastern Cape Education Department progressed to the extent of providing a basic computer literacy course
to the 100 identified teachers. Training in MGT and further computer training was scheduled to commence
during May 200, provided that all documentation had been completed. Further to that, the Northern Cape
Department of Education earmarked May 2009 for the commencement of the training of 100 multi-grade
teachers.

CPUT is currently the only higher education institution that offers a registered and accredited qualification in
MGT. Two provinces, namely the Eastern and Northern Cape, are at different stages of negotiating a service
level agreement with CPUT.

National Hostel Strategy

The Directorate: Rural Education, supported by an interprovincial task team, commenced with the development
of a discussion document on hostels. The aim is to guide provinces to establish hostels as a means to eliminate
poverty and contribute to the achievement of quality education in rural and farm schools. The task team,
comprising representatives from the Free State, KwaZulu-Natal, North West and Mpumalanga, drafted broad
guidelines for establishing hostels for further discussion.

Visits to school hostels in the Free State, KwaZulu-Natal and North West facilitated drafting the discussion
document on hostels.

Rural education newsletter
A rural education newsletter was established to showcase new developments and good practices with regard to
education in rural and farming areas.



Partnerships

Youth Enterprise Society (YES)

The Directorate attended a YES workshop, held in Welkom on 30 and 31 May 2008. The collaboration with
YES is in the process of being extended to the hostels of Winburg Combined School in the Free State and the
Onkopotse Tiro Comprehensive School in the North West.

The Dreamfields Project

The Directorate, together with the Chief Directorate: Social Inclusion in Education, collaborated with the
Dreamfields Project to provide underprivileged rural schools with football kits. Thirty-six football kits were
handed over to underprivileged rural schools across the nine provinces. The aim was to promote school sport
in underprivileged rural schools.

4. Implementing special social cohesion plans

The implementation of special social and cohesion plans, was aimed at ensuring that all educational institutions
promote human rights and the dignity of all people in their ethos, policies and practices.

The Directorate: Race and Values in Education, organised several workshops on values and human rights
practices, while the development of a human rights culture in schools, as well as the implementation of the
Strategy for Integration and Anti-Discrimination also received priority. Workshops were conducted on the purpose
of the Strategy for Integration and Anti-Discrimination, aimed at establishing provincial and district structures to
support the implementation of the Strategy and to monitor and report on incidents of discrimination and human
rights abuse at district level. Ongoing support in this regard is being provided to intervention teams.

Youth Camp Programme

At least two youth camps were held for schools identified as part of the Ministerial Safe Schools Project, catering
for both inland and coastal schools. The Youth Camp Programme is an important intervention in the attempt to
assist young people. Risky behaviour of young people in the identified schools is high and includes substance
use and abuse, including alcohol and drugs, early sexual practices, violence and crime, physical inactivity, etc. A
total of 131 learners from 15 schools and 28 educators and officials attended the camp in the Northern Cape
during July 2008. Some 98 learners from 14 schools and 11 officials, educators and SAPS representatives
attended the camp in the Western Cape during September 2008.

Ensuring that all teacher development programmes prepare teachers to teach in a manner
which promotes human rights and the dignity of all people

Teachers from the nine selected Ministerial Safe Schools Project received training and materials, including CDs
on the Exploring Humanitarian Law (EHL) Module, aimed at providing learners with the necessary skills to
make rational choices in times of conflict. Monitoring of the pilot programme in the Western Cape, aimed at
integrating the EHL Module in the Grade 9 Life Orientation Learning Areaq, is ongoing.

The Directorate also distributed Stories that Talk, published by Heartlines, to all nine provincial departments of
education (PDEs). The books are available in all the official languages of South Africa and are used in primary
schools to promote values and a culture of reading.

A second edition of the booklet, My Country South Africa — Celebrating our National Symbols and Heritage,
aimed at schools, was distributed to all nine provinces for further distribution to schools by the end of September
2008. This guidebook focuses on national symbols, in order to build and strengthen a sense of national identity
amongst learners and educators. The guidebook aims to support teachers and to strengthen curriculum delivery
on national symbols.

Support for teachers with regard to integrating values into the curriculum, was provided via the publication of the
Values Mate and SABC education programmes. The first edition of Values Mate focused on qualities of leadership
and commitment to public service, and provided educators with practical examples on how to incorporate these
concepts into their classroom practices. The second edition focused on the Bill of Responsibilities, as a way of
strengthening the values of responsible citizenship, including environmental awareness and responsibility.



The specifications for a guidebook for teachers on the Bill of Responsibilities had been approved and a draft
document was received from the appointed service providers.

A guidebook for teachers was compiled to coincide with the exhibition on the 30th anniversary of the death of
Steve Biko. The guidebook includes activities that could be used in the classroom, and has been distributed to
schools that offer History in the FET Band. The purpose of the guidebook is to support teachers and learners
when dealing with the Black Consciousness Movement period in history.

The Institute of Justice and Reconciliation (IJR) developed a set of learning and teaching materials on the TRC
for FET schools, and it was agreed that teachers would need to be engaged before using the materials in
the classroom. The material was reviewed by provincial History Curriculum Co-ordinators. Provincial officials
agreed that there was a need for training programmes that would focus on the material and how to teach
sensitive topics in the classroom. Support for the 1JR is ongoing.

The Directorate supported provincial teacher training workshops on oral history methodology, so as to support
teachers in strengthening the quality of participation in the annual Nkosi Albert Luthuli Young Historians
Competition, organised by the Directorate. This oral history project emphasises the values of tolerance and inter-
generational dialogue, identity, and an understanding of the participation of individuals in the transformation
of communities.

A booklet, Amandla, on key historical anniversaries, accompanied by suggestions for teachers on how to use the
resources in the classroom, was distributed to all schools during 2008.

Promote social cohesion and a national identity by celebrating unity in diversity within a South
African and broader continental identity

The Flag in Every School Project, under the auspices of the Department of Arts and Culture (DAC), is aimed at
installing flags and flagpoles at all South African schools, in order to build and strengthen a sense of South
African identity and nationhood. During the period under review, the goal of the project was to reach 1 000
schools. The role of the Department of Education in this project is to support the DAC's initiative, by collecting
data on schools without flags and flagpoles, via the provinces, to assist the DAC’s tender process. Some 11 000
schools in need of flags and flagpoles were identified and details were forwarded to the DAC.

The training programme for provincial and district officials to mediate in the utilisation of the booklet, My Country
South Africa — Celebrating Our National Symbols and Heritage by schools, continued. Two national symbols
workshops were conducted in the Free State, three in the Northern Cape and KwaZulu-Natal respectively, and
one Gauteng during the period under review.

A team of experts was appointed to revise the contents of the National Schools Pledge, after an analytical report,
based on public comment, was submitted to the Minister.

The Directorate continued to provide support to the Historic Schools Restoration Project. The identified schools in
the project continued to establish and strengthen their association with alumni, with the support of the Directorate.

Rehabilitation of communities in line with TRC recommendations

Draft Guidelines for the rehabilitation of communities, in line with TRC recommendations, have been developed
and are still with the management of NSFAS. The Directorate continued to facilitate the funding of education for
TRC victims, in conjunction with the Department of Justice and Constitutional Development, as well as NSFAS.

Support for the IEC’s Voter Registration Campaign

The Directorate co-ordinated a meeting that took place with provincial representatives and the IEC on 13 and 14
January 2009, aimed at strengthening the Voter Registration Campaign in the provinces. The meeting agreed
that the IEC provincial officials should collaborate with provincial Values Co-ordinators, who are based at the
PEDs.



Commemoration of historically significant anniversaries

Youth dialogues on values and human rights

The Directorate conducted two youth dialogue sessions. One was held for coastal provinces and another was
organised for inland provinces. The theme of the youth dialogue session was Education changes lives, changes
communities. Young people discussed the legacy of former President Nelson Mandela and the values of human
dignity, freedom, equality and responsibility. Ten learners from Grades 10 and 11 from each province attended
the sessions.

Advocacy and media
In 2008, the Directorate embarked on an advocacy campaign, via the print media and radio, to engage
learners and educators in conversation on values and the programmes offered by the Directorate.

The Values Mate supplement

The Directorate published two editions of the Values Mate publication. The first edition appeared as a supplement
in the Daily Sun and City Vision newspapers during September 2008, as part of the 90™ birthday celebrations
of former President Nelson Mandela and Mrs Albertinah Nontsikelelo Sisulu — both liberation struggle icons.
The second issue was published in February 2009. It focused on the values of respect, responsibilities and
resourcefulness. It profiled the Bill of Responsibilities for the youth of South Africa, and showed how learners
could contextualise the Bill in their daily lives. The publication also addressed environmental awareness, which
is one of the responsibilities mentioned in the Bill of Responsibilities. It also captured the views of learners on
values.

SABC educational radio programmes

The Department of Education initiated regional radio programmes to be broadcast between August and
September 2008. The programmes focused on constitutional values and programmes offered by the Directorate:
Race and Values in Education. Provincial Values Co-ordinators and officials form the national Department of
Education participated in live shows discussing, infer alia, the Schools Pledge, the Youth Dialogues Programme
and the Bill of Responsibilities.

The Nkosi Albert Luthuli Young Historians Oral History Competition

The Directorate conducted the annual Young Historians Oral History Competition. Ten learners and three
educators, who were selected via provincial adjudication processes, attended the national adjudication in Cape
Town from 1 to 3 October 2008. The award ceremony and gala luncheon took place at Kirstenbosch National
Botanical Gardens in Cape Town. The adjudication process was preceded by a one-day oral history workshop
for provincial history curriculum specialists and Race and Values co-ordinators. The workshop also focused on
oral history methodology by way of examples. The quality of work produced for the competition had developed
enormously and adjudicators noticed a significant overall improvement.

Competition for schools in celebration of the 90th birthdays of former President Nelson Mandela
and Mrs Albertina Sisulu

All learners were invited to participate in a competition in celebration of the 90th birthdays of former President
Nelson Mandela and Mrs Albertina Sisulu.

Nearly 2 000 entries were received throughout the various provinces. Officials from the Department did the
initial selection, based on originality and creativity. The main criterion was the focus on the values and qualities
of leadership that both the former President and Mrs Sisulu have demonstrated through their lives of struggling
for freedom in South Africa.

Exhibition in celebration of the life of Nelson Mandela

The exhibition in the offices of the national Department of Education in Pretoria, was based on the Madiba
Legacy Series, a comic book series of eight books that tells the story of the Madiba'’s life and beliefs with regard
to forgiveness, human dignity and reconciliation. Anglo American sponsored the series. Copies of the series
were distributed via Independent Newspapers, as well as directly to schools. A further exhibition was mounted
at the Apartheid Museum in Johannesburg.



The Amandla booklet for schools on key historical anniversaries
A booklet, Amandla, on key historical anniversaries, accompanied by suggestions for teachers on how to use the
resources in the classroom, was distributed to all schools during 2008.

5. Reviewing Adult Education and Training (AET) and the implementation of the Mass Literacy
Campaign

The objectives and priorities of the Directorate: Adult Education and Training, as articulated in the
2008-12 Strategic Plan of the Department of Education, are as follows:

(a) To expand the provision of Adult Education and Training formal programmes.
(b) To develop and maintain sound policies and systems in Adult Education and Training.

Expanding the provision of Adult Education and Training formal programmes

Reviewing the ABET System

The Ministerial Advisory Committee on the Restructuring of the Adult Education and Training System in South
Africa completed its work. The report was submitted to the Minister by the Chairperson of the Committee on 3
November 2008.

The Minister gave directions for the role of the Ministerial Committee to be clarified, for a colloquium be held
in order to table the report to stakeholders, and for a broader consultation process to take place on the basis
of a Green Paper.

The Minister engaged the members of the Committee on 5 March 2009. During the meeting, the changed role
of the Committee was deliberated. A draft Gazette was developed to capture the new role of the Ministerial
Advisory Committee on the Restructuring of the Adult Education and Training System.

A colloquium was also held on 5 March 2009, where stakeholders engaged with the Ministerial Committee’s
report. A number of stakeholders provided responses to the report. The colloquium reached consensus on the
importance of the report and the process for reviewing the Adult Education and Training system. During the
colloquium, an activity schedule was tabled with regard to the process for the development of a White Paper on
Adult Education and Training.

It was also agreed during the colloquium that further engagement on the report would be necessary. Provincial,
as well as stakeholder consultation was to take place on the basis of the report.

Adult Learners Week 2008

Adult Learners Week (ALW) is an international advocacy campaign, endorsed by the United Nations Education,
Science and Cultural Organisation (UNESCO), which serves to promote adult education, including literacy and
basic education. ALW is celebrated in South Africa at a number of local adult learning centres, in prisons and
in schools, as well as at provincial and national level by all stakeholders, including the national Department of
Education.

This 2008 theme, Adult Learners Week: Inspiring a Nation to Learn, was in support of the theme of the United
Nations Literacy Decade (2003-2012), focusing on literacy and empowerment. The Directorate worked in
partnership with the Adult Learning Network (ALN), the Department of Correctional Services, other government
departments, trade unions, SETAs and NGOs, in celebrating Adult Learners Week 2008. The launch of Adult
Learners Week took place on 24 July 2008. The South African ABET Development Agency (SAADA), an aoffiliate
of ALN, funded the launch.

An Adult Learners Week 2008 conference was held. The conference engaged on issues pertaining to Confitea
VI. Given that a Country Report on Adult Learning — South Africa had already been developed, a discussion on
the report was held and preparations for regional consultations took place.

A discussion on the preliminary analysis of the key issues, which the Ministerial Advisory Committee on the
Restructuring of the Adult Education and Training System had identified, was held.



A further key issue that the ALW conference deliberated, was improving curriculum delivery at adult learning
centres in the public and private sectors. Part of the discussions at the conference centred around the various
models of adult education delivery that could serve as examples of best practice.

A National Strategy on the Articulation of the Mass Literacy Campaign and Formal AET Programmes
A Strategy for the Articulation of the Literacy Campaign and Formal AET Programmes was drafted in collaboration
with the Directorate: Adult Literacy.

The articulation of ABET and Kha Ri Gude took place by means of the development of materials at ABET Level
2. Learning materials were completed for ABET Level 2 Communication.

As part of the articulation activities, a process was put in place pertaining to curriculum and educator support
development. Draft learning programmes were developed for ABET Levels 3 and 4. In addition, a curriculum
workshop was held for stakeholders, in order to develop a process plan for the revising of the ABET curriculum.
Arising from the discussions, was an undertaking to analyse and review current curriculum innovations with a
view to providing national guidance on the curriculum. The initial work done in this area will contribute towards
the broader discussions on the restructuring process.

A National Strategy for Alternative Learning Approaches in the Delivery of Adult Education and
Training

The operational plan also called for the development of a strategy pertaining to alternative learning approaches.
Alternative learning approaches centred around the use of radio, as well as information and communication
technology to deliver adult learning programmes. The strategy that needed to be developed on alternative learning
approaches was overtaken by the work of the Ministerial Committee. Preliminary work on the development of
programmes for ABET, using computers, was done via a partnership with the Bridges to the Future Initiative.

The Ministerial Committee’s report proposed that facts pertaining to different learning approaches be recognised.
The report proposed the recognition and provision of formal, non-formal and informal programmes in a new
Adult Education and Training System. The Committee’s report highlighted the importance of the articulation of
these different approaches. The report also proposed that further work be done on the provision of ICT-based
programmes for adults.

Developing and maintaining sound policies and systems in Adult Education and Training

Norms and Standards for Funding Adult Learning Centres

As part of the implementation of the Norms and Standards for Funding Adult Learning Centres, the activity
pertaining to an audit was postponed to 2009. The focus of the current year’s activity was on piloting of the
Norms and Standards for Funding Adult Learning Centres. In preparation for the pilot project, the following
activities were undertaken:

*  Requesting provincial management plans on the roll-out of the Norms and Standards.
*  Developing a state-of-readiness questionnaire for provinces.

*  Developing a self-assessment check-list for public adult learning centres.

. Calling for the selection of pilot centres by provinces.

A two-day workshop was held with the provinces on the piloting of the Norms and Standards for Funding Adult
Learning Centres. One of the recommendations arising from the meeting was the need to establish a task
team to look into the costing of ABET programmes. The major challenge facing the roll-out of the Norms and
Standards was identified as a lack of funding, which impacts on the development of mechanisms, such as the
funding formula for adult learning centres.

Conditions of Service

The Directorate is tasked with monitoring and reporting on the implementation of Conditions of Service. Meetings
have been held with Directorate: Educator Provisioning and Employment Conditions. Given that the approval
of national Conditions of Service is linked to the work of the restructuring of AET, the approach was therefore to
ensure that the administrative systems worked more efficiently with regard to the payment of ABET educators.



A number of provinces initiated steps towards an interim resolution pertaining to this matter, pending decisions
at national level. Mpumalanga, Gauteng, the Free State and North West put in place mechanisms unique to their
context. While a revised draft document has been developed, the lack of a national framework on Conditions of
Service remains a challenge for the sector.

6. Facilitating the implementation of school sporting activities and enrichment programmes
The Sport for Development Programme

UNICEF signed contracts with service providers to expand the Sport for Development Programme beyond the
nine Ministerial Schools for a 12-month period, from November 2008 to October 2009. Two hub schools per
province (selected from the 65 high-priority schools per province) and four other schools in the community
around the hub school are being engaged in the roll-out phase — i.e. 10 schools per province. Support to the
nine Ministerial Schools will also be sustained during this period.

National Monitoring Strategy: Safe and Caring Schools

The Ministerial Project on Safe and Caring Schools had been initiated in 2006. The Department, in collaboration
with the provinces, implemented several interventions across the 585 schools. These ranged from the provision
of infrastructure facilities to various developmental programmes. A National Monitoring Strategy was developed
to determine the impact that the various interventions were having on the incidence of crime and violence at
the 585 schools. The Strategy was circulated amongst the provincial School Safety Coordinators for their input.
The provinces were requested to identify five schools per province at which the Strategy would be piloted. It was
envisaged that this pilot project would commence in April 2009 and would be concluded by the end of July
2009.

Framework for school sport programmes
The national School Sport Calendar for 2009 was compiled and circulated to both provinces and schools.
Provinces then developed their calendars further.

The draft School Sport Policy requires further attention, in order to strengthen and guide implementation at all
levels of the system. A final copy will be available during the 2009/10 financial year.

National and international school enrichment programmes

v National Schools Language Festival: Over 200 learners from across the country showcased their public
speaking, poetry and debating skills at the Department of Education’s annual National Schools Language
Festival, which took place at the Swan Lake Manor and Conference Centre in Pretoria from 10 to 12 July
2008. The objective of the festival is to promote the values of responsibility, Ubuntu, reconciliation and social
cohesion, as well as to ultimately preserve language as a living heritage in South Africa. This year’s theme
was Our future, my responsibility. The format of the festival is currently being reviewed.

v' The South African Schools Choral Eisteddfod: The 2008 Eisteddfod was coordinated with the theme,
Education changes lives, changes communities. The format of the event has been reviewed and planning is
under way for the 2009 event. Some 7 839 learners, representing choirs from all nine provinces, performed
at this year’s event, which took place at the Coca Cola Dome in Randburg from 3 to 6 July. Approximately
67 500 learners were involved in the provincial events culminating the national event. This excludes the
number of learners who participated at all levels of the event, culminating in the respective provincial events.

v South African Schools Football World Cup Competition: The partnership, comprising Education, Sport
and Recreation South Africa, the 2010 FIFA World Cup LOC™, and the SABC, was officially launched at
the Moletsane Sport Complex in Soweto on 10 May 2008. The launch was officiated by the Minister of
Education, Mrs GNM Pandor, the Deputy Minister of Sport and Recreation, Mr G Oosthuizen, the CEO of the
2010 FIFA World Cup Organising Committee, Dr D Jordaan, a board member of the 2010 FIFA World Cup
Organising Committee, Dr Essop Pahad, as well as a representative from the SABC. Some 7 957 schools
from 81 districts across all nine provinces registered for the competition. The district knock-out competitions
started in all 81 districts as from May 2008. Many districts finalised the district eliminations and identified
a winner that will represent the district at provincial level. The provincial finals were coordinated by the
Departments of Education and Sport and Recreation, in partnership with the 2010 FIFA LOC.



The Adopt-a-Nation Schools Confederations Cup was launched on 27 September 2008, and the provincial
finals were held between October and November 2008. A total of 16 schools participated in the Adopt-
a-Nation Tournament on 18 October 2009. The Eastern Cape adopted Spain, the Free State adopted the
world champions, i.e. ltaly, Gauteng adopted the host country, i.e. South Africa, KwaZulu-Natal adopted
the African Union, Limpopo adopted New Zealand, Mpumalanga adopted Egypt, the Northern Cape
adopted Brazil, North West adopted the United States of America and the Western Cape adopted Irag.
Initial discussions have started between the provinces and their adoptive countries.

A database of all the schools participating in the competition is in the process of being drawn up.

The FIFA 2010 World Cup LOC hosted the inaugural awards to acknowledge extraordinary achievements
in the field of work. My 2010 School Adventure won the best campaign of the year award, and the GRULAC
Annual Tournament won the award for the best community outreach activity for 2008. The details were
published in Diski 2010, which is the internal newsletter of the LOC. The awards won during the project
encouraged the LOC to request that the national finals for the Schools Confederations Cup be postponed
to May 2009, in order to build a hype around the FIFA Confederations Cup, that was scheduled to start in
June 2009.

It is of importance to note is that, thus far, the Department of Education and the PEDs have spent approximately
R11 million collectively during the implementation of the first phase of the Participation Pillar Campaign.

7. Support and strengthening curriculum-driven HIV and Aids activities via peer education

The Directorate: Health Promotion prioritised four health promotion programmes, in line with the Strategic and
Operational Plans, namely:

*  School Health Screening — Schools as Centres of Care and Support.

* HIV and Aids prevention in schools.

*  Drug and Substance Abuse Prevention and Education.

*  Peer Education and an HIV and Aids Care and Support Programme.

Care and Support of Teaching and Learning (CSTL)

The pilot phase of the SCCS Programme, facilitated by the Media in Education Trust Africa, which was implemented
in three SADC member states, (i.e. South Africa, Swaziland and Zambia, ended in June 2008. In South Africa,
the SCCS pilot programme was launched in two provinces, namely KwaZulu-Natal and North West.

A qualitative evaluation of the pilot programme was conducted by the Johannesburg-based CEPD and the
Nairobi-based Nottawasaga. The subsequent report was accepted by the SADC and by the three participating
member states. The report was also submitted to the SADC Education Ministers.

During October 2008, a Monitoring and Evaluation Logical Framework was finalised and accepted by the SADC
and the funding partner. The participating member states have now been tasked with reviewing and formulating
their own individual Monitoring and Evaluation frameworks, which will be fed into the SADC regional framework,
with a view to a system-wide implementation of the CSTL initiative.

In light of that, South Africa partnered with MIiET for the implementation of CSTL at country level, sourcing funds
from the Dutch Embassy. All provinces, with the exception of the Free State, which was unable to participate,
were convened for an Interprovincial Forum, held in Cape Town during November 2008. This was intended as
a learning and sharing forum for the provinces, as well as an opportunity for the DoE to take stock on what was
happening at provincial level, regarding CSTL.

In the SCTL initiative, the Interprovincial Forum is regarded as a simulation of the SADC Forum of the participating
member states. This allows the Department to ensure congruency between what is happening at regional level,
as well as at country level, with a view to easier reporting, monitoring and evaluation. The Department left the
Interprovincial Forum with a number of significant tasks for the year ahead.



School health screening under the Lethimpilo Campaign

This is the inter-sectoral and interdisciplinary screening of learners between Grades R and 4 for minor ailments,
as well as for broader health and social barriers to learning. Initially planned to be conducted in four provinces,
namely KwaZulu-Natal, as well as the Northern, Western and Eastern Cape during the 2008/09 financial
year, the Lethimpilo Campaign could only reach out to two provinces, namely the Northern and Eastern Cape.
KwaZulu-Natal was ahead with its plans and conducted its own Lethimpilo Campaign, independent of national
funding. The Western Cape could not accept the Lethimpilo Campaign offer, as there was already a very similar
programme running, namely the Social Transformation Programme, which had been implemented by the Office
of the Premier, and in which the Western Cape Education Department was playing a leading role.

The national Department gave approval to the Directorate: Health Promotion, to redirect the deflected resources
by conducting the next campaign in another province and by publishing Health Mate. Limpopo Province was
then selected as the best possible option, as part of the Back-to-School Campaign. However, this revised plan
could not materialise, due to the suboptimal enthusiasm demonstrated by the province in question, which
threatened the prospective success of the Campaign.

HIV and Aids prevention in schools

The Directorate participated in SANAC Subcommittee meetings. Plans are currently afoot to establish the
Department’s HIV Forum. All branches would be expected to be represented and to serve on the Forum.
Furthermore, in March 2009, the Directorate collated and submitted an integrated progress report on the
implementation of the DoE’s National Strategic Plan (NSP). With the establishment of the departmental Forum
on HIV, reporting on the implementation of the NSP should be greatly improved.

The Directorate was represented in the SANAC Programme Implementation Committee (PIC), on the Prevention
Technical Task Team (TTT), in Monitoring and Evaluation Core Group Meetings, and in the Interdepartmental
Committee, led by the Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA).

The draft document on HIV and Aids prevention and education, as well as the strategic and operational plans
are is in the process of being developed.

The Health Mate

The Health Mate, a four-page publication that is a quarterly insert in the Daily Sun newspaper, has been well
received by the target audience and beyond. The Health Mate aims to interact with adolescent and teenage,
primary and secondary school learners on issues of health and wellness and, addition, young people who have
left school can also be reached. The main aim of the publication is to equip learners with the knowledge and
skills so that they would be able to make informed and positive health and lifestyle choices.

Two issues were published during the 2008/09 financial year. Letters of encouragement and appreciation were
received from learners and other interested parties around the country. The Directorate: Health Promotion
continuously responds to the letters and personally interacts with these outstanding young people on behalf of
the Department.

Drug and substance abuse prevention and education

A learner Z-card, on prevention of, and education on drug abuse, was compiled and distributed to provinces.
Key messages were developed as part of the Ke Moja — | am fine without drugs Advocacy Campaign, led by
DoSD and supported by other departments. This is to ensure that messages developed by various departments
are consistent and aligned with government’s programme of action. These messages were broadcast, as well
as distributed via pamphlets during the launch of Ke Moja — | am fine without drugs, in Frachshoek and in
Cape Town. Some pamphlets will also be distributed during health promotion campaigns, on International Day
Against Drugs, on No Tobacco Day, etc. The Ke Moja Integrated Strategy was launched in KwaZulu-Natal.

The Education Laws Amendment Bill (ELAB) was enacted in December 2007. Regulations on the Bill, a
collaborated effort of the Directorate: Health Promotion and other branch directorates, as well as the Directorate:
Legal Services, were developed and made available for public comment. Education posters (58 sets) on the
harmful effects of drug and substance abuse, as well as and HIV and Aids, were distributed to all provinces.
Interprovincial workshops and follow-up support were scheduled to take place from July to September 2008.



The Guidelines for the Prevention and Management of Drugs and Substance Abuse were developed and
discussed with the Directorate: Legal Services and other branch directorates. Educator training on drug testing
and random searches were conducted during September 2008. The provincial roll-out of the drug testing and
random searches were taking place as from October 2008.

Peer Education and HIV and Aids Care and Support Programme

Peer Education, was implemented by AED in the four pilot provinces, i.e. Mpumalanga, North West, the Free
State and KwaZulu-Natal. The contract with AED ended in August 2008. The draft manual on Peer Education is
currently being revised by a consultant, with the support of USAID.

With 50 learners (two learners per school) and 25 educators (one educator per school), Peer Education training
camps were targeting 25 schools per training camp. The Directorate also took a step towards refocusing the
HIV and Aids approach regarding the implementation of the training camps. It seeks to strengthen and deepen
the implementation via Peer Education in the next financial year by, inter alia, increasing the number of learners
and educators attending the training camps, involving parents and by paying attention to other social issues.

The Sight-4 School (S4S) Project

Following the Minister’s speech at the Vision2020 Congress, which targeted health professionals in eye care
from around the African Continent, the Department and the South African Optometry Association (SAOA) had
bilateral discussions about the eye-screening of all learners entering school in Grades R and 1. SAOA submitted
a proposal to the Department on how this could be piloted in the Western Cape, as a province that was prepared
for this step. The aim is to have these eye-screenings at the beginning of each year as part of the enrolment of
first-timers in school, to signify the importance of early identification in terms of SIAS. Due to a lack of funding,
the S4S Project was carried over for review and discussion during the 2009/10 financial year.

The Health Mate

The first issue of the Health Mate was published in November 2008, and it received a positive reaction from both
Senior Management and the public and large. Following this, the Directorate was left with one more issue to
publish before then end of the 2008/09 financial year. A meeting was held with the creative team to brief them
on the framework of the second issue, and they had to provide a time schedule for this issue. The focus of the
first issue had been aligned with the summer holidays whereas the second issue was scheduled with a back-to-
school advocacy approach, to be published during the last quarter of the 2008/09 financial year.

8. Ensuring the successful and increased implementation of the National School Nutrition
Programme (NSNP)

School nutrition

The National School Nutrition Programme provides daily meals to 6 041 million learners in 17 899 public
primary schools, funded by means of a conditional grant, with a total budget of R1, 9 billion for the 2008/09
financial year. The key objectives of the programme are to enhance the learning capacity of learners from the
poorest communities by providing them with much-needed nutrition; to strengthen food production initiatives in
schools; and to promote a healthy lifestyle via education on nutrition.

During the period under review, the Programme was successfully implemented, except for the impact of high
food prices and the cost of the majority of staple foods, which constitute the backbone of the School Nutrition
Programme, soaring. The National Treasury has however, responded by increasing the NSNP budget with an
inflation adjustment, providing for a slight increase in meal costs in the same year. The adjusted allocation made
provision for the increase of the daily cost per meal per learner from R1,50 to R1,75. In terms of the 2009-2012
MTEF cycle, additional funding was also provided to extend the programme to Quintile 1 secondary schools
during 2009, phasing in all Quintile 2 and 3 secondary schools in 2010 and 2011 respectively.

A successful 2009 MTEF bid process provided for an increased budget for the year, from R1,5 billion to
R1, 9 billion, which was announced by the Minister of Finance in October 2008. A total of R250 million was
allocated for inflation adjustment, and R93,7 million for the preparation for Quintile 1 secondary schools.



During April 2009, the Directorate developed an easy-to-use Guide for Secondary Schools in preparation for the
NSNP. Some 2 950 Guides, aimed at Quintile 1 secondary schools, were distributed to all provinces. The Guide
was well received upon distribution to members of South African Principals Association (SAPA). An additional 2
500 Guides were printed for Quintile 2 and 3 secondary schools, and will be distributed during the next financial
year. The Guide is also available on the departmental website. Some 100 copies formed part of the DoE
display at an Open Day, organised by the Department of Agriculture and the City of Tshwane’s Environmental
Management Department.

Monitoring

A total of 2 982 monitoring visits were made to schools by provinces and districts. It was found that 1 160
community-based cooperatives were acting as service providers for the programme, by providing food supplies
to schools. Furthermore, about 39 417 food handlers were engaged in the programme and received an
honorarium of between R300 and R500 per month.

The NSNP had been faced by a few challenges, which were addressed. For instance, the Department successfully
intervened in the Sekhukhune District in Limpopo, following reported cases of non-feeding of learners due to
the withdrawal of service providers who had been affected by high food prices. Feeding resumed without much
delay.

Strategies to ensure that the provinces submit and adhere to their business plans were developed. The focus is
on ensuring that they meet the minimum norms for programme implementation in full. Failure to adhere would
result in funds being withheld in terms of the Division of Revenue Act.

Capacity-building
A total of 838 capacity-building workshops were conducted on food safety, nutrition education and sustainable
food production.

KPMG was commissioned by UNICEF to conduct two-day workshops in all nine provinces, in order to disseminate
the key findings of the KPMG Evaluation Report, as well as to develop implementation plans. All plans have been
submitted to the DoE. UNICEF also assisted with the layout, design and printing of 27 000 copies of the report.

A total 450 000 comics, aimed at promoting a healthy lifestyle amongst Grade 5 learners, entitled Wanna Be a
Star¢, were printed distributed to all provinces.

Sustainable food production by schools

During the period under review, some 6 503 food gardens were planted and sustained by schools. This initiative
was supported by the continued capacity-building workshops conducted by provincially-based DoE officials. As
part of the FAO/DoE Technical Cooperation Programme, FAO is in the process of finalising the appointment
of consultants to conduct a baseline study and develop manuals on Nutrition Education and Food Production.

The Department participated in the Inter-Ministerial Task Team on High Food Prices for input towards a Cabinet
Memo, which has been submitted to Parliament, with the Department of Agriculture as the leading department.
The main aim was to outline interdepartmental responses and/or interventions to combat high food prices.
Further participation in the War on Poverty, launched by the Office of the President, provided the Department
with an opportunity to raise the profile of the NSNP.

Stakeholder participation

The NSNP was profiled during World Food Day celebrations in all the provinces, in a collaborative effort with the
Department of Agriculture. NSNP information brochures were distributed, seeds were donated to schools, trees
planted, and DoE officials utilised this platform to raise awareness of the NSNP

9. Conclusion

In conclusion, the Branch is proud to report that most of the activities, as envisaged for the 2008/09 financial
year, were completed as planned. Several activities were deprioritised to streamline Branch operations. Such
activities are highlighted in Part 2 of this Annual Report.



During the period under review, the Higher Education Branch continued to provide strategic direction for
the development of an effective and sustainable higher education system, and to manage government’s
responsibilities regarding the regulation of the higher education system. The strategic objectives and associated
plans are based on the Ministry’s commitment to support the core work of higher education, i.e. teaching and
learning, research and community service, via an improvement in the quality of the higher education system, as
well as enhanced efficiency and effectiveness.

The strategic objectives and achievements of the Higher Education Branch during the period under review, May
be summarised as follows:

1. The provision of regulatory support to the higher education system.

With regard to the amendment of higher education legislation, priority was given to the introduction of the NQF
Bill, the amendment of the Higher Education Act, as a consequence of the conclusion of the NQF Review, and the
amendment of institutional statutes. In this regard, the draft bills were approved for consultation and published
for comment. Institutional statutes were assessed to ensure that they complied with the Higher Education Act.
The Higher Education Amendment Act 39 of 2008, was promulgated on 27 November 2008, and in February
2009, the National Qualifications Framework Act was also published. With regard to the HEQF, the Department
is in the process of finalising the development of transitional arrangements for its implementation. In this regard,
several meetings have were held to discuss implementation plans.

As a way of improving the registration processes of private higher education institutions and reviewing the
regulations for the registration of these institutions, the Department has been looking at alternative approaches
to improve the integration and development of a seamless administrative system for the registration of private
HE and FET institutions. In this regard, the process of amending the regulations pertaining to private higher
education institutions was initiated, in order to facilitate the integration of the registration of private HE and
FET institutions. Furthermore, with regard to progress made with the registration of private higher education
institutions, 68 institutions were evaluated and their conditions of registration were amended. Applications for
the registration of eight institutions were processed, four were approved and the other four declined. Two
cancellations of registrations were processed. Three appeals were processed and all three were declined.
Registration letters and certificates of 80 institutions were signed and issued by the Registrar. The accreditation
cycle of 10 institutions was extended. Four institutions changed their legal names and two new sites of delivery
were approved.

2. Academic and research support to the higher education system

The Department maintained its support to higher education institutions, by empowering their research offices,
so that they could improve the management of research information. In order to achieve this, all the higher
education institutions were visited between 2008 and March 2009. During these visits, presentations on the
Research Output Policy were made, and questions from the Academic and Research offices staff were answered.
As a way of improving and opening up the channels of communication between the institutions and the
Department, a series of communiqués to institutions was introduced to serve as a guide in preparation for the
2009 research output submissions, as well as to assist institutions with the interpretation of the Policy.

In addition to the Policy on the Measurement of Research Outputs, the Department is in the process of developing
a policy for the measurement of research outputs with regard to creative and performing arts. A task team was
established to provide advice on the development of the above-mentioned policy. Furthermore, with regard to the
policies on the utilisation of research and teaching development grants, the Department took into consideration
the CHE's advice to the Minister on the recommendations made by the respective task teams. The finalisation of
this process has been accelerated to allow the Department to continue with the development of the two policies,
and to subsequently initiate their implementation dates for the Minister’s consideration and approval.

Moreover, the Department added to its list of priorities, the development and implementation of a policy
framework on the utilisation of Clinical Health Science training grants. This policy is aimed at enhancing the



utilisation of the Clinical Health Science training grants, as intended by the institutions, as well as improving
the assessment of applications for, and allocation of these grants. It is envisaged that the 2009/10 subsidy
allocations would be determined by using the progress reports submitted by the institutions, and for these reports
to be aligned with the new policy.

The Department furthermore always endeavours to ensure that PQMs of all the higher education institutions
are in line with their approved vision and mission, as well as with the requirements of the HEQF. This is done by
continuous assessment and reviews of the Programme and Qualifications Mix (PQM) of these institutions.

3. The provision of institutional support to higher education institutions

As part of providing support to national student organisations and institutions, with regard to improved student
leadership, the Department is currently preparing for the implementation of the Framework on Student Leadership
Development, which was finalised in 2007. The date for implementation of the Framework has been scheduled
for September 2009. With regard to providing support to institutions, so as to improve the functionality of the
institutional forums, the Department is in a process of finalising the development of a policy framework for
improved efficacy of institutional forums at higher education institutions. To this end, the Institutional Forums
Report was finalised and accepted by the Department. Consultation on the outcomes of the report commenced
in March 2009.

The Department also provides support to institutions on the appointment of their Councils. Between 2008 and
March 2009, the Department was able to finalise ministerial appointments to all institutions, and also managed
to compile and finalise a database of potential ministerial appointees to councils.

There were several precipitating factors that preceded the request in August 2008 for the Vice-Chancellor
of Mangosuthu University of Technology, Prof. Aaron Ndlovu, to be placed on leave and then suspended.
The appointment, on 15 September 2008, of an independent assessor by the Minister of Education in terms
of section 44 of the Higher Education Act 101 of 1997, and the subsequent report that was gazetted on 10
December 2008, indicated that, in order for good governance and management to be restored at the institution,
the Minister should appoint an administrator in terms of section 41A of the Higher Education Act 101 of 1997.
Prof. Jonathan Jansen’s appointment as Administrator was announced by the Minister on 2 February 2009.
His term of office was scheduled to end during June 2009. As part of its ongoing support, the Department has
provided advice to the Administrator and his team.

On 24 March 2009, the Minister approved the appointment of a task team to assist the University of Fort
Hare (UFH) with developing a turnaround strategy that would ensure financial stability for the institution. The
DoE’s discussions with UFH and an analysis of the information provided, indicated that a two-step approach
was required. This entailed a diagnostic phase of 10 days, followed by discussions on the proposed plans.
Once s broad agreement has been reached, it is envisaged that a longer and sustained intervention would be
undertaken.

With regard to the issue of the provision of support to higher education institutions in implementing their planned
responses to the HIV and Aids pandemic, the Department continued to facilitate the processes relating to the
HEAIDS Project, so that the Project could continue to be implemented as per approved parameters. Finally, the
European Union approved the extension of the HEAIDS Project and the Minister also approved the allocation of
additional resources to enable the Project to be extended to 2011.

4. Internationalisation of higher education

The Department is in the process of finalising a consultative document that will contribute towards the
development of a framework for the internationalisation of the higher education system. The particular focus
of this framework is on IBSA and on the development of the African Continent. During the period under review,
the Department continued with its responsibility of enhancing the dissemination of information resources on
international study opportunities to higher education institutions, via the latter’s international offices. This was
achieved by maintaining of an updated database with current international scholarship offers, as well as by
developing improved mechanisms of communicating information to the institutions. The Department is also



engaged in the European Union’s Erasmus Mundus Scholarship Programme, which will, upon implementation,
be open exclusively to South Africans. Preparations for this Programme are progressing well and a proposal
would be submitted to the EU head office in the near future.

5. The strengthening of planning to support the delivery of quality graduates, required for the
country’s social and economic development

During the period under review, particular emphasis was placed on refining the enrolment planning process,
particularly taking into account the availability of resources, as well as national human resources development
priorities. Good progress has been made regarding the assessment and evaluation of institutional data for 2007
against approved targets. Accordingly, the Department uses HEMIS data of the preceding year in the assessment
of institutional performance. The Department is also in the process of finalising the review of a Framework for the
Macro-funding of Higher Education. The document was revised in accordance with the Minister’s requirements,
and was then submitted for consideration by both the Minister of Education and the Minister of Finance. With
regard to the allocation and monitoring of the use of approved earmarked funds to higher education institutions
for output efficiency, infrastructure development and foundation programmes, the Minister has already approved
the release of the Infrastructure and Efficiency Funds for the 2010/11 and 2011/12 financial years. Institutions
are therefore required to submit outstanding progress reports for evaluation and consideration.

The cohort study, which commenced using 2000 data, has been refined to enable a sophisticated tracking of
student progress. Currently work is being undertaken with new data available from 2006/07.

6. The achievement of institutional diversity in the South African higher education system

During the period under review, continued technical, financial and policy support was provided to higher
education institutions, as part of the restructuring process. The Department continued with the facilitation and
acceleration of the establishment of national institutes of higher education in Mpumalanga and the Northern
Cape. Those involved in these envisaged institutions are consulted and advised on the development of their
strategic plans, before and after submission to the Department. Upon submission, the Department assesses the
plans to ensure that they are compliant with the requirements of the PFMA, and subsequently forwards them to
the Minister for consideration and approval.

7. Monitoring and evaluation of the higher education system, including equity, access, diversity
and outputs

During the period under review, emphasis was placed on the evaluation of the restructuring process, in order to
assess the extent to which policy objectives had been met. The Department put projects in place to strengthen
systemic and institutional performance indicators. The DoE commenced with the evaluation of the system’s
performance, with a particular focus on enrolment and graduate output, which was being conducted, using
HEMIS data. In addition, the Department embarked on a process that is aimed at improving the Higher Education
Management Information System (HEMIS). This project involves improving HEMIS, with a view to the planning
and monitoring of the HE system. In this regard, amendments to HEMIS software were initiated and the process
has now been completed. The process included the insertion of new codes, which was necessitated by changes
to academic policy.
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STATEMENT OF PRIORITIES

The Office of the Director-General, under the supervision of a Deputy Director-General, oversees and provides
support to the Offices of the Ministry of Education and the Director-General. The Chief Directorate: Ministerial
Services, reports to the Minister and the Deputy Minister respectively. It also oversees the implementation of
departmental programmes and initiatives and assists in servicing Parliament, Cabinet and Cabinet Clusters.

Also located in the Office of the Director-General, are functions pertinent to International Relations, Media
Liaison, National and Provincial Communication, National and Provincial Coordination and Support, and
Internal Audit.



Annual Report 2008/09

‘ajpiopalId J81YyD dYi Yim pabpoj

21D PUD ‘Y4 BY} PUD JSISIUIY S} Of PAHILIGNS SI9M
S3IYIAIDD 9A0QD By} uo spoday “400Z Y21OW 9 - Z
wiouy pisiun| Ul pjay ‘siojpuipioo)) dnoisy Bunjiop
10} doysyiom pausAuod-y3Qy up ul pappdidiund 3oQ
ay] "pa|qp} som podal b aleym ‘gn0Z 12qorQ €7 -

| Z wouy pisiun| ul pjay ‘Buyesw ssyiwiwo)) Buliesig
pup Noaing yIQYV Y} Jo 9duppUSByD Jisy} Bulinp
pepoddns aiem 5 pup Jsysiuiw ay| ‘800z snbny
/1 - G| wouy ‘sazud sy} 9AI9231 O} HLWNG DAVYS
8y} papuayp oym ‘sisuuim uolpedwo)) Abss3 sjooydg
Aibpuodag HAVYS dY} paisoy 30 dYL "Pa|gp) Som
Hodau o a1aym ‘800z AINf G - | WOl ‘piquinz ‘pypsNT
ul pjay ‘uondNp3 JO SIaISIUI JO 92UIBU0D) DAYS
Sy} papuayp s|pidIyo Joq pup Jaysiuly Aindeq sy
"800C ®UN[ O - /| WOl PUD|IZOMS Ul P|ay ‘sJjsiulyy
JO @apiwiwo)) paypiBajul HAYS 8y Ul uoynddippd uo
papoday "800 APW 6 - G woly anbiquinzoyy ul pjay
‘@2uaisjuo)) Y3y @y ut uonpddiund uo papoday

‘uondD Jo
sup|d |pjusuluod
pup |puoiBai jo
uolp-juswa|dwi
84 Uo v 4t
pup suonpsiunbio
|pJBoINW ‘Joq
2y} o} papiwqgns
spiodau snjpjg

"60-1PW o} g0-1dy

'sdno.b

Buriom ‘sBuiesw
29jILuWod
|P21UYd8} ‘swinioy
‘sBuljesw
[oJap|IHNW 8y}

ur uoypdiipuond
SR|PEyuY
sjoddipund

pup puspy

‘AvdaN pup

NV @4 ‘'Oavs a4
jo sdnouB Bunjiom
/SO ILwIod
|P21UYDd} /swunio}
/sBuljeaw
|oIap| I NW

uo spioday

‘90p0|d

o0} jou pip sBulesw asay} s “pajqo}
aq jou p|nod podau sseiboud ayj ul
pauolUSW JOU SSLIUNOD 8y} UO spoday

*ajpIoalIq $21YD) 3yt Yim pabpo| aup pun

V4@ 8Y} pup JBJSIUIW 8Y} O} POHILIGNS BIOM SBIHIAIDD
2A0QD 8y} uo spoday ‘6007 Y21PW GZ - 7 Woly
PI2Y DO PPUPMY/YS Y4 PUD ‘BOOT J9GWIBAON 9 - G
wioly PLIoRId Ul pay ‘@agiwiwo)) uonpjuaws|duw|
[p122dg PLIBBIN/VS 244 '800T 1290P0 6T - LT WOl
psoysury ul Builesw HNG DYA/VS @Y 1o pajussaidal
fuswippdag '800¢ #sNBNY / - i wouy pspysuly| ul pjay
‘Buyeaw maiaey DN DYA/VS @Y+ PUP ‘800 APW £
- 61 wouy pLBBIN “pInqy Ul peY "DNE PHIBIN/VS au4
o pajussaidal juswippdaqg '800Z BUNf GZ - #7g Woly
PAUING ‘ABPUOD Ul PY ‘DDF PaUING “800Z |MdY

€ - Y2IPW € WOJ4 DOLRY Yinog Ul pjay ‘ONg D¥d/VS

‘uoyp.iado

-0 |puolLINPa

uo sjuawaaibp
paubls "30Q o4
papiwqns sBulsaw
DO @4 o spoday
'sBuyesw DO

1o papiwgns
spiodau snjpig

"60-1PW o} g0-1dy

‘puab|y

pup anbiqupzoyy
‘pup|1Izomg
‘oyjosa ‘bupmsiog
0¥a ey
‘opupmy ‘pjobuy
‘puBbIN ‘uppng
ul sbupesw HOr
PUP DDdr “ONE
ay} ul aypdiiupd
pup pusy

"PodIAISS SuOIS
-siWwo)) |pIalo|ig
juior uo spoday

*SaAlDIIUL
yo0a44no pun
[[EETLITNT T
‘|paaipjiq

DIA ‘DILYY Ul
uoyPINP Ul
diysiapns)
pup Apappijos
S,PI4Y yinog
uayibuays o)

1SV3 37dAIW FHL ANV VOIddV

OJSINN ANV SNOILV13Y TVNOILVNYILNI

NOILJY1SINIWAY -1 SWWUHYOOYd

:31vd0l1d3dIa 43IHD

09



"92UDJJUOD SIY} YIIM ISISSD O} J01IDJ2I29S QVdIN dY!
Of POPUOD9s Som [PIDIHO HIAD V "600C §° #PY 4oHB|
3y} ul 9o0[d O} [|IM Y2IYM ‘@InjjND pUD UOLPINP]

UO 92Ual19JUOY) [PUOHDN P jsoy o} papoddns Buiag sl
AVd3N "800¢ 4°qUWSAON Q¢ - 81 WO} PARQY SIPPY
ul pjay ‘sBuleaw sapiwiwo?) Bulieslg pub noaing
=NAENAIOLD) B [RRAISLR) [(IUI9) [RETRURITS @xd) (Mo ZES U
ay] “A||nyssa20ns palinyd aiam sBunesyy Bulesw
SI9JSIUIW JO ND3ING Y} PAJIDYD JJSIUI Sy} pup
d9yiwiwo) Butisalg ayy paiipy2 9 2YL ‘8002 |1y €
— Yoo | € wouy pidoiyig ul pjay ‘sBulesw noaing
pup sayiwwor) Bulsals JYaIwWOD aY} uo papoday

4vAIawod
Jo sBuieaw noaing

ay} pup SayILIWOD)
Buliesig ayy
pa4ioyd

"60-1PW o} 80-1dy

‘syjuow
xis A1oae 9op|d a3p}
Yoiym ‘sbuyssw
noaing ay} JIoYd

O} I3JSIUIV 8y} 10}
pup ‘sBuyssw
29jjllwoD)
Burisalg ayy J1oYyd
0} |pJBUSS)-10palI]
ay} 4oy @op|d Ul 8D
sessad0.d |PoUsIBO|
pUD 9Al-DUSIUILPD
Aipssadau sy}

oy} ainsug

QLIOIEYREN
AVd3IN pup
uolun ULdLY 8y}
yiim uolpiadood
uo spoday

NV 844 pup 30Q

8y} yioq o} papiwugns alem sunjd uoydo sy} uo spodsy
"600C YW /T - g WO DIUPZUB] Ul P|3Y ‘OOLYY
ul juswdojaas J0§28G >00g pup WN|NDLLND ‘AdDJB)]
UO 92U8I8JUOD) UDDLI-UDY MY Yt PUD ‘6007 Y241OW
9 - 7 wouy jpBausg ul pjay ‘uoldy 4O UD|4 UoLDINP]
JO 8PP PUOISG By} JO SIOJDDIPU| SIUDWIOHSY UO
doysyIop\ [PI1UYDR] PaLIsay ay4 jo pajussaidal
som juswipindaq oy syebuny sisyt Buyssw ul
SSLJUNOD MY YIIM YIOM O} J18pJO Ul ‘00T Jequade(
ul AomioN ul pjay ‘Buiesw |aAs]-yBiy w43 up ul
uoynddipnd s jpuDBjRIdeS YIQY Yt PetoH|IPR) 30Q
8y ‘siuswiiwwod spi Buyesw ypum jebioy uo st 3oQq
8y] "UOIPY JO UD|4 UOKPINPT JO BPPIBJ PUOIS By}
Jo uoypyusws|dwi ay} uo ps|gp} som piodau ssaiboud
V "800 AINf G - dUN[ Qg WOy DIqUIDZ ‘D3OS Ul
pley ‘Buiesw siajsiuly UOHDINPT JO 82UIBJUOD)
DAVS 8y} 10} padojeasp som UOIDY JO UD|4 8ppIaQ
puo2ag Ny 8y} jo uonpjusws|dwi sy} Uo podal

'30Q PuUL NV 8y} o}
paiwgns sunid yno
-||o4 3y} jo spoday

"60-1PW 04 g0-1dy

‘uonpjuawa|dwi
aJinsus o} poddns
AIpssadau ay} yim
§sIssy ‘saypup.q
8y} Wolj s|pIdIo
Yim sBuiesw
uoND}I|1DD} PUD
uoNDUIPI00D p|OoH

‘uonodNp3
JO appd9g puodag
NV 844 jo supiq
uolpy 8y} jo
uoypyusws|dwii
sy} uo poday

/0



Annual Report 2008/09

‘900|d &0} pip suonpdlgnd jo Bulpys
pup uonpwLIouIl JOo aBuDYdIXe JareMOH
“ajowi|d |Poyijod juslind sy} o} anp
‘92p|d 93D} Jou p|nod bou| of HISIA v

‘p4aoBau siy} ul pajqpy spm podau

V "800 J9QUISAON| / UO “JOMBWINIY SUOHDILI|ONY
VS UO UOLDWLIOUI 810YS O} |DIDIHO IPNDG D PJSOH
"D Und|/YS Y| @Yt uo ssaiBoid mairal o} Aysiuiy
8y} pup Asspquug upiupl| ay} usamjaq Bulesw b

uo papodsy '800Z 42qoPQ 0L - 9 Woly uolpBajep
Jay pup UOHDINPJ JO JBISIUIN UDIULSS|D] 8y} JO
Bunsoy s,juswpindag oy} Uo papioday ‘sedUDISWNIIID
usssalojun o} anp pauodisod som ‘@O 1snBny

0Z - /| 104 pa|npayds ‘uoynonpg Jo Iajsiulyy UDLIAG
ay} Aq yisiA  ~aunypuBis 1oy Appals mou aip puo
pasi|pul} alem sjuswaalBo ubw(O pup UDLIAG 8y

‘paubis
uolypiadood uo
sjuaweaIby v4Qq
pup J0(Q 8y} o}
paiwgns ssaiboud
uo spoday

"60-1PW o} g0-1dy

‘aulss|od pup
un.| ‘bou) ‘pigoIyY
1pNoG ‘ubwWQ
'pUAG pjndind ul
pup ‘4sp3 |PPIW
8y} Ul S8LUN0d
UHM SHSIA uolps!
-Ip1j1wpy abupydxg

‘sjusw-9a.160
uolpiadood ubls
pup ssw-wnibo.d
|pJIBYO|INW pUD
|DJ8iD|Iq UIDfUIDW
pup dojaAsp o}
saLuNod Bulyisia
jo Buisoy sy} pup
'O} SYISIA JO Jaquinu
ay} uo poday

‘Isp3 3|PPIW
Sy} Ul SaLUNOD
UYiim suoipjad
RSP NW
pup [RI3}DIq
uIRUIDW puUDP
dojanap o)

‘Buipuad ||ys aup uogpL pup psuINg
Aq spisIA “epis oyjosa] eyt Aq pauodisod
SOM JISIA Y} inq ‘600 A1onigey

BuLinp 3o 8y} §IsiA o} pajnpayds

SDM OY}0sa] wouy uonnbajep v

JeE (s [TRYEN
spiodas pup ‘goQz 1equisidsg 9| uo uonpdNP3 Jaybiy
JO J3jsIUIW URIQIWBN 8y} AQ 4ISIA D pajsoy juswpindsQq
ay] ‘uoyn1adood JaypNy SSNISIP Of UOOIBWNY) Ul
sppdiapuNod dIdy} Yim jaw os|o sy *(3D|) uoyodnp3
UO 85U8I8JU0D) [PUOHDUISIU| Ui} 8y} 1o} uoypindaid
ul ‘gp0¢ Jequiajdeg ¢ - 9| Woly uoosswny) Ul pjay
‘@dualeju0d |puoIBal D JO S|DIDIYO JO PUD JBISIUIW
Ainda sy} Aq @duppusyp sy} uo papoday “pa|gp}
som piodau 0 pup ‘8O0Z AINf LE- 62 W4 D¥A
‘pspysury| ul spsload 1oy spuny J12110s pup sI0UOpP
aboBus o} eduaIaUOd diysioupnd O PapPUBHD S|PIDIO
JoQ ‘pa|qpt som podal b pup ‘gz Jequisidsg ¢ - |
WO} {ISIA UOIOSLIDI[ILID} D UO DUDYLS) WO} S|DIDIO
Joluss jo uonpBajep p pejsoy Joq ‘pausyibuails

919M S8LIUNOD 8y} YyiMm suolp|al [Jajo|ig pinbai

SIY4 Ut pa|qoy alam spoday "800 APW 9Z- 91

wouy 1Py wouly sjuspnys jo dnolab o pajsoy

|00Y2G AipwiLig dual| 8yt pup ‘gOOZ APW 9| - g1 Wols
D413 woly uoyoBajep B pajsoy 3o ay] ‘800T |Hdy
8 - £ WoJp ipuning o} pup ‘800z |UdY ¥ - € Woky
upbpng YNog o} JIsiA s,uoyoBajep Joq uo papoday

‘paroiddo

pup padojsrsp

SOM >lJoMawn.y
“PaHILgNS SyISIA
wipa)| |PI1uYds|
8y} uo spoday

"60-1PW o} 80-1dy

‘oyjose
pup pupn|IZOMG
IIoW ‘uoqpg
'(Apjpuo)) paulng
‘Ipuning ‘Dpuomy
‘¥ 2yt ‘uopng

:saLunod Buimoj|oy

8y} oy @opo|d Ul
a1p sassadoud

SAl-DIISIUILIPD
pup |PousIBO|
8y} 4oy} aInsus
pup ayoyi|1o04

*SOAIDIIUI
yopauno ayj jo
uoypyusws|dwii

8y} 10} JIomawny

ay} dojersp o

‘saLyunod Apuoud

Jo Buysoy pup ‘o}
SHSIA UO spoday




'800¢ 429qoPRQO L1 uo

ododwi ui ‘ng syt Aq pspuny ‘swiwnibolyg poddng
21N2NUSDIIU| [O0YIG B} JO JOAO-PUDY |DIUOWSISD
8y} paypuIpIo0)) '800Z 19900 9| UO suoypynsuoD)
[PNULY N3-VS 84} Ul pajpdidiing *800T 1290R0 9
uo 92p|d 3004 Yaiym ‘podsy gDJO dYi JO aspa|al ay}
Jo4 Jpuiwas d1jgnd sy} paypuIpIoo)) ‘8ONT 1equisidag
| Uo pJay ‘spadxe yjim suoissnosip 9|qpj-puno.
Bupuipiood Aq youno| sy} 1oy uoynipdauid ul ‘waysAs
uolpINPa UPDLYY YiNOg ay} uo podsy DI 8Y4 oF
asuodsal A12120s |IAID |DIjIUL BY} PaPY|IdD4 "800Z duUnf
| | uo pajussaid som piodasy MalAsy DIPOLIDY |PSISAIUN
S,02LU4Y/ Y4NOG UO SUODPUBWWOIY Uuo podal dn
-MO||0} /"800 |HdY G| U0 PASUSY Ul [1PUN0D) siyBry
ubwny s,NM @Y o} siybry uowny uo poday malrey
JIPOLId [PSISAIUN S, 001y Yinog Joy indul 8Apb JoQg
ay] usjsiuly sy} Aq paubis usaq soy yaiym ‘ysn syt
UM (OYOS) tuswpuswy jupnic) juswsalby aAialqo
21Bajoug B jo Buiypip oyt pajoy|iong 'g00Z APW

G uo wniog [pIaolig YSN/VS Yt PUP ‘800Z APW 8
UO suUOID}NSUOY) [PNUUY YSN/YS @Yt Ul payodidiping

‘sBuijeaw
UoID}|NSUOD |PNUUD
{0 pa|qp} alem
spodau ssauBbouy

"60-1PW 04 80-1dy

“Yijpem-uowwo))
oy} pup N3 oy
‘NN 3y# sp yans
‘suolyosi-unbio
|DIBIO| AW YHM SD
[|om so ‘wnibjag
PuR SN 34k
‘S8114UNOD JIPION
Ay} “HN 3y} ‘@duniy
‘SpuplJayieN Yt
SD Yyons ‘YHoN

3y} WOy sa1uN0d
yim sswwniboud
uolpiadood
|piao|Iq fuswia|duwi)

‘padIales pup
paubis ‘payoiobau
sjuawaaIby
uonpiadoor))
tuswdojereQ

Jo JaquunN|

‘sawwpaboad
yopna4ino pun
[RA3iD I NW
‘Ip494o|Iq
uiIpjUIPW pup
dojansp o1

SdIHSY¥INLY¥Vd TVvE019

‘BuioBuo aup swwn.iboid sy}

Josuods o} N|W YHMm suoissndsiq “swwnibold sy} jsoy
0} pealbp soy | HN "pored 1nsA-aAly D 18AO UOI||IW

€ /¥ Ajerowixosddo o Buyunowo ‘4ebpng pajsod
-A||n} © Aq palupndwoddn ‘padojarsp spom |psodoud v
‘diysiosuods s|qissod 10} NJW Pe§oRjuod os|p puo
awwpiBolg 8y} jsoy o} umol adp)) 4o AjisisAlun ay4
payonouddo Jajsiulyy ay] swwniBold saipnig uisispg
3|pPpP!IW 8y} Bulysi|goiss jo adods pup sduppoduwil

ay} Buluinjdxa ‘sjou ydeduod jouiq o Buidojeasp
SJUDYNSUOD Ul Paj|Nsal YdIYm ‘piomio) ADm sy} ssnosip
0} paudAuUOd spm Buyesw vy “jpsodoud yoip o Aq
paiundwoddn Usisiuly ay} O papiwgns som podes b
‘HsiA oy} Buimo||o4 "awwnIBOIg 8y} UO UOISSNISIP LIDIS
04’8007 APW 1 - | Wioly PLIAS payisia s|odio 30Q

"paysi|qoise som
swwniBoly saipnig
uI8§sog 8|ppIw

"60-10W 0} g0-Idy

‘awwniBouy

ay} oy Buipuny
Jaypiny H121j0s pup
swwpiBold ay;
isoy o} AysiaAiun

ays Ajuep)

‘AjsiaAiun
payiusp! uo o
swwpiBoly salpnig
uleysng a|ppIW o
JO fuswysi|gnjse
ay} uo poday

72



Annual Report 2008/09

‘Buiobuo aip ‘sjuswieBun.ip [Diap|LY

Jo paup sy} ul A||padse ‘uonpiedood ainyny a|qissod
{nogp suolissnasiq “papus spy poddns juswdojarsp
UO USPOMG YHM UOIDIOCD|[0D JO S|2Ad Juallnd ay]
‘payiomp Buiaq si apis upisnipjag ay} Wwouy ssuodsal

Y "SiusWwaaiBy JUSWUISAOL)-0}-JUBUUISAOL) IO}
papiroid A|UO MD| UDDLIY YINOG JDU}L PALLIOUI S19M
Aay] "SeLJUNOD OM| 8Y} Usamiaq juswaalBy Ausiuw-o}
-Ausiuiw o Joy jpsodoud B piomioy jnd supisnipjeg ay|

“JuswaalBy sy} UBIS o} Jajsiuly Sy} 10} UODSLIOYIND
|onuspisaid Bunjess ‘Aduspisaly sy} o} paliajel usyy
SOM JuswaalBy DSN/YNLIGYY Upwias) Yoip ayi o}

SJUSLUIPUSWID PaR}I|IdD4 *SSLUNOD Jouop Aq spasu
|piusWdO|oASP O} JUSLLYILIWIOD [DIDUDUL PASDaIDUI IO}
S||P2 Y2Iym ‘uonpippaq ojsQ ay; pajdopn Buiesw
[2A9]-yB1y 43 8YL '800C 4equiedaq ul Buleaw [9A)
-yb1y y43 g ay4 ul aypdidiund of ADMION payIsIA 0S|
Aey] ‘uolypiadood jo spaib mau aiojdxe o} pup|ul O}
HISIA UOIDSLIDI|ILUDY D UO padyInquia “asiulyy oy} Aq
P3| ‘uoyoBa|ap [949]-yB1Y v "IVSN YHM jusweaiBy
OVOS J0 € 'ON tuswpuswy jo Buiubis puo
JUSIPUSWID 8y} PaL}I|IDD4 “DISSNY PUD DILYY YINOG
usamjaq suopdlipnb [pJIpswW jo uoliubodal [pniNW
oy} o} pIoBal YHM SNSUSSUOD SpIM-10}29S 21NdS

0o} slap|oya|pis usamiaq suolpiobau Bulioyi|iony
Ajuaiand si 3o 8y ‘g00Z Jeqweds || Uo pidNT IS
10 P[eY ‘D3 1| PISSNY-PILLY YNOS d} Ul papodioliing

‘paJapisuod
som uonpiadood
alniny pup pajqo}
aJom ssaiboud
uo spiodau juiof

60-1oW 0} g0-1dy

'SLIUNOD DIPION|
8y} pup snupjeg
‘uspamg “yn sy
‘wniBjag ‘edun.y
‘pupjaJ] ‘pupjuly
‘siepup|4 ‘pissny
UHM SWNIoy/suols
-SIWWOD) |pUolDU
-1g/|p4aip)ig

ul aypdidiLing

"PadIAISS SWINIO)
/suols

-SILWOY) |PUOIbU
-1g/|p4aip)ig

julof Jo JaquinN|

‘N3 @Y} PUD POLIYY YINOG UsaMmiaq
wnio4 anbBo|oi(g 10§28g UOHDINPT Y} JO JUBUYSI|DIS
ay} Bunpuipiood jo ssedoud sy} ui st Joq 8y
(CISREIN[N) @4 BRAS|LHLED) ([R5 [SRIRR (NS (0
tuswiAod oy} Pa4py|I9R4 *600Z Y2HPW G - 7L Woly
‘uoypBajep uosiad-suiu b Aq palundwodD ‘YdInasay
pup uonINpP3 Jaybil Jo Jalsiuly ubiBamioN 8y}
PajsOH ‘blIojald pup umo] adopy) ‘Bingsauupyor ui
S|00Y2S UPWIRD) B} 4P (DSN/INLIGYY) UoHPIOND
|00ydg Auppuodag [pNBuljig UDJLY YiNOG-UDWLISD)

0 Jo uoldNpou| 8y} Bululeduo) ‘Aupwiieg) jo
oljgnday |PI1apa4 Sy} JO JUSWIUISAOL) Sy} PUD DI
yinog o d1jqnday Sy} JO JUSWIUISAOL) By} Usamiaq
juswealBy ay} jo Bulypip sy} payoyl|Ido4 "OY4 Y}
pup 43DINN ‘sepusbo NN Yyim saiiAlpp uo Bulpioda.
Sy} paypyI|Idpy Joq Yt a1aym ‘600z A1pnigeq g|

Uo suolpyNSUO) [PNUUY NN/VS @Y+ Ul pajodidiuing

73



'600¢ Y24PW Ul

200]d 500} Y2Iym ‘DOl O} PID UO SDILISPDID 8saulyD)
pUD UDDLYY YiNogG Jo Buljeaw b pajpi|idn) pub ‘go0g
Ajnr ur @opjd oo} Yoiym ‘ewwniBoid suonpige|ed
109A-0 | 9yt Yim 4 8yt peroddns ) sdiysiojoyds
juswiuiaAoB uo pbulyD ul Apnys o} spUSPNIS S Jo
JUSWIYINIDaI BY} SBIRJI|ID0) 84jUD) BY| "SIPNIG 8sauIyD)
10} 914US7) BY} JO JIOM B} MBIASI O} UOKLINPT

Jo Ausiulyy 8sauIyD) ayi yim play som Buiesw vy

‘pajusws|dwil
S8 DRl S GRS
juswealby ay}
Ul SalYIAIDD By |

'80-6ny o} go-Aowy

‘AysiaAaiun
yosoqua||aig 1o
(SDD) seipnis
asauly) Joy
aljua)) ay} o
3Jom ey} ajpulp.Io
-0d pup Jojiuoyy

'sedUIA0Id U} Of JUSS PUD PaJIDIIUOD
9( p|Nod s1aydpay} alojeq sjuswalinbal
118y} Jo s|ipjep oy} apiroid Ajjpwiioy o}
seouiroid ayy 1oy Bulyiom st Joq 8y

*SOLIJUNOD I8y} WO} SI8YIDS) §INIDS. Of SSALDIIUI
poddns o} Appal 81D pup JO( By} §SISSD O} oopBpUN
9ADY PauIadU0D sjuswUIaA0B ||y ~e2p|d oo} ‘siaydney
9DUSIDG PUD SOYDWIBYYOWN JO JUsLUIHINIDEL 8y} UO
‘suoissiwwio)) ybBiy uousbiN pup upydAB] ‘upipu)
‘unAusy| 8y} ypm suonplobau dn-mo|jo4 ‘paydiodsip
a1oM juswiyinIdal U s3Pnd UOKPWLIOU| *SPUBjIaYIeN|
8y} pup pIpu| ‘DAUSY ‘DPUDBN JO SBISSDQIT Y} YiMm
p|ay a1em suonpioBaN A||0qo|6 siaydpay inidal of
Jepiaoad ad1a18s b pajuloddo spy Joq ‘Buiobuo sip
SI0JDDNPa 92USIDG PUD SOHDWSYIDW JO JUSWIINIDSI
Sy} UO S3ISSDCWIS SNOLIDA YHM suolploBaN|

TR GHets Gl
SISDQ JOPJUOD B UO
pakojdws siaydps|

"60-1PW o} g0-1dy

'S9LIJUNOD Y}Dam
-uowiwoy) woly
slaydpa} 9ouaIdg
pup solpoWayoY
JO fuswyInIdal By}
uo sjuswaslBn
S{y|1504

'3oQ 8yt

JO |04}U0D By} puOAaq BI0jelaYj} Blom
puD 8pIs UDIPU| 8Y} UO SPOW SUOISIDBP
JO {|nsaJ D a1am asipiadxe pup s||1Ys Jo
JaysupJy ay} Buiaeiyoo ul shpjep ay|

‘SWwia)sAs

aApadsal sy} ul sebus|pyd pup sedidnId §saq o
300] 0} ‘8007 JOQUIBAON Ul S|PIDIPO SSBIDUSIA JO
HISIA UODSLIDI|IWID} B Pajsoy Joq "PaAsIydp Bulaq jok
JOU SIy} Ul pa}yNsal 8ADY 9IS UDIPU| 8y} UO sAbjap

3y} 4nq ‘DIPU| WOy S||1fS JO Jaysuply ayy Joy unjd ayy
Jo uoynjuswa|dwi sy} 10y 9o0|d Ul a1p sassed0.ud By}
[IV "NOW pauBis o jo uolpjuswa|dwl sy} 99SI19A0 ||IM
10U} S3{ILIWIOD) JUBWBBDUDYY JUIO[ D JO juBWIYSI RIS
3y} uo ‘400g Apnigae4 1oy pauupid Buleaw sy}
psuodisod sy pipu| “uouPINPJ 4O Ausiuly UDIPU| By}
yim dn p1 Buimoy|oy st pup Apjap siyj §nogp pauladuod
s1 3o@ 8y| ‘uoupdINpa |pInJt pup juswdojeAsp PLISIP
yioq uo Aojep o pajsanbal sby apis upipu| 8y
"aslj1adxe UOIDINPS |DINJ SD [|9M SD ‘SIaydD8} 92USBIDG
PUD SOHDWBYIDYY JO JUSWEINIDSI Y} UO JBUOISSILIWIOD)
yB1H upIpy| 8yt yum Buyssw o pasusAuod Joq
“aunpndep Jlay} ul Abjep b pajsenba. eduls spy pIpU|
"juswidojeAsp JoLIYSIP UO JO(J 8y} SSIAPD O} DLy
Yinog o} spiadxa uplipu| Jo yoyodsip ayy payoy|idny

‘asipiadxa pup s||js

4O J9ysupip ay|

"60-10W 0} g0-Idy

‘90uaIdg
pup solpWayoW
jo Buiuing)
Buiyoosy ayt puo
juswdojarsp
oLysip ‘uonpdNpe
|D4NJ JO SDBID By}
ur Buip|ing-Aypodod
Uo DIPU| PUD DI
yinog usamjaq
fuswealby sy} jo
uonp-juswa|dw|

“yinos

8y} WOl saLuNod
pup P21y YiNog
usamjaq padiaies
pup paubis
sjuawealby
uonpiedoo)
tuswdojereQ

Jo JequunN|

‘Yyinos sayi

w04y S9LuUNod
puD LIy
Yyinog uaamjaq
uolPINPa ul
uonp.Iogn||0d
4940346 ab.ioj o)

74



Annual Report 2008/09

'SpUN} pajiWi| O} 8NP ‘PAJOPOWILIOIID 8] P|NOD SPAID
eloud o jou ynq ‘suonniysul aAladsal B} Usamiaq
2o0|d 300} spuapnys Aq SHSIA LOYS “ySg| JO IXapuod

By} Ul S21WBPPIP UDLYY Yinog o} poddns BuloBuo
sapiaoid 3oQ "800T 4990RO G| U0 ‘Hwwng vsg| pig
8y} jp pajusseid spm sewodino uo podal vy “siedod
pajuasaid sOILWLBPDID By} PUD ‘9OUPPUSHD Ul S|DIDIO
JOQ OM} pPUD SDILISPDID UDLDLYY YINOG | | Yim ‘jsnBny
G| - €| Wouly [1zoig ul 930|d 00} JDUIWSS JIWSPIY

‘sIpuIWas sy} jo
siodod pajussaid
SOIWBPDID S

"60-1PW o} g0-1dy

‘|'zog

Aq pajsoy siouiwaes
SIWepnID ay} 1o
SjUSPNYS UDDLIYY
yinog poddns

pup ‘ul ajodidiny

‘awwn.boud d1wspoon

ay} Jo suolpuny sy} uo Buleaw s,UoISSILIWIOY) ay}

o pa|qp} a1em spoday ‘sdnoib Buniom ysg| syt

Aq pasodoud sp ‘uoydp jo sup|d sy} paroiddp aypig
40 spPeH 8Y| "800T 48qoRQO Ul ‘PIpu| Ul juwing
VS4| PIE Yt PUSHD jou P|NOD UOKDINPT JO SIBISIUIW
upl|1Zo1g PUD UPDLYY YiNog ay] ‘sBulesw esay} jo
apIsino pjay aiam sBulesw juiod |pd0} UOLLINPS
93141 "800 1290 Ul PIPU| Ul pup ‘8OQZ SnBny Ul
|1znag Ul ‘8O0Z ABW Ul JSap Jesiawog ul sBuljesw puo
SaIIAOD Sg| BulpioBau sjuswyiuwod sy |0 jow JoQq

‘Buigesw
S,UoISsILIWOY) 8y}
{0 pa|qp} alem
spiodau snypig

'80-1dy

‘Buiesw

wnuo4 anbopiq
/UOISSILIWOD)
[PI34o]L (VSgl)
RRLIVATHIOS
‘|izoig ‘pIpU| By}
ul ojoddipIng

‘PodIAISS 81D SUOIS
-SILIWOY) |PIayp|L|

"8PIG JO SpPaH dAldadsal sy}

Aq pabupyd a1em Buyssw sy} 1o} saop
8y} 8snNpdaq PaAp|ap SPM |1ZRIg Yim
NOW 8ay4 jo Buiubis ay) “ssiuNWWod
JIWBPDID ,S3LUNOD BAIDAdSal By} Aq
uoynddiupd ||ny 81nd9s o} 9|qpyINS
jou auam saypp pasodo.d ayj sp
‘awwniBoid suonp.ige|ed 10sk-Q |
Sy} O} pa3UIl| 8Q JOU P|NOYS IDUIWLSS
3U} 1Py} 4[4 SOPIS yioq sp pakpjep
SOM ‘DUIYD YHm uoldunluod ul

pl8Yy 89 O} UpuUIWSS JIWBPDID 8y |

‘JuswealIbo

Jo uolpjuswa|dWl 8y} MIASI Of UODINPT JO IBJSIUIW
UDIpU| 8y} YHM play spm Buieaw [pIsyp)ig [nyssedans
V "600¢ Ul ainjpubis s|qissod oy juswsaibo yoip

0 Buimsirel 81D PISAD|PY PUD PILYY YiNOS ‘8007
JaqopQ ul ubis o} bipu| o} duy pauup|d ay} epPwW
P|NO Jaisiuly UDI|IZDIG Y} JOU UDDLY YINOg ay}
Jayylau 8snpdaq ‘400z A[1pe ul ubls o} siem |1znig
puD DOLYY YNOS °|1ZDig Yim NOW HRIp 8yt paroiddo
Vv4Q pup rOQ "ewwnibold sdiysinjoydg JusWUISA0L)
puIyD-yS Bulsixe ayy uo puIYD Of SfuspPNIS 88y} juss
os|p 3Joq Jeyo sdiysipjoyds Jo-s2Uo D Uo ‘PUIYD Ul
saa1Bap s,I8ysOW U1y} 10} APNIS O} S|PIDIPO OM} Juss
Jo@ 8y 'sebs|0d |34 JO jusWIYsIqINI By} UO SBIPNIS
Ajijiqispay op o} ‘400z Bulnp Py Yinog o} wnay}
[P21UYd8} D puss o} si pulyD "sabsj|od |34 Buysixe inoy
app.Bdn o} peaibp DOLYY YiNOg pub pUIYD 6002

0} pauodjsod spm ‘DulyD) yiim suonpjas dyowo|dip

JO SIDBA ()| 4O UOHDIQS[SD Ul 4DUILISS DIWBPDID Uy

‘sBuijeaw
UoISSILUIWOD

{0 pa|qp} alem
SSIIAIRD UO
spodau ssaubouy

"60-1PW o} 80-1dy

‘PISAD|PW

pup PQND ‘PIpU|
‘|izoig ‘PUIYD Yum
swNJIo4 Jo suols
-siwwo)) |pJayp|ig
jutor ul aypdidiunyg

"PadIAISS SUOIS
-SIWWoY) |Jato|ig
julof Jo JaquinN|

75



LGS @SSHCION

21D GHS 8y} UO saAlDjussaIday "8oUSIBJUOD DIPaW D
10 Ajqissod 10j29G By} YduND| Of SIBISIUI OM} B} 1O}
ajpp P o Bubjoo| 4SQ Y+ YHM ‘8Bpys pedubApp UD 1
81D 10§28G GHS By} YSI|qD4S O} UOISSILIWIOY) [DUOHDN|
3y} ul suoypyoBaN 0pag SHS 8yt Bulysigoiss ul
pra| sy} 8o} of S Buysenbau /(gsq) tuswdojersg

'Selpoq pajp|al pup
WODLVN Uo aAIss
O} soAlpjussaldal
SO pajoulwou
sispjoys>jis SHS
pup paysijgpjse

“juswi

-dojsaeQ |p1DOg
Jo juswpndasq syt
YiiMm uoynioqnj||od
ut 1083 (SHS)
S92ULIDg UDWNH
pup |pIOG 8y} Jo

‘[9A8] A1o120s [1A1D
pup juswuiarob
40 SUOUBAUOD
pup suoup.IpPIP
'sswwn.boud
OOSaNN °
UOHDPUIPIO-02 pup
uoypiBaul ypm
ssaiboud sy} uo

[PI120G jo juswpinda 8y} OF payIWgNs SPM jsanbal v/ | SPM 101G SHS 8y | 'g80-idsg jusw-ysi|qoysy | Hodau puo sopuow
*sa1d-uaedwod
ODOS3NN [P
‘pauljino ul s1epjoya3pis
alam winiuuaiq A2120s [1A1D puD
§xau 8y} 1oy Juswiuiarob
SSIJIAIOD PajD[ay 0} suoIsiDap ‘[9A9)] |puoIBal
‘pa|qo} spodal ERIEIETI g puo |puoiBbai
"SSI{IALD PUD SUOISIDBP UO papiodal @dusiajuo)) pup passnasip [SIETVET TG -qns ‘|ouoyou 4o
|PI8USL) B} 4O SUOISSILUWOD SNOLIDA Y} PAPUSHD 9J9M 10pI8s Yona poday Bunesw ABayouig s, uols
oym sajpBajep ay} pup ‘pipog aAndex3 ODSINN 10} suoIsIDap 8ouaI8yuo) | -siwwo) ODSINN
3y} JO JaqIBW D ‘UCISSILLWIOY) [DUOHPN| 8y} JO ERIEIENIolg) |pJoUBL) By} 8y} Jo malray
uosiadiioy) ay] ‘8007 APW Ul p|ay spm Buissw sy |pIsuL) '80-1dy ainquysig ay} uo poday

‘suoynsiunb.io
A3@120S [IAD Yypm
Buyniadood pun

spuswipndap
jJuswiuianob
Jayjo Buipnpui
‘DoLYy yinos

ul SSIIAIID
OJSINN
9}pUIPI00d
pup apabajul
JAEYNTREITERCT]

0J2S3INN

'9dU8.8JU0D-3|8} D 40} AjigR|IDAD BulBupLip yum
padusLiadxa a1am salyNdIyIp sp ‘sppdisiunod upljizoig
pup upipu| 8y} Aq padp|ap aiam suoissndsiq “ButoBuo
21D suolNISUl Yjim suolpioBaN "uaaes Buluiowal
BY} Ul POA[OAUI 8q O} SDIWePDID s sabpinodus

inq ‘spsloid suiu sy} Jo oMy yim uni o} st Joq 8y
‘spsloud sy} ul juswebnbua so1WepPID sy 1oy Buipuny
[PUCTIRIRPE HEES [ 2fe@) SUIL IR 7 ([PA2Ae) o) Ul
SpOAIBJUNOD U1y} J98W Of 9ADY P|NOM SDIWSPDID U}
@ouls ‘anjipuadxe pajadxe sy} jeaw jou yybiw spuny
O} DOLIYY YINOG AQ pasind a1em suladuo)) “600Z

ut spsloud vy} jno |04 O} Appal B1OM SDILIBPDID
VsS4l @4y} ||y uonpdnp3 Jaybi uo swwoiBoid

NOW VSd| 8y+ jo uonpjuswa|dwi ayy Jo} |1zoig Ul
JOUIWSS DIWBPDID 8y} j payuap! aiem spaloid suiN

'$951N0D pIoYys
pusyb o} ppoiqo
SI}ISI9AIUN O} JUdS
919M SjuspnIg

"60-10W 0} g0-Idy

‘uoloonp3 JayBiy
uo swwniBouy

VSal 8yt ul sjuspnis
jo uonpdidILng

76



Annual Report 2008/09

"92USI2G Ul USWIOAA 10} pIomy [Da1Q);] Y}
SO |[@M SD ‘@2UusIdg Ul UsWOopA Bunoy Joy swwniBouly
diysmojje4 |pa1O;] ODSINN © POPIOMD SDM §I SO
pup ‘eziid Ad019H7 ODSINN @Yt ‘UolLINPT 9208y Jo}
9zZlid ODSINN Y} UOM DILIYY YiNog “siyBry uowny
JO UolDID|IR |PSISAIUN Y} JO SUOHDIGR[ED Y09 Sy}
BuLinp sLpg ul ODSINN OF PaHIWQNS a1am uolodNP]
SpyBIy UoDWNH UO S|DLIBIDW 6007 92! Wopaai]
SSald PIHOM 8Yi 104 §|DD Bunypuiwou ‘jsenbai o
paiwqgns 0s|o O "UOKDINPS Ul S| | JO 8SN By} Ul
9zZ1ud PYIPYY| | PS| ulg pPwoY Bury ODSINN oY
1o} |ppIog uonpdNp3 Buoiny) ey} jo uolbUIWOU D
papiwqgns 30Q 8y} ‘g00¢ Jequiajdag uj ‘suonniysul
AID1pIa} jusIayip O} juss a1am swio} uonpdlddo
sdiysmoj|a4 y4pasay 1yangqQ 0z1ay/ODSINN @YL

"AopIsji] 10} 8z1id SNIPNUOD) ODSINN

3y} POPIOMD SDM [DION-N|NZOMY Woly spp.Bdn
uoyniad( "UOLRI|IDUOIBY PUD SJUYSN[ IO} BYNHISU| BY}
O} POPIOMD SDM UOIPINPT 8208] 10} 8Zlid ODSINN
V "umo] adby) Ul WNasnyy 01Z| 8y} 40 UOLI|OQY SH
puD 3pDJ] SAD|G BY} JO SdULIqUIBWY By} 10} ApQg
|PUOIPUIBU| B} PRINOUOY S|O0YIS $8UdSY SAl4 “SLID]
O} papiwqgns a1am ‘spybry upwny jo uoyoipPeg
|DSIBAIUN 8Y} B}PIOWSWIWOD Of SUOKPIGS|ED Y09
3y} yum dn ui| joyy saiialop so ul Buibobus som
3oQ 8y sswwniBoud Jpym 4o sulino up pup ‘qINN
pup S3@ UO S8IDUUOKSANE) "UOLDISPISUOD IO}
SLIDJ O} JUSS 9I8M SUOLPUILIOU UODINPT 9209y 10}
9zlid AdDJB}IT By} PUD ‘PIOMY 8DUBIDG Ul USLIOAA
|P84Q);] @Y "UoHPIBPISUOD 10} ‘S ‘ODSINN OF
papipmio} aiem suonndijddo swwpiboid uoyndidipnd
usAag ‘Bulubaw sy pup Abp sy} 1ybiybiy o4

S|O0YDS JUYQY SUWIOS YJIM PauIquIod UOHR)S OIpDI
Ajunwwod |p20| b a1aym ‘AbQ Wopsal ssald o
uoypjusws|dwi ayy 10} AL ub pabun.ip Ajjuiol
JO§28S UODONPT By} PUD JOJDBS UOKDIIUNWIWOYD) BY |

‘pajusws|dwi auam
sswwpiBboud yoiym
19yp ‘0DSINN

O} pajjiugns
suonpoiddo
‘pajouriassip
uoipwIoju|

'60-10W-80-1dy

'skop NN [P2ads
9}DJOWSWWOD O}
SSIHIAID SD ||9M SD
‘s@dUa194U0d pUD
sdoysyiom ‘spiomy
pup sdiysmo|je4
‘swiwiniBo.ly
uonodidiung
1eudSy ey
Buypuipioo)

77



*AlIsISAIUN YLD |INN PUD J10YD

ODSINN P ysijgrise of jpsodoid b payiwiqgns Dl
JO AjisiaAiun ay| ApSIaAlUN SIIM O PaYSIgDISe Som
uoHPINP3 J8ydna) Lo JIbYD ODSINN V 'S|POB 43
ay} Buiasiydp spapmoy sseuboud ssnasip o} ‘8007
JaquiaAoN| Bulinp AjisisAlun SLIM 0 play som Buiesw
Jap|oya3(pss (43) ||V 104 UOKDINPT UY "PajOUILLSSSIP
a1oM SaIHIAIPDD [P Uo spoday "0z AlpNuDf g7 uo
plaY sPm 4007 104 Buljesw uoIssILWOY) [DUOKDN|

IS4l Y| "Se9ILILIOY) J0§28G UOHDIIUNWIWOD) PUD
90UBI2G Y} 1o} P a1am suosiadiioyd-Aindep

pup suosiadiinyd MaN| “WINIUUSIG jUSLIND By} JO J0ak
puo28s ayj} Joy sup|d SSNISIP O} JoW SEBHILUIOD 10}08S
[P ‘6002 Y24PW pup Aipnige u| "siep|oysypis |0

O} PAJPUILLSSSIP PUD PasSSNISIP S.19M 9ADY JUSLINDOP
600 92Uai8juo)) |pIsULY) GDGE ay4 Jof sindul puo
‘ajop o} p|ay alom sBuljea 9apILLILWIOD 10pI8S || "PlY
alom WODLVN ||N} 8y} jo sBuleaw psjnpaydg ‘malral
Japun pouad sy BuLinp sawiy 9a.y} oW HAN| 8Y L
‘saljiolid Jos of s 0s ‘salliAIPD ODSINN 4O 9dusIayod
pup juswuBip sy} 81NsUS O} PAYSI|DISE SEM DA| dY |

‘pajusws|dwil
sswwpiBouid
pup pjay aiem
sBuleaw uo|nBay

"60-1PW-80-1dy

Joyiuow pup sup|d
uonpjuswa|dul
1no dow oy
sBulesw Jopas
Jo|nBau Buiusauo)

‘paye|dwiod som

SPY S49p|oy(dis OOSINN || UC 8SPYBIdP v *600¢
|udy Ul 8d0|d 83D} Of PE|NPAYIS SDM DU} ‘UOISSS
1S181 @yt o4 indul 1ivyy 10} spuswippdap Of Juss SOM
pipog 8AlN39X3 OOSINN Y4+ JO UOISSSS YOG L Yk
0 U P} SUOISIDBP 4O Alpwwins ay] “syuswpndap
Adustadwod ODSINN 40 SO ||P 04 juss Ajjusnbaesqgns
pup pajdopp aiem HAN| Y} 10} 82UBISY JO SWIB|
3y] 600z Apnige4 Gz uo pjay som Buysaw yso)

3y} pup ‘malral sepun pouiad sy BuLinp suoispd0
|DJBABS UO oW HAA| 84 "ODSINN YiMm jusweboBus
s,0011y yinog 1oy uojd p Buidojaasp jo ssedo.d ayy
ut st oy (OMI) dnoisy Bunjiop) [piuswiuiarobiaiu)
UD JO JUBWIYSI|RIS® B} Ul pajnsal ydiym

‘Buiesw Buiuup|d 216s4ous D pausAUOd WODIVYN

‘padojansp spom
8spq-pJPpP P puUB
‘pajuswedwi puo
pajdopp ‘passnosip
a1aMm siap|oyaypis
Jo suolpuny pup
$9|0J U0 sauljepIng

"60-1PW 04 g0-1dy

10085
apoALd ay} puo
sapYd ODSINN
‘suolypsiunBio
Bunpiedood so
yons ‘siap|oyas|pis
UHM suopjal Jo
uouppIosuUC)

/8



STATEMENT OF PRIORITIES

The specific functions of the Branch are to analyse, evaluate and monitor the medium to long-range costing,
financing and resourcing of education in South Africa, and to produce reports, models, plans and policies
required for national leadership in this regard. Furthermore, they are to ensure that conditions, policies and
support mechanisms are in place for effective and efficient labour relations in the education sector in South
Africa, as well as to provide legal and legislative support, and accurate, reliable and relevant information for
decision-making. Lastly, the Branch’s functions are to develop a National Education Management Information
System (NEMIS), in order to support the planning, evaluation, monitoring and management of the education
system.

Key policy issues and programmatic thrust of plans

Over the next period, the Branch’s main programme and policy interventions will be as follows:

* Developing national norms and standards, as well as a Basic Minimum Package (BMP) for the provision of
school infrastructure.

e Strengthening the national Education Management Information System, so as to enhance planning and
monitoring.

* The analysing of, and reporting on education expenditure and investment, as well as promoting optimal
budgeting processes to ensure access, equity and redress with regard to education.

* Ensuring effective and efficient labour relations, as well as the development of education staff, so as to
improve the quality of teaching and learning in South Africa.

* The analysing of, and reporting on, human resources requirements and capacity.

* Developing and monitoring an evaluation framework for reporting on service delivery in education, including
responses to global initiatives, such as the Education for All Programme and the Millennium Development
Goals.

* Developing and maintaining funding norms and standards for all subsystems in the education system.

While the Strategic Plans outlines the five-year objectives of the Branch, the following key priorities will be
attended to in the 2008/09 financial year:

1. Human resources are the most important instrument in ensuring the provision of quality education.
In this financial year, the management and development of human resources will receive additional
attention, in collaboration with the General Education and Training Branch, with regard to teacher
education in support of the provincial education departments, via:

a. Improving the effectiveness of the teacher performance system, as part of the integrated quality
management system, by working with provincial education departments to ensure that all
schools develop effective plans and schedules and undertake meaningful assessments and
teacher development plans. District managers will also be provided with the tools to conduct
stringent moderation of school-based assessments. The Department of Education will also
appoint part-time moderators to evaluate the implementation and outcomes of the 2008
assessment processes. Towards the end of the year a framework for a national education and
evaluation unit would have been developed. These measures would impact on the improvement
in teaching and learning and, ultimately, on the provision of quality education.

b. The recruitment of teaching staff is currently not systematised and a strategy is required to
ensure that every learner has a qualified educator in the relevant subject area, on time. To
this end, the stock of new teachers in training will be increased via the provision of full-cost
bursaries to aspirant educators. The supply and demand at school level will be dealt with via
the development of a recruitment strategy and system.

c. An assessment of the effective utilisation of teachers at schools will be undertaken, and plans
developed to establish how schools match teacher supply to curriculum demands. Schools
will need to report on the quality of applicants for posts and where no suitable applicants are
available, channels will be opened for them to recruit educators from outside the country.

d. With regard to focussed provisioning, every school will be required to offer Mathematics, and
the teacher requirements and provisioning thereof will be determined.



e. The post allocation system will be revised in order to assist schools in reducing class sizes and
match the scheduling of educators to curriculum needs. Teacher allocations will be matched to
the availability of classrooms.

f. Schools will also be required to fill vacant posts within specific time-frames, as allowed by
the Educators Employment Act and, If they are unable to comply, the provincial Education
Department concerned would have to fill the post on their behalf.

g. A profile of teacher utilisation by subject and qualifications will be available by the end of the
year.

h. The Human Resources Management Information System would have been mapped out, and
this system will ultimately result in an operational database system to manage all non-salary-
related aspects of education human resources management.

2. Physical resources for quality education, especially school infrastructure, such as the provision of water,
sanitation, suitable classrooms and essential specialist rooms, such as libraries and laboratories, will
receive urgent attention.

a. The National Education Infrastructure Management System, which has now been completed,
will be operationalised, so that the state of infrastructure at every school may be documented,
tracked and linked to upgrading plans.

b. A comprehensive investment plan will be developed, based on agreed-upon norms and
standards, such as maximum class sizes, space utilisation, and the number and types of
facilities, in order to rid the system of accumulated backlogs and years of neglect.

c. New and innovative ways of speeding up service delivery will be explored. While the impact
of these initiatives will not be directly result in an improvement in the quality of outcomes, they
constitute the basic minimum that could be done, given the squalid conditions that persist in
many schools — especially those serving the poorest and remotest communities.

3. Managing the funding of resources, via funding policy, will receive continued attention in this financial
year.

a. While the “No-fee Schools” Policy has been a remarkable achievement, these schools cannot
and must not be left to become a “lower class” of school. The “No-fee Schools” Policy will be
monitored via an empirical assessment of a sample of schools, in order to determine whether
the no-fee status has had the desired effect. The adequacy of the allocation made to them, as
well as the cash allocation made to schools, will be reviewed. These schools cannot be made
dependent on the system to deal with their needs, and they need to be given the scope to use
state funds for educational purposes.

b. The extent of fee exemptions granted and the utilisation of fees in fee-paying schools will be
investigated and the need for exemptions will be assessed.

c. A subsector of schooling, which has been neglected in terms of proper and equitable funding,
is that of special schools. These schools require a fair and equitable policy on funding in terms
of infrastructure, personnel, goods and services, and management and support services. To this
end, a funding policy will released later this year, to effectively deal with this sector. It is trusted
that meaningful partnerships could be developed with NGOs related to the special need in
question.

4. The management of the education system is made complex by the concurrence of functions between
government at national, and at provincial level. Quality information is essential for quality decision-
making, so that quality services may be provided that will impact on quality education. In the absence
of effective capacity to manage the education system at site level, reliable and timely information is
required at all levels of the system. The current annual collection of information, while serving the
purpose of analysing the education system over time, is not responsive to the immediate needs of the
system.

a. This year will see the expansion of the South African Schools Administration System (SA-SAMS)
in schools, with the



parallel development of a Learner Unit Record Information Tracking System (Lurits). The Lurits
system, once fully developed and operational over the next few years, will be able to provide
unit information on each and every learner. By the end of July 2008, the technical design
would have been completed and, at the end of this financial year, the system would have been
developed in prototype form.

The impact of this system on planning, operations, control, monitoring and evaluation will be incalculable.
The winner can only be quality education. In order for the system to be effective, it would be essential for
management systems and recording-keeping, from school to the upper levels, are in place and working
effectively. This will receive the necessary attention.

The monitoring and evaluation (M&E) of a number of key education indicators, as well as of policies
developed in the Branch, are essential. The M&E framework will be finalised and a number of reports,
in addition to the ones mentioned above, will produced. These reports include:

a.
b.
C.

A School Funding Norms Implementation Report.

A report on the current state of managing learner absenteeism.

A report (ministerial) on learner retention in the South African education system, taking into
account the absenteeism report.

A report on the state of home education in South Africa.

A report on the implementation, by provinces, of national policy and legislation, as well as on
the development of provincial policy and legislation.

A report on the state of HR in the system.
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The General Education and Training Branch is responsible for laying a solid foundation for lifelong learning and
ensuring increased access to quality education for all learners of school-going age.

To achieve this, the Branch intends to increase its focus on the following issues:

Expanding access to quality Early Childhood Development (ECD) opportunities, especially for poor
communities.

Ensuring effective implementation of the curriculum.

Improving access to, and quality of education for learners with special educational needs.

Recruiting and ensuring appropriately qualified and competent teachers in all learning areas at all levels,
with special focus on scarce skills.

Ensuring effective professional leadership at all levels of the system.

Providing regular, credible and up-to-date data on school performance and learner achievement.
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The goals of the Branch are to:

increase the numbers of FET learners, achieving high levels of language, Mathematics and Science
proficiency;

develop and implement modern, relevant and high-level curricula and programmes in schools offering
Grades 10 to 12, as well as in FET colleges;

implement a national examination system for the National Senior Certificate in schools, as well as a
National Certificate (Vocational) in colleges;

increase the participation and success rates of persons in the age group, 16 to 24, in relevant, high-
quality FET programmes;

develop effective systems, structures, funding norms and human resources for Grades 10 to 12 in
schools, as well as programmes for FET colleges;

monitor and evaluate the delivery of programmes for FET colleges; and

monitor and support the objectives of the White Paper on e-Education.

With regard to schools offering Grades 10 to 12, the Branch will:

provide support to the provinces for the implementation of the National Curriculum Statement (NCS) in
Grades 10 to 12, especially in relation to teacher development and assessment practices;

publish Grades 10, 11 and 12 textbook catalogues;

set and translate high-quality and error-free examination papers for the National Senior Certificate;
publish detailed reports on the results of the National Senior Certificate examinations, in order to
monitor and evaluate the quality and growth of learner attainment, and plan for the implementation of
the National Senior Certificate;

actively support the provinces and schools in reducing the drop-out and repeater rates in Grades 10 to
1228

increase the number of focus schools, offering Mathematics and Science, with a particular focus on
redress; and

develop a framework for expanding specialist subjects in poor areas, so that more learners may have
access to a wider range of subjects.

With regard to FET colleges, the Branch will:

develop and gazette requirements for the National Certificate (Vocational);

oversee the development and approval of programmes, leading to the National Certificate (Vocational);
strengthen ties with SETAs, government departments, the private sector and universities;

develop a plan for the recapitalisation of FET colleges, based on the FET programmes offered at each
college;

Develop a National Plan for the sector, including Norms and Standards for FET colleges;

actively support the provinces and colleges to improve the throughput and placement rates of college
students;

support the expansion and use of Information Communication Technology (ICT) in teaching and learning
at all FET college campuses;

improve the use of information systems for planning and evaluation; and

support colleges in providing credible assessments of learning.
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The Branch achieved significant progress towards realising the Department’s five broad priorities. These priorities
have been translated into six key Branch strategic priorities, as outlined in the 2008/09 Operational Plans. The
priorities are aimed at:

i) supporting schools that experience high levels of crime and violence to be safe and caring schools;

i) increasing the participation and success rates of girl learners in gateway subjects in the higher grade;

iii)  reviewing Adult Education and Training (AET) and implement the Mass Literacy Campaign;

iv) facilitating the implementation of school sport;

v)  providing support and strengthening curricula-driven HIV and Aids activities via peer education; and

vi)  ensuring the successful and broader implementation of the National School Nutrition Programme (NSNP).
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STATEMENT OF PRIORITIES

The Higher Education Branch continues to provide strategic direction for the development of an effective and
sustainable higher education system, and to manage government’s responsibilities regarding the regulation
of the higher education system. The strategic objectives and associated plans are based on the Ministry’s
commitment to support the core work of higher education, i.e. teaching and learning; research and community
service via quality improvement of the higher education system; as well as enhanced efficiency and effectiveness.

The strategic objectives of the Higher Education Branch may be summarised as follows:

1.

The provision of regulatory support to the higher education system. In addition to the amending of
legislation as appropriate, particular attention will be paid to reviewing the regulations and procedures for
the registration of private higher education institutions.

Academic and research support to the higher education system. Emphasis will be placed on the
development of policies and criteria for research and teaching development grants, as stipulated in the
Funding Framework for Higher Education.

The provision of institutional support to higher education institutions. This includes capacity-building,
support to student leadership councils and institutional forums.

The internationalisation of higher education. The focus will be on the development of a framework for the
internationalisation of the higher education system, particularly in the context of the African Continent.
The strengthening of planning to support the production of quality graduates, required for the social and
economic development of the country. The enrolment planning process will be refined, particularly taking
into account the availability of resources, as well as the national human resources development priorities.
The achievement of institutional diversity in the South African higher education system. Continued technical,
financial and policy support will be provided to higher education institutions, as part of the restructuring
process, which is underway. Support for the establishment of national institutes of higher education in
Mpumalanga and the Northern Cape will be accelerated.

Monitoring and evaluation of the higher education system (including equity, access, diversity and outputs).
Particular emphasis will be placed on the evaluation of the restructuring process, in order to assess the
extent to which policy objectives have been met. Projects will also be undertaken to strengthen systemic and
institutional performance indicators.
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The statistics and information published in this part of the Annual Report are required in terms of Chapter 1,
Part 11l J.3 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001, and were prescribed by the Minister for the Public Service and
Administration for all departments within the Public Service.

The statistical tables provide high-level information on key human resources issues. The information aims to
empower legislatures, the media, the public and other key stakeholders, to monitor whether the Department of
Education:-
* is exercising the powers granted under Public Service and Public Finance legislation in a responsible
manner; and
* is achieving national transformation priorities, established by Cabinet — for example, affirmative action.

Annual reports are produced after the end of the financial year. This is aimed at strengthening the accountability
of departments to key stakeholders.

1 — Expenditure

Note: During 2008/09, a total of R48,069 million was spent on remuneration for examiners and moderators.
This amount is excluded from the personnel expenditure tables, as these officials are remunerated on a claim-
per-task basis. The inclusion of this in the following tables would give a false reflection of the personnel numbers
and cost in the tables.

The following figures are also not included in the personnel expenditure table:

The Kha Ri Gude Literacy Campaign, R3,765 million; FET recapitalisation, R426 million; a combined expenditure
for secondments and interns, R1,476 million; and the Integrated Quality Management System (IQMS) Project,
R8,407 million.

Departments budget in terms of clearly defined programmes. The following tables summarise final audited
expenditure by programme (Table 1.1) and by salary bands (Table 1.2). In particular, the tables provide an
indication of the amount spent on personnel costs in terms of each of the programmes or salary bands within
the Department.

TABLE 1.1 - Personnel costs by programme, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Programme Total Personnel Training Professional Personnel cost Average
expenditure expenditure expenditure and Special as a % of total | personnel cost
(R’000) (R’000) (R’000) Services expenditure per employee

(R°000) (R’000)
1 197 495 75 626 151 43976 38.29 270
2 107 217 32 507 78 14 050 30.32 304
3 303 875 36 311 200 14 631 11.95 316
4 1101 164 57 069 232 12 261 5.18 239
5 2 420 009 20 865 82 31910 0.86 331
6 15551016 14 060 31 721 0.09 276
7 28 294 12 477 89 215 44.10 356
Total 19 709 070 248 915 863 117 764 1.26 280




TABLE 1.2 - Personnel costs by salary bands, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Salary bands Personnel expenditure % of total personnel cost | Average personnel cost
(R’000) per employee (R’000)
Lower skilled (Levels 1 - 2) 3 542 1.42 82
Skilled (Levels 3 - 5) 19 204 7.72 97
Highly skilled production (Levels 6 - 8) 35 748 14.36 175
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9 -12) 125 640 50.47 354
Senior Management (Levels 13 -16) 64 781 26.03 720
Total 248 915 100.00 280

The following tables provide a summary per programme (Table 1.3) and salary bands (Table 1.4), of expenditure
incurred as a result of salaries, overtime, home owners allowance and medical assistance. In each case, the
table provides an indication of the percentage of the personnel budget that was used for these items.

TABLE 1.3 - Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Assistance by programme,
1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Programme Salaries Overtime Home Owners Medical Assistance
Allowance

Personnel | Amount Salaries Amount | Overtime | Amount HOA as Amount Medical
costs (R'000) | asa %of | (R'000) | asa % of | (R'000) a % of (R’000) | assistance
(R‘000) personnel personnel personnel as a % of
costs costs costs personnel

costs

1 75 626 57 424 75.93 954 1.26 1563 2.07 2 998 3.96
2 32 507 32 390 99.64 7 0.02 392 1.21 1014 3.12
3 36311 27 631 76.10 61 0.17 578 1.59 1158 3.19
4 57 069 43 695 76.57 644 1.13 1262 2.21 2116 3.71
5 20 865 17 879 85.69 2 0.01 305 1.46 728 3.49
6 14 060 10 612 75.48 0 0.00 249 1.77 277 1.97
7 12 477 9 701 77.75 5 0.04 187 1.50 439 3.52
Total 248 915| 199 332 80.08 1673 0.67 4 536 1.82 8 730 3.51




TABLE 1.4 - Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Assistance by salary
bands, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Salary Salaries Overtime Home Owners Medical Assistance
bands Allowance
Personnel | Amount | Salaries | Amount | Overtime | Amount HOA as Amount | Medical
costs (R'000) | asa % of | (R'000) | as a % of | (R’000) a % of (R’000) | assistance
(R’000) personnel personnel personnel as a % of
costs costs costs personnel
costs
Lower skilled
(Levels 1-2) 3 542 2 391 67.50 285 8.05 202 5.70 193 5.45
Skilled
(Levels 3 - 5) 19 204 13 229 68.89 512 2.67 923 4.81 1 680 8.75
Highly skilled
production
(Levels 6 - 8) 35748 26 049 72.87 499 1.40 880 2.46 2 233 6.25
Highly skilled
supervision
(Levels 9 - 12) 125 640 102 039 81.22 377 0.30 1577 1.26 3 457 2.75
Senior
Management
(Levels 13 -16) 64 781 55 624 85.86 0 0.00 954 1.47 1167 1.80
Total 248 915 199 332 80.08 1673 0.67 4 536 1.82 8 730 3.51

2 — Employment and Vacancies

The following tables summarise the number of posts on the establishment, the number of employees, the vacancy
rate, and whether there are any staff that are additional to the establishment. This information is presented in
terms of three key variables:- programme (Table 2.1), salary band (Table 2.2) and critical occupations (Table 2.3).
Departments have identified critical occupations that need to be monitored. Table 2.3 provides establishment

and vacancy information for the key critical occupations in the Department.

The vacancy rate reflects the percentage of posts that are not filled.

TABLE 2.1 - Employment and vacancies by programme, 31 March 2009

Programme Number of posts Number of posts Vacancy rate % Number of posts
filled filled additional to
the establishment
1 345 280 18.84 5
2 121 107 11.57 53
3 142 115 19.01 1
4 274 239 12.77 0
5 83 63 24.09 7
6 89 51 42.69 1
7 4] 35 14.63 1
Total 1095 890 18.72 68

Note: Due to a number of projects that the Department implemented during the year, namely the Kha Ri
Gude Literacy Campaign and the IQMS, posts were approved additional to the staff establishment, in which
to appoint officials to perform the related tasks. Once the project is completed the posts are removed from the
establishment.



TABLE 2.2 - Employment and vacancies by salary bands, 31 March 2009

Salary band Number of posts Number of posts Vacancy rate % Number of posts

filled filled additional to
the establishment

Lower skilled 49 43 12.24 0

(Levels 1- 2)

Skilled (Levels 3 - 5) 250 198 20.80 1

Highly skilled production 237 204 13.92 3

(Levels 6 - 8)

Highly skilled supervision 457 355 22.31 58

(Levels 9 -12)

Senior Management 102 90 11.76 6

(Levels 13-16)

Total 1095 890 18.72 68

TABLE 2.3 - Employment and vacancies by critical occupation, 31 March 2009

Critical occupations Number of posts Number of posts Vacancy rate % Number of posts
filled filled additional to
the establishment
Educators 70 70 0.00
Total 70 70 0.00

The information in each case reflects the situation as at 31 March 2009. For an indication of changes in staffing
patterns over the period under review, please refer to Section 5 of this Annual Report.

Note: The Department revised the fixed staff establishment during 2008 with the creation of 43 new posts.
During 2008/09, the Department was in a process of filling these posts. The main functions of the Department
are policy formulation and implementation, where different kinds of skills are necessary at different stages.
The specialised nature of work in most of the areas of the Department necessitates the use of highly skilled
people, who are at some stages, not readily available for permanent appointment and have to be appointed on
contract for periods as may be required. The Department also seconds highly skilled professionals from tertiary
institutions and other organisations to address specific needs that arise. These people are appointed against
posts on the fixed staff establishment of the Department for short periods, for example three to six months. The
above practice might create the impression of a higher than normal staff turnover which is, in fact, not the case.

3 — Job Evaluation

The Public Service Regulations, 1999, introduced job evaluation as a way of ensuring that work of equal value
is equally remunerated. Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may evaluate or re-
evaluate any job in their organisations. In terms of the Regulations, all vacancies on Salary Levels 9 and higher,
must be evaluated before they are filled.

The following table (Table 3.1), summarises the number of jobs that were evaluated during the period under
review. The table also provides statistics on the number of posts that were upgraded or downgraded.



TABLE 3.1 - Job Evaluation, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Salary band Number of Number % of posts Posts upgraded Posts downgraded
posts of jobs evaluated
evaluated bylsalary Number % o: pt:st: Number % o: pc:si:
bands evaluate evaluate
Lower skilled 49 0 0.00 0 0.00 0.00
(Levels 1-2)
Skilled 250 1 0.40 0 0.00 0.00
(Levels 3 - 5)
Highly skilled 237 1 0.42 0 0.00 0.00
production
(Levels 6 - 8)
Highly skilled 457 157 34.35 153 33.47 0.00
supervision
(Levels 9 -12)
Senior 68 0 0.00 0 0.00 0.00
Management
Service Band A
Senior 26 0 0.00 0 0.00 0.00
Management
Service Band B
Senior 7 0 0.00 0 0.00 0.00
Management
Service Band C
Senior 1 0 0.00 0 0.00 0.00
Management
Service Band D
Total 1095 159 14.52 153 13.97 0.00

The following table provides a summary of the number of employees whose salary positions were upgraded,
due to their posts being upgraded. The number of employees might differ from the number of posts upgraded,
since not all employees are automatically absorbed into the new posts and, some of the posts upgraded, could

also be vacant.

TABLE 3.2 - Profile of employees whose salary positions were upgraded, due to their posts being

upgraded, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Beneficiaries African Indian Coloured White Total

Female 54 2 26 84
Male 60 3 6 69
Total 114 5 32 153

Employees with a disability

The following table summarises the number of cases where remuneration levels exceeded the grade determined
by the job evaluation. Reasons for the deviation are provided in each case.



TABLE 3.3 - Employees whose salary level exceeds the grade determined by the job evaluation,
1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009 (in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3)

Occupation Number of Job evaluation Remuneration Reason for
employees level level deviation

Total number of employees whose salaries exceeded the level determined by the job evaluation in 2008/09

Percentage of total employment

Table 3.4 summarises the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender and disability.

TABLE 3.4 - Profile of employees whose salary level exceeds the grade determined by the job
evaluation, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009 (in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3)

Beneficiaries African Indian Coloured White Total

Female
Male
Total 0 0 0 0

Employees with a disability 0

4 - Employment Changes

This section provides information on changes in employment over the past financial year. Turnover rates provide
an indication of trends in the employment profile of the Department. The following tables provide a summary
of turnover rates by salary band (Table 4.1) and by critical occupations (Table 4.2). (These “critical occupations”
should be the same as those listed in Table 2.3).

TABLE 4.1 - Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Salary band Number of Appointments to, Terminations and Turnover rate %
employees per and transfers into | transfers out of the
band as on 1 April the Department Department
2008

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 37 10 5 13.51
Skilled (Levels 3 - 5) 194 42 39 20.10
Highly skilled production

(Levels 6 - 8) 200 34 33 16.50
Highly skilled supervision

(Levels 9 -12) 311 123 51 16.39
Senior Management Service Band A 59 6 8 13.55
Senior Management Service Band B 21 4 4 19.04
Senior Management Service Band C 6 1 1 16.66
Senior Management Service Band D 1 0 0 0.00
Total 829 220 141 17.00

TABLE 4.2 - Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March

2009
Occupations Number of Appointments to, and Terminations and Turnover rate
employees per transfers into the transfers out of the %
occupation as on Department Department
1 April 2008
Educators 91 0 21 23.07
Total 91 0 21 23.07




Table 4.3 identifies the major reasons why staff left the Department.

TABLE 4.3 - Reasons why staff are leaving the Department

Termination type Number % of total

Death 1 0.71
Resignation 22 15.60
Transfers to other Public Service 51 36.17
Departments

Expiry of contract 53 37.59
Employee initiated severance packages 2 1.42
Discharge due to ill health 1 0.71
Dismissal — misconduct 1.42
Retirement 9 6.38
Total 141 100.00
Total number of employees who left

as a % of the total employment 15.84

TABLE 4.4 - Promotions by critical occupation

Occupations Employees as on Promotions to Salary level Progressions to Notch
1 April 2008 another salary promotions as a another notch progressions as
level % of employees within a salary | a % of employees
by occupation level by occupation
Educators 91 91 0.00
Total 91 91 0.00

TABLE 4.5 - Promotions by salary band

Salary band Employees as on Promotions to Salary bands Progressions to Notch
1 April 2008 another salary promotions as a another notch progressions as
level % of employees within a salary | a % of employees
by salary level level by salary band
Lower skilled
(Levels 1-2) 37 0 0.00 32 86.49
Skilled
(Levels 3 - 5) 194 19 9.80 175 90.21
Highly skilled
production
(Levels 6 - 8) 200 20 10.00 180 90.00
Highly skilled
supervision
(Levels 9 -12) 311 46 14.79 112 36.02
Senior Management
(Levels 13 - 16) 87 4 4.60 58 60.92
Total 829 89 10.74 552 66.59




5 — Employment Equity

The tables in this section are based on the formats prescribed by the Employment Equity Act, 55 of 1998.

TABLE 5.1 - Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the
following occupational categories, as on 31 March 2009

Occupational Male Female
categories
(SASCO) African | Coloured | Indian White African | Coloured | Indian White Total

Senior Managers 32 8 6 12 15 3 4 10 90

Educators and
Middle Managers 143 8 7 27 107 4 13 46 355

Officers and
Clerks
Machine
Operators 94 4 0 7 231 4 3 59 402

Elementary
occupations
(Cleaners,
Messengers, Food
Services Aids,

Security) 22 0 0 0 21 0 0 0 43
Total 291 20 13 46 374 1 20 115 890
Employees with

disabilities 6 0 0 2 4 0 0 5 17

TABLE 5.2 - Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the
following occupational bands, as on 31 March 2009

Occupational Male Female

ZEncE African | Coloured Indian White African | Coloured Indian White Total
Top Management 1 0 1 2 2 1 0 1 8
Senior

Management 31 8 S 10 13 2 4 9 82
Educators and

Middle Managers 143 8 7 27 107 4 13 46 355
Skilled and

academically

qualified workers 41 2 0 6 100 4 3 48 204

Semi-skilled and
discretionary

decision-making 53 2 0 1 131 0 0 11 198
Unskilled and

defined decision-

making 22 0 0 0 21 0 0 0 43

Total 291 20 13 45 374 1 20 116 890




TABLE 5.3 - Recruitment for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Occupational
bands

Male

Female

African

Coloured

Indian

White

African

Coloured

Indian

White

Total

Top Management

0

0

0

0

1

0

Senior
Management

Educators and
Middle Managers

35

24

77

Skilled and
academically
qualified workers

17

40

Semi-skilled and
discretionary
decision-making

17

32

49

Unskilled and
defined decision-
making

Total

75

81

189

Employees with
disabilities

TABLE 5.4 - Promotions for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Occupational
bands

Male

Female

African

Coloured

Indian

White

African

Coloured

Indian

White

Total

Top Management

0

0

Senior
Management

Educators and
Middle Managers

19

Skilled and
academically
qualified workers

Semi-skilled and
discretionary
decision-making

10

20

Unskilled and
defined decision-
making

Total

37

89

Employees with
disabilities




TABLE 5.5 - Terminations for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Occupational Male Female

ZencE African | Coloured Indian White African | Coloured Indian White Total
Top Management 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Senior

Management 5 0 0 3 2 1 0 1 12
Educators and

Middle Managers 16 0 0 2 14 5 2 12 51
Skilled and

academically

qualified workers 11 0 0 0 19 0 0 3 33

Semi-skilled and
discretionary

decision-making 9 2 1 0 22 2 1 2 39
Unskilled and

defined decision-

making 2 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 5
Total 43 2 1 6 60 8 3 18 141

Employees with
disabilities 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

TABLE 5.6 - Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Type of Male Female

disciplinary

action African | Coloured | Indian White African | Coloured | Indian White Total
Disciplinary action 8 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 4

TABLE 5.7 - Skills development for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Occupational Male Female

' A
AT African | Coloured | Indian White African | Coloured | Indian White Total
Senior Managers 8 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 6
Educators and
Middle Managers 28 3 3 6 36 0 6 14 96
Officers and
Clerks 10 2 0 0 27 1 0 0 40
Elementary
occupations
(Cleaners,

Messengers, Food
Services Aids,
Security, Interns) 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10

Total 51 5 3 6 65 2 6 14 152

Employees with
disabilities 0 (1] (1] (1] (1] 0 0 0 0




6 — Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS Members

The following tables indicate the numbers and percentages of SMS members who signed performance
agreements as on 30 September 2008 (Table 6.1), reasons for not having concluded performance agreements
(Table 6.2), and disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded performance agreements

(Table 6.3).

TABLE 6.1 - Signing of performance agreements by SMS members as on 30 September 2008

SMS Level

Total number of
funded SMS posts per
level

Total number of SMS
members per level

Total number of
signed performance
agreements per level

Signed performance
agreements as % of

total number of SMS
members per level

Director-General

Salary Level 16 1 1 1 100.00
Deputy Director-General

Salary Level 15 7 7 7 100.00
Chief Director

Salary Level 14 26 23 23 100.00
Director

Salary Level 13 68 60 60 100.00
Total 102 921 91 100.00

TABLE 6.2 - Reasons for not having concluded performance agreements for all SMS members as
on 30 September 2008

1. All Senior Management System Members completed, signed and submitted their performance agreements
within three months after appointment, or within three months after 31 March 2008.

TABLE 6.3 - Disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded performance
agreements as on 30 September 2008

1. None

7 — Filling of SMS posts

The following tables indicate the number of SMS posts, filled and vacant, as on 31 March 2009 (Table 7.1),
as on 30 September 2008 (Table 7.2), advertising and filling of SMS posts as on 31 March 2009 (Table 7.3),
reasons for not having filled vacant posts (Table 7.4), and disciplinary steps taken for not complying .

TABLE 7.1 - SMS posts information as on 31 March 2009

SMS Level Total number | Total number of | % of SMS posts | Total number | % of SMS posts
of funded SMS | SMS posts filled | filled per level of SMS posts vacant per
posts per level per level vacant per level

level

Director-General

Level 16 1 1 100.00 0 0.00

Deputy Director-General

Level 15 7 7 100.00 0 0.00

Chief Director

Level 14 26 26 100.00 0 0.00

Director

Level 13 68 56 82.35 12 17.64

Total 102 90 88.23 12 11.76




TABLE 7.2 - SMS posts information as on 30 September 2008

SMS Level Total number | Total number of | % of SMS posts | Total number | % of SMS posts
of funded SMS | SMS posts filled | filled per level of SMS posts vacant per
posts per level per level vacant per level

level

Director-General

Level 16 1 1 100.00 0 0.00

Deputy Director-General

Level 15 7 7 100.00 0 0.00

Chief Director

Level 14 26 23 80.76 3 11.53

Director

Level 13 68 60 88.23 8 11.76

Total 102 91 89.21 11 10.78

TABLE 7.3 - Advertising and filling of SMS posts as on 31 March 2009

Advertising

Filling of posts

SMS Level

Number of vacancies
per level advertised in 6
months of becoming vacant

Number of vacancies per
level filled in 6 months
after becoming vacant

Number of vacancies per
level not filled in 6 months
but filled in 12 months

Director-General

Level 16 0 0
Deputy Director-General

Level 15 0 0
Chief Director

Level 14 3 0
Director

Level 13

Total 12 3

TABLE 7.4 - Reasons for not having complied with the filling of funded vacant SMS posts -
advertised within 6 months and filled within 12 months after becoming vacant

Reasons for vacancies not being advertised within 6 months:

1. None

Reasons for vacancies not being filled within 12 months:

1. Candidates were short-listed and interviewed, but were found unsuitable for the particular posts. The

posts were readvertised.

TABLE 7.5 - Disciplinary steps taken for not complying with the prescribed time-frames for filling
SMS posts within 12 months

1. None




8 — Performance Rewards

To encourage good performance, the Department granted the following performance rewards during the period
under review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender and disability (Table 8.1), salary bands
(Table 8.2) and critical occupations (Table 8.3).

TABLE 8.1 - Performance rewards by race, gender and disability, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Beneficiary Profile Cost
Number of Total number % of total within Cost Average cost per
beneficiaries of employees in group (R’000) employee
group (R’000)

African
Male 55 291 18.90 1688 31
Female 64 374 17.11 1191 19
Indian
Male 6 13 46.15 259 43
Female 10 20 50.00 392 39
Coloured
Male 5 20 25.00 225 45
Female 2 11 18.18 32 16
White
Male 17 46 36.95 795 47
Female 45 115 39.13 1208 27
Total 204 890 22.92 5790 28

TABLE 8.2 - Performance rewards by salary bands for personnel below Senior Management
Service, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Salary bands Beneficiary Profile Cost
Number of Number of % of total Total cost Average cost | Total cost as a
beneficiaries employees within salary (R’000) per employee | % of the total
bands (R,000) personnel
expenditure
Lower skilled
(Levels 1 - 2) 4 43 9.30 16 4 0.45
Skilled
(Levels 3 - 5) 36 198 18.18 194 5 1.01
Highly skilled
production
(Levels 6 - 8) 49 204 24.01 574 12 1.60
Highly skilled
supervision
(Levels 9 - 12) 50 285 17.54 1453 29 3.64
Total 139 730 19.04 2 237 16 2.27




TABLE 8.3 - Performance rewards by critical occupations, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Critical Beneficiary Profile Cost

occupations Number of Number of % of total Total cost Average cost | Total cost as a
beneficiaries employees within (R’000) per employee | % of the total

occupation (R,000) personnel
expenditure

Educators

(Levels 8 - 10) 6 25 24.00 120 20 1.67

Educators

(Levels 11 -12) 12 45 26.66 442 37 2.19

Total 18 70 25.71 562 31 2.06

TABLE 8.4 - Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band, for Senior Management

Service

Salary Band Beneficiary Profile Total cost Average cost | Total cost as a

(R’000) per employee | % of the total

(R’000) personnel
expenditure
Number of Number of % of total
beneficiaries employees within band

Band A 26 56 47.27 1303 50 3.70
Band B 15 26 55.55 1043 70 4.81
Band C 6 7 85.71 645 108 9.58
Band D 0 1 0.00 0 0 0
Total 47 90 52.22 2 991 64 4.61

Note: The performance reward, amounting to R120 000.00, awarded to the Project Manager of the Kha Ri
Gude Literacy Campaign, is not reflected in the above table, as she is appointed in a post additional to the fixed
staff establishment of the Department.

9 — Foreign Workers

The tables below summarise the employment of foreign nationals in the Department in terms of salary bands
and by major occupation. The tables also summarise changes in the total number of foreign workers in each
salary band and by each major occupation.

TABLE 9.1 - Foreign workers, by salary band, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Salary Band 1 April 2008 31 March 2009 Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % change
Highly skilled
production
(Levels 6 - 8) 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00
Highly skilled
supervision
(Levels 9 - 12) 100.00 100.00 0.00
Total 2 100.00 2 100.00 0 0.00




TABLE 9.2 - Foreign workers, by major occupation, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009
Major Occupation 1 April 2008 31 March 2009 Change
Number % of total Number % of total Number % change
Educators 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 0 0.00 0.00 0 0.00

10 - Leave utilisation for the period 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2008

The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the Public Service.
The following tables provide an indication of the use of sick leave (Table 10.1) and disability leave (Table 10.2).
In both cases, the estimated cost of the leave is also provided.

TABLE 10.1 - Sick leave, 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2008

Salary band Total days % days with | Number of % of total Average Estimated Total
medical employees employees days per cost number of
certification using sick using sick employee (R’000) days with
leave leave medical
certification
Lower skilled
(Levels 1 - 2) 279 72.40 35 81.39 11 45 202
Skilled
(Levels 3-5) 1310 74.80 163 82.32 10 310 980
Highly skilled
production
(Levels 6 - 8) 1230 74.95 174 85.29 11 548 922
Highly skilled
supervision
(Levels 9 - 12) 1272 80.11 233 65.63 9 1505 1019
Senior
Management
(Levels 13 - 16) 292 79.45 53 58.88 634 232
Total 4 383 76.54 658 73.93 10 3 042 3 355
TABLE 10.2 - Disability leave (temporary and permanent), 1 January 2008 to 31 December
2008
Salary Band Total days % days with | Number of % of total Average Estimated Total
taken medical employees employees days per cost number of
certification using using employee (R’000) days with
disability disability medical
leave leave certificate
Lower skilled
(Levels 1 - 2) 29 100.00 1 6.70 29 5 29
Skilled
(Levels 3 - 5) 309 100.00 6 40.00 52 85 309
Highly skilled
production
(Levels 6 - 8) 113 100.00 6 40.00 19 44 113
Highly skilled
supervision
(Levels 9 - 12) 47 100.00 2 13.30 24 48 47
Senior
Management
(Levels 13 - 16) 0 0.00 0.00 0 0 0
Total 498 100.00 15 100.00 33 182 498




Table 10.3 summarises the utilisation of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with trade unions in the
PSCBC, requires management of annual leave to prevent high levels of accrued leave being paid at the time of
termination of service.

TABLE 10.3 - Annual leave, 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2008

Salary bands Total days taken Average per employee Number of employees who
took leave

Lower skilled

(Levels 1 - 2) 1398 33 43

Skilled

(Levels 3 - 5) 3974 20 198

Highly skilled production

(Levels 6 - 8) 4414 22 204

Highly skilled supervision

(Levels 9 -12) 7 042 20 355

Senior Management

(Levels 13 - 16) 2 020 22 90

Total 18 848 21 890

TABLE 10.4 - Capped leave, 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2008

Salary bands Total days of capped leave Average number of days Number of employees who
taken taken per employee took capped leave

Lower skilled

(Levels 1 - 2) 0 0 0

Skilled

(Levels 3 - 5) 30 8 6

Highly skilled production

(Levels 6 - 8) 79 6 13

Highly skilled supervision

(Levels 9 - 12) 177 8 23

Senior Management

(Levels 13 - 16) 39 8 5)

Total 325 7 47

TABLE 10.5 - Leave payouts for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

The following table summarises payments made to employees as a result of leave that was not taken.

Reason Total amount (R’000) Number of Average payment
employees per employee
(R’000)
Leave payout due to non-utilisation of leave 52 1 52
Current leave payout on termination of service 454 38 12
Capped leave payout on termination of service 474 17 28
Total 980 56 18




11. HIV and Aids & Health Promotion Programmes

TABLE 11.1 - Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/categories of employees identified to be at high Key steps taken to reduce the risk

risk of contracting HIV and related diseases (if any)

None Education awareness and prevention programmes

Distribution of universal precautions

First-aid kits installed on all floors of the building and 26 officials

were trained in the usage thereof

Condom distribution

TABLE 11.2 - Details of Health Promotion and HIV and Aids Programmes (tick the applicable
boxes and provide the required information)

Question Yes No | Details, if yes

1. Hos the Department designated a member of the SMS to implement Yes Ms Thandi Khoza
the provisions contained in Part VI E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Director: Training, Social
Regulations, 20017 If so, provide her/his name and position. Responsibility and Labour Relations

2. Does the Department have a dedicated unit or has it designated specific Yes The Directorate: Training, Social
staff members to promote the health and wellbeing of your employees? If Responsibility and Labour Relations

so, indicate the number of employees who are involved in this task and the

annual budget that is available for this purpose.

3. Has the Department introduced an Employee Assistance or Health Yes To assist employees with task related
Promotion Programme for your employees? If so, indicate the key and personal problems.

elements/services of this Programme.

4. Has the Department established (a) committee(s) as contemplated in Part VI | Yes Each Branch is represented on the
E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 20017 If so, please committee.
provide the names of the members of the committee and the stakeholder(s)

that they represent.

5. Has the Department reviewed its employment policies and practices to Yes Leave Policy
ensure that these do not unfairly discriminate against employees on the Employee Assistance Programme
basis of their HIV status? If so, list the employment policies/practices so Policy
reviewed. Recruitment Policy

6. Has the Department introduced measures to protect HIV-positive Yes HIV and Aids Policy
employees or those perceived to be HIV-positive from discrimination? HIV and Aids Workplace Programme
If so, list the key elements of these measures. Condom distributions

7. Does the Department encourage its employees to undergo voluntary Yes By information sharing and pre-
counselling and testing? If so, list the results that you have achieved. test counselling. Results are few, as

people will not be tested voluntarily

without encouragement.

8. Has the Department developed measures/indicators to monitor and Yes Training in First-aid Programmes
evaluate the impact of its Health Promotion programme? If so, list these Distribution of condoms
measures/indicators. Protective gloves distribution

Awareness campaign
Information session
Distribution of booklets and

pamphlets on HIV and Aids




12 — Labour Relations

The following collective agreements were entered into with trade unions within the Department.

TABLE 12.1 - Collective agreements, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Subject matter

Date

None

The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the Department for the

period under review.

TABLE 12.2 - Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of total
Correctional counselling 1 16.67
Verbal warning 1 16.67
Written warning 1 16.67
Final written warning 2 33.33
Suspended without pay 0 0.00
Fine 0 0.00
Demotion 0 0.00
Dismissal 1 16.66
Not guilty 0 0.00
Case withdrawn 0 0.00
Total 6 100.00
If there were no disciplinary hearings, then use the following table
Disciplinary hearings - 2008/ 09 None
TABLE 12.3 - Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings
Type of misconduct Number % of total
Mismanagement of funds 0.00
Negligently caused loss of state property 0.00
Total 0.00
TABLE 12.4 - Grievances lodged for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009
Number % of total
Number of grievances resolved 3 75.00
Number of grievances not resolved 1 25.00
Total number of grievances lodged 4 100.00
TABLE 12.5 - Disputes lodged with Councils for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009
Number % of total
Number of disputes upheld 0 0.00
Number of disputes dismissed 50.00
Number of disputes outstanding 50.00
Total number of disputes lodged 16 100.00




TABLE 12.6 - Strike actions for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Total number of person working days lost

Total cost (R'000) of working days lost

Amount (R'000) recovered as a result of “no work no pay”

TABLE 12.7 - Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Number of people suspended

Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days

Average number of days suspended 13
Cost (R'000) of suspensions

13 - Skills Development

This section highlights the efforts of the Department with regard to skills development.

TABLE 13.1 - Training needs identified, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009
Occupational Gender Number of Training needs identified at start of reporting period
categories employees. Learnerships Skills Other forms Total

as at 1 April . .
/Internships | Programmes of training
2008
and other
short courses
Senior Managers Female &1 0 17 0 17
Male 56 0 35 0 35
Educators and Middle Female 156 0 121 0 121
Managers Male 155 0 118 0 118
Officers, Clerks and Female 241 6 190 0 196
Machine Operators Male 70 4 5 0 69
Elementary occupations | Female 74 0 75 0 75
(Cleaners, Messengers,
Food Services Aids,
Security, Interns) Male 46 0 45 0 45
Sub-total Female 502 403 0 409
Male 327 263 0 267

Total 829 10 666 0 676




TABLE 13.2 - Training provided, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Occupational Gender Number of Training provided within the reporting period
categories employees. Learnerships Skills Other forms Total
as at 1 April . . .
/Internships | Programmes of training
2008
and other
short courses
Senior Managers Female 31 0 3 0 3
Male 56 0 3 0 3
Educators and Middle Female 156 0 56 0 56
Managers Male 155 0 40 0 40
Officers, Clerks and Female 241 5 28 0 33
Machine Operators Male 70 1 12 0 13
Elementary occupations | Female 74 0 0 0 0
(Cleaners, Messengers,
Food Services Aids,
Security, Interns) Male 46 0 10 0 10
Sub-total Female 502 87 0 92
Male 327 1 65 0 66
Total 829 6 152 0 158
14 — Injury on Duty
The following table provides basic information on injuries on duty.
TABLE 14.1 - Injury on duty, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009
Nature of injury on duty Number % of total
Required basic medical attention only 3 100.00
Temporary total disablement 0 0.00
Permanent disablement 0 0.00
Fatal 0 0.00
Total 3 100.00




15. Utilisation of Consultants

TABLE 15.1 - Report on consultant appointments, using appropriated funds

Note: In cases where companies were granted the tender, the number of consultants working on the tasks is

unknown and is indicated as N/A in the following tables.

Project title Total number of Duration: Contract value
consultants who Work days in Rand
worked on the (R,000)
project
Evaluate, review and refine school website 3 245 576
Restructure the Department’s website N/A 210 479
Manage Education Management Information System (EMIS) 11 7 691 17 309
Rebind the hard copies of the examination records 8 1082 7 420
Training of Schools Management Team on managing the National
Curriculum Statement (NCS) 5 158 1973
Development of an Integrated Quality Management System (IQMS) —
audio visual 2 244 &) 75
Appointment of professional technical and research expertise for
analysis of assessment data and report-writing 13 151 1290
Maintenance and support of the Thutong Portal for the Department of
Education 364 2312
Appointment of a Transaction Advisor — ITC in Education 288 12016
Evaluate the implementation of the National Curriculum Statement
(NCS) in the Intermediate Phase 4 137 1398
Implementing Education White Paper 6 N/A 1061 3710
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology N/A 364 6 760
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology N/A 728 7 526
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology N/A 728 4613
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology N/A 728 8112
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology N/A 728 1696
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology N/A 364 2 020
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology N/A 728 912
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology N/A 1092 11 458
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology N/A 728 3 604
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology N/A 364 3280
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology N/A 364 2 780
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology N/A 364 1392
Investigate the status of Languages of Learning and Teaching in schools 5 120 298
Recruitment and contractual management of the (LURITS) System &
Admin 9 728 10 875
FILE PLANNING 100 201
Editing for FET Curriculum for Mechatronics 2, 3, 4 1 120 46
Project for Human Resources, Procurement and Financial Management
Services for the Kha Ri Gude Literacy Campaign in Education 30 1460 390 977
Develop financial management guidelines, manage System and
Business Plans for Adult Learning Centres N/A 64 263

Total individual

Total duration:

Total contract

Total number of projects consultants work days value in Rand
(R,000)
29 115 21 503 509 055




TABLE 15.2 - Analysis of consultant appointments, using
Historically Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs)

appropriated funds, in terms of

Project title Percentage Percentage Number of
ownership by HDI management by consultants from
groups HDI groups HDI groups who
work on the
project
Rebind the hard copies of the examination records 100.00 100.00 1
Training of Schools Management Team on managing the
National Curriculum Statement (NCS) 100.00 78.00 1
Development of an Integrated Quality Management System
(IQMS) - audio visual 100.00 74.00 1
Evaluate the implementation of the National Curriculum
Statement (NCS) in the Intermediate Phase 100.00 100.00 1
Editing of FET Curriculum for Mechatronics 2, 3, 4 100.00 100.00 1
TABLE 15.3 - Report on consultant appointments using donor funds
Project title Total number of Duration: Donor and
consultants who work days contract value in
worked on the Rand
project (R,000)
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology N/A 364 2 368
Finalised the Education Information Standards 7 150 665
Consortium of service providers, Implementing Education
White Paper 6 on Inclusive Education N/A 728 1915
Integrated Examinations Computer System (IECS) N/A 789 4 956
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology N/A 364 1 600
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology N/A 364 456
HSRC — Classroom Assessment N/A 364 3740
Evaluation of Contracts N/A 365 557
Server on Teacher Qualifications (HSRC) N/A 365 668

Total number of projects

Total individual

Total duration:

Total contract

consultants work days value in Rand
(R,000)
7 3 853 16 925

TABLE 15.4 - Analysis of consultant appointments using donor funds, in terms of Historically
Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs)

Project title Percentage Percentage Number of
ownership by HDI management by consultants from
groups HDI groups HDI groups who
work on the
project
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology No claim - university University
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology | No claim - university University
Advanced Certificate in Mathematics, Science and Technology No claim - university University
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DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
VOTE 13

REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
for the year ended 31 March 2009

Report by the Accounting Officer to the Executive Authority and Parliament of the Republic of South Africa.

1. General review of the state of financial affairs

The original allocation to the Department, which was included in the Estimates of National Expenditure 2008,
increased by 17.85% from R16 000.923 million in 2007/08 to R18 857.546 million in 2008/09, and included
R13 556.618 million for higher education institutions (HEls) and R1 566.465 million for the National Student
Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS) (80.20% of the Department’s total budget in 2008/09, compared to 82.44%
in 2007/08). The Department’s allocation in the Adjusted Budget for 2008/09 increased by an amount of
R891.824 million. The increase was constituted as follows:

Roll-overs 36111
Unforeseeable/unavoidable expenditure:

¢ Disaster Management Grant 22 002
*  National School Nutrition Programme 265 000
*  Kha Ri Gude Mass Literacy Campaign 107 000
Inflation-related adjustment:

*  National School Nutrition Programme 79 006
*  National Student Financial Aid Scheme 39 000
*  Higher education institutions 343 705
Total 891 824

The total expenditure for the 2008/09 financial year increased by 21.35% from R16 241.326 million in 2007/08
to R19 709.070 million in 2008/09, which represents a spending rate of 99.8% (99.11% in 2007/08). The
expenditure was constituted as follows, in R’000:

Compensation of employees 225 949 286 820 60 871
Departmental operations 540 162 344 015 (196 147)
Departmental earmarked funds 99 527 572 144 472 617
Subsidies to higher education institutions 11 941 539 13 797 403 1 855 864
National Student Financial Aid Scheme 1332 697 1702375 369 678
Subsidies to public entities in education 79 840 84 818 4978
Conditional grants to provinces for:

¢ Disaster Management - 22 002 22 002
*  HIV and Aids 157 571 165 003 7 432
*  Further Education and Training College Sector Recapitalisation 631 090 795170 164 080
*  National School Nutrition Programme 1219 289 1927 109 707 820
Other transfers 13 662 12 211 (1451)
Total expenditure 16 241 326 19 709 070 3 467 744

The surplus on the Vote for the 2008/09 financial year amounts to R40.300 million (R145.426 million in
2007/08) and was constituted as follows, in R"000:

Compensation of employees 9076 1266
Departmental operations 68 996 15 583
Departmental earmarked funds 56 234 10 797
Subsidies to higher education institutions 1212 6010
HIV and Aids conditional grant 8 823 6123
Other transfers 1085 521
Total savings 145 426 40 300

294



Important policy decisions and strategic issues facing the Department

The establishment of a HEDCOM Subcommittee on Sector Planning emphasises the importance attached by the
Department to education sector planning. In light of the Planning Commission that is to be established by the
Presidency, the Department will review its existing internal organisational and structural mechanisms, so as to
ensure that sector planning becomes a viable and sustainable activity.

Long-term school infrastructure financing: The School Infrastructure Policy and the Norms and Standards for
School Infrastructure were published for public comment on 21 November 2008. Work on the delivery capacity
to accelerate the delivery of school infrastructure, based on work by the Infrastructure Delivery Improvement
Programme (IDIP), on organisational design, as well as on the preliminary costing on backlogs, was approved.
Since current approaches and budgets will not eradicate the backlogs, alternative ways of financing the
eradication of backlogs should be explored.

The amendments to Education White Paper 2 of 1996 and to the National School Funding Norms and Standards
on the governance and funding of types of schools, are currently in progress.

Human Resources: The National Policy Framework on Teacher Education and Development (NPFTED), established
as policy in 2007, outlines the vision and direction that the Department wishes to take in order to enhance and
strengthen the system, which is aimed at developing and retaining quality teachers. The policy statements in the
NPFTED work towards establishing coherence and unity in the teacher education and development system as a
whole, as well as towards dealing with challenges in this context.

A new post-distribution model was developed, which will help to address the problems of actual class size in
respect of learner:educator ratios. This will also result in the reduction of multi-grade teaching and overcrowding
of classrooms. The model was designed to address the impact of poverty on education.

The creation of Teaching and Learning Specialist (TLS), and Senior Teaching and Learning Specialist (STLS) posts
in schools, is intended to encourage good, experienced and highly qualified educators to share their expertise
with their colleagues.

An Education Management Service (EMS) was established for principals, deputy principals and office-based
educators, in order to provide principals with the opportunity to focus more on management issues, which are
likely to improve leadership in schools.

The establishment of the National Education Evaluation and Development Unit (NEEDU) to conduct independent
evaluations of schools and teachers, is likely to change the accountability and performance management
landscape, and shed more light on the competencies of teachers and learners.

General Education and Training: The employment of Grade R practitioners and the regular payment of salaries
have become a major challenge and will require the Department to reconsider the recommendations made in
White Paper 5 on Early Childhood Development.

The National Policy on Assessment and Qualifications was reviewed to include a number of changes to the
assessment requirements. Progression and Promotion Requirements for Grades 1 to 9 were finalised. Serious
backlogs, pertaining to the development of literacy and numeracy programmes in schools, need to be addressed.
There is also a need to finalise the School Library Policy and to review the levels of skills and knowledge teachers
need to implement the School Library Policy and the accompanying guidelines.

The Policy on Education Districts, which defines the organisation, systems, staffing, funding, roles and functions
of districts, and which enables them to achieve acceptable levels of capacity in relation to their provincial context,
while being in line with international benchmarks, was approved by CEM and will soon be gazetted for public
comment. A draft document on the Delegation of Authority for Districts, is being developed as part of this Policy.



Further Education and Training: The regulations pertaining to the conduct, administration and management of
examinations for the National Senior Certificate, the changing of the date of registration for the 2010 and 2011
National Senior Certificate examinations, as well as the changing of policy and regulations pertaining to the
requirements of the National Senior Certificate supplementary examinations, were approved during 2008/09.

The recapitalisation of the Further Education and Training (FET) colleges was concluded and priority vocational
programmes for South Africa were introduced. Policies, such as the National Plan for Further Education and
Training Colleges, which states the strategic goals and plans for public and private colleges from 2009 to
2014, the Norms and Standards for Funding of Further Education and Training Colleges, which provides for
programme funding for FET colleges, and the National Policy pertaining to Further Education and Training
programmes, were developed.

The Mathematics, Science and Technology (MST) Strategy was expanded to include 500 Dinaledi schools.

Broader social issues: Workshops on values and human rights practices in schools were conducted in three
provinces, and workshops on anti-discrimination were conducted in four provinces, in order to establish
provincial and district structures to support the implementation of the racial strategy and to monitor and report
incidents of discrimination and human rights abuse at district level.

The Exploring Humanitarian Law (EHL) Programme is offered in nine Safe Schools (one school per province).
Teachers from the selected schools will receive training. A team will be appointed to link existing EHL material to
the Learning Outcomes and Assessment Standards of the Life Orientation Learning Area, Senior Phase.

The training programme for provincial and district officials, aimed at facilitating the utilisation of the National
Symbols Booklet, My Country South Africa, Celebrating Our National Symbols and Heritage, in schools continued.
Nine workshops on national symbols were conducted in four provinces. The specifications for a guidebook for
teachers on the Bill of Responsibilities, as well as draft guidelines for the rehabilitation of communities, which are
in line with the TRC recommendations, were approved.

Adult Basic Education and Training: The ABET system is currently under review. Based on the report of the
Ministerial Committee, a draft policy will be developed after an extensive consultation process. This will ultimately
result in the development of new legislation for Adult Education and Training.

Higher Education: The Higher Education Institutional Transformation process, as well as the management and
operation of the National Institutes for Higher Education in Mpumalanga and the Northern Cape, continued.
Governance in higher education, postgraduate outputs and the student retention rate were improved. The
National Higher Education Information and Application Service was established.

The outcome of the enrolment planning exercise, taking place in 2007, revealed that the higher education
system is operating near to full capacity. There is thus a need to explore avenues for expanding the system, so
as to meet the growing demand for higher education, which includes the 20% participation rate by 2015, as
stipulated by the National Plan for Higher Education.

The Department will continue to maintain and improve the levels of government funding for public higher
education. This includes both block grants and earmarked funds for expansion in targeted areas, as well as
upgrading the infrastructure of the higher education system.

Significant events that took place and major projects undertaken or completed during the period
under review

The year 2009 constituted the third year of the implementation of the No-fee Schools Policy. Currently, there
are approximately 60% of learners (i.e. 7.7 million learners, including learners in provincial voluntary Quintile
3 no-fee schools) in 64% of schools (i.e. 17 194 schools, including voluntary no-fee schools), who do not pay
school fees. The threshold amount paid to schools during 2009, is R605 per learner for non-personnel, non-



capital expenditure. The national per-learner target amount for schools in Quintile 1 is R807, and in Quintile 2
it is R740. All provinces reached these target amounts.

The Norms and Standards for Funding FET Colleges was published on 16 March 2009, for implementation
during April 2010.

The update of the 2007 National Education Infrastructure Management System (NEIMS) Report commenced
with information received from the provinces. Training of physical planners in the assessment of schools for the
update was provided in six provinces. Phase Il of NEIMS, which entails the upgrade of the system, commenced.
The System Delivery Specification was completed and provincial education departments were given access to
the server, hosted at SITA.

Processes with regard to human resources management, across all levels of the sector were identified, together
with the gaps that are presently hampering effective human resources management. Various communiqués,
applications and interventions to close these gaps were identified and will be implemented, in order to ensure
effective human resources management. The laptop initiative to assist all educators with the purchasing of a
laptop as a tool of trade to improve their quality of teaching, commenced in 2008/09. A National Framework
for an Educator Human Resources Plan was developed, so as to address the effective recruitment, retention and
utilisation of educators.

Nine project managers and 37 external moderators were appointed to monitor the implementation of the
IQMS processes and procedures at schools. The project managers visited an average of 600 schools per
month, and progress reports were submitted to both HEDCOM and CEM. Audio-visual training material on
the implementation of IQMS was developed, in order to assist schools in conducting their own training and
retraining.

A Ministerial Committee was established to advise the Minister on mechanisms through which independent
evaluations of schools, educators and learners could be conducted. The final report of the Committee has been
submitted to the Minister during January 2009.

The Occupation-Specific Dispensation for Educators was implemented.

The implementation of the National Learner Unit Record Information and Tracking System (LURITS), which collects
data on all learners in ordinary and special schools, from Grades 1 to 12, and which tracks the movement of
learners between schools, commenced in an incremental manner in all provinces during 2008 and will continue
until March 2010, at which time all schools will be interacting with the system on a regular basis. The system can
also store educator data for each year. However, the inability to account for, or track the movement of learners
in the entire education system, including private institutions, remains a challenge.

The roll-out of the SA-SAMS school administration system, aimed at automating and improving basic school
administrative functions, as well as improving data collection and maintenance at school level, continued in
2008, and has now reached 60% of schools that have computers for administrative purposes.

The draft revised Human Resources Development Strategy for South Africa (HRD-SA) was approved by Cabinet
on 18 March 2009, and arrangements were approved for the migration of JIPSA into the HRD-SA structures of
the Department.

The Second Phase of the Data Quality Audit was conducted in 4% of all ordinary schools in South Africa.
School Realities 2008 and Education Statistics in South Africa 2007 were published and distributed to schools,
publishers and all listed education stakeholders during 2008/09.

In September 2008, a conference to showcase best practices by teachers in the teaching of Literacy in the
Foundation Phase was held, and a DVD of the conference will be sent to all schools during 2009/10.



A diagnostic study was undertaken on the readiness of the national and provincial departments of education to
realise the target of universal access to Grade R by 2010. The evaluation of the implementation of the NCS in
the Intermediate Phase was conducted and a final report submitted.

In an attempt to allow disadvantaged learners access to books, 2 600 books were distributed to schools as part
of the Ithuba Project. A further 1 800 Reading Toolkits were delivered to QIDS-UP schools, as part of the Drop
All and Read Project.

Six full-service schools were completed and a diagnostic study was undertaken on the readiness of the national
and provincial departments of education to realise the expansion of inclusive education.

A research instrument (DEMIS), to conduct a national audit of district structures, systems, operations, skills and
capacities, was developed.

In 2008, bursary support was provided for 1 985 teachers to register for a Mathematics, Science and Technology
ACE Programme. A total of 70% of these teachers completed their first year of study and have registered for their
second (final year) in 2009.

The upgrading of unqualified and underqualified teachers was supported via registration for the National
Professional Diploma in Education. In 2008, a total of 5 855 teachers graduated from public higher education
institutions to become professionally qualified with the minimum professional requirements of REQV 13.
In 2009, a total of 3 000 school-based unqualified and underqualified teachers have been registered.

As part of the upgrading project, the Department commissioned a research study, aimed at collecting information
on the profile of unqualified and underqualified teachers, and to develop a database on teacher qualifications.
The purpose was to manage the development of a five-year upgrading plan, as well as policy recommendations
for upgrading unqualified and underqualified teachers in the system.

A World Teachers Day ceremony was hosted in KwaZulu-Natal, with 45 learners choosing the 45 teachers who
were recognised on the day. Nine provincial ceremonies to award the National Teaching Awards (NTAs) were
successfully staged, and 72 national finalists were awarded Certificates of Excellence at the national gala dinner.
Four teachers from the NTA finalists were selected for the Fulbright Exchange Programme to teach in the USA
for one year.

The Funza Lushaka Bursary Scheme was successfully implemented. In 2008, a total of 5 428 students received
bursaries and, at the end of 2008, some 1 058 bursary recipients graduated to take up teaching posts in public
schools.

A joint task team from the Department of Education and the South African Council for Educators completed
the Continuing Professional Teacher Development (CPTD) design document, which provides a future vision
for the CPTD system. A field study, which provided a picture of what was already taking place within schools,
was undertaken by researchers. This field study also provided valuable information on ways to approach the
implementation process of the CPTD system. The Endorsement Handbook was completed to assist with the
provision of clear guidelines on the value of professional development points, as well as how, and on what basis
such points will be allocated.

From a total of 5 907 new applications for the evaluation of qualifications for employment in education, as well
as for REQV recognition that were received, 3 559 applications have been evaluated and approved.

The Department produced and administered the first cycle of the annual national assessments (ANA) in literacy
and numeracy for Grade 1 to 6 learners in public schools. The assessments form part of the Foundations for
Learning (FFL) Campaign and are intended to monitor progress in laying solid foundations for learning at
primary school level between 2008 and 2011. The set target of the FFL Campaign is to ensure that by 2011 no
learner would atftain an aggregate score of less than 50% in these standardised assessments.



The first phase of providing feedback on the results of the ANA was confined to Grades 3 and 6, and involved
663 001 learners from 7 000 schools, spread across eight of the nine provinces. Baseline findings from the
2008 assessments indicated that 60% of Grade 3 learners obtained aggregate scores in the range of 0-49% in
both literacy and numeracy. For Grade 6, languages and Mathematics, the corresponding proportion was 75%.
The results of Grade 3 and 6 learners, performing at an “outstanding” level (Level 4 with aggregate scores of
between 70% and 100%) in both literacy and numeracy, were 15% and 10% respectively. An impact evaluation
study will be conducted in 2011 to measure progress in the four years of the FFL's existence.

The results of the systemic evaluation survey of 2007, which was conducted in the Foundation Phase (Grade 3),
were also released during 2008. The mean or average scores obtained by learners were 36% in literacy and
35% in numeracy. These findings corroborate the ANA results, which indicated that the majority of Grade 3
learners (65%) were functioning at 0-49% (Levels 1 and 2).

Both the ANA and the systemic evaluation results indicate that overall, primary school learners are functioning at
unsatisfactory levels, and that the strategic initiatives of the FFL Campaign need to be strengthened.

The National Curriculum Statement (NCS) was implemented in Grade 12 during 2008, with the result that
all grades now follow the NCS. The first National Senior Certificate Examinations were written by more than
588 000 Grade 12-learners during November 2008. In addition, examination papers were set for the FET
colleges and ABET centres.

In respect of the old curriculum, learners who did not pass the Senior Certificate in 2007, and other learners
wishing to obtain a Senior Certificate, were given support via the Second Chance Programme. Three further
opportunities will be offered to these learners during May/June 2009, 2010 and 2011.

At FET colleges, the National Certificate (Vocational) Level 3 was offered for the first time to 10 000 students at 50
FET colleges in 2008, and 20 000 students are registered for 2009. The National Certificate (Vocational) Level
4 is being offered for the first time to 5 000 students in 2009. To support the recapitalisation and transformation
of the 50 FET colleges, guidelines and budget requirements for the enrolment of NC(V) students per campus
and college were distributed to colleges. ICT connectivity at all KwaZulu-Natal colleges and at one Eastern Cape
college was completed.

A career guidance booklet and various publications and pamphlets on study and bursary opportunities at FET
colleges were distributed. The curricula for all new NC(V) programmes and subjects were completed. Textbook
catalogues for Levels 2, 3 and 4 were distributed to FET colleges. Curriculum documents were developed for
Level 5 Programmes and in two fundamental subjects, namely Mathematics and Mathematical Literacy. Lecturer
training was conducted in 12 programmes and in four fundamental subjects, namely Mathematics, Mathematical
Literacy, Life Orientation and English First Additional Language. A total of 2 052 lecturers registered for training.

The Department completed the feasibility study on ICT in schools. This study provides the framework for the
expansion of ICT in schools. The Thutong Portal, which is the Department’s curriculum website, was redesigned
and launched in 2008.

Two Youth Dialogues were conducted with the overarching theme, “Education changes lives, changes
communities”. The Department also organised two youth camps in an attempt to assist young people where
risk behaviour in the identified schools is high. Two Value Mate publications, focusing on the values of respect,
responsibility and resourcefulness, were published during 2008/09. A second edition of the booklet, My Country
South Africa, Celebrating Our National Symbols and Heritage, was distributed to all provinces. A booklet on
key historical anniversaries, entitled Amandla, with suggestions for teachers on how to use resources in the
classroom, was distributed to all schools. The booklet, Stories that Talk, developed by Heartlines, was translated
into all 11 official languages and distributed to all provinces.



The implementation of interventions under the Ministerial Project to Create Safe, Caring and Child-Friendly
Schools continued during 2008. The Hlayiseka Early Warning System was rolled out to all high priority schools
(schools with high levels of crime and violence) in the various provinces. Some provinces went beyond the 65
schools per province and included additional schools that are at risk of crime and violence. The installation
of CCTV systems took place at eight schools. Anecdotal evidence indicates that the mere knowledge of the
presence of these systems has impacted positively on the behaviour of learners.

A Code of Conduct for Learners at Public Schools was developed and distributed to the provinces for
implementation. To expand access to school music, the Department conducted an adjudicators workshop, by
training a core of six adjudicator trainers from each province.

In respect of the National School Nutrition Programme, a Guide for Secondary Schools was developed in
preparation for the Programme to commence in April 2009, and 2 950 guides were distributed. A total of
450 000 comics, aimed at promoting healthy lifestyles amongst Grade 5 learners, and entitled Wanna Be a
Star?, were printed and will be distributed in 2009/10.

In line with South Africa’s commitment to the United Nation’s Education for All (EFA) Campaign, the Kha Ri Gude
Mass Literacy Campaign aims to achieve a 50% reduction in the adult illiteracy rate by 2012. The Campaign
was launched in 2008 and, in its pilot year, exceeded its target of 300 000 learners by enrolling 357 195
learners — while establishing approximately 30 000 learning sites in homes, churches and community centres
across the nine provinces. In order to achieve its goal of affecting literacy for large numbers of adult learners,
the Campaign resulted in more than 30 000 volunteer educators being recruited and trained — each of whom
were required to teach groups of 15 learners at sites near the learners’ homes.

The Kha Ri Gude didactic approach for teaching literacy drew on the principles of the language experience
approach and phonic approaches, while taking serious cognisance of recent developments emanating from
neuro-cognitive research into how adults learn to read and write. These approaches were integrated and
operationalised via the learner support materials which are developed in all the official languages.

The Kha Ri Gude Campaign also endeavours to address the needs of the disabled and, in 2008, sixty deaf
volunteers were trained to teach deaf illiterate learners via the medium of sign language, as well as 93 blind
volunteer educators who were equipped to teach blind illiterate adults to read Braille.

While the Campaign is essentially an educational intervention, it nevertheless has a far-reaching impact on,
for example, youth development and community organisation, and also on the alleviation of poverty, via the
payment of stipends to volunteers who teach in the Campaign.

In respect of higher education, meetings were held with universities to discuss the outcomes of the analysis
of annual reports for 2007/08, as well as policy priorities. The Higher Education Qualifications Framework
became effective as from 1 January 2009. Work is continuing, so as to ensure that the implementation proceeds
as scheduled.

The revised document on the classification of educational subject matter was released to all public higher
education institutions for implementation on 1 January 2010. The Institutional Forum Review was finalised, and
an investigation into racism and transformation in higher education was conducted.

A framework for distributing clinical training funds to universities was approved and clinical training grants were
paid to universities in 2008/09, on the basis of a new formula and approved budgets. A cohort study, including
the years 2006 and 2007, is currently being undertaken. The Student Governance Framework was published
and the Space Classification and Space Norm Manuals were revised.

During 2008/09, support was extended to institutions facing governance and management issues. A report
on the investigation, by an Independent Assessor, at the Mangosuthu University of Technology was published,
and an administrator was appointed at the University. A task team was also appointed to assist the University of



Fort Hare in developing a turnaround strategy for the University, and the Policy Framework on HIV and Aids for
Higher Education in South Africa was adopted.

Spending trends
The under-expenditure of R40.300 million (R145.426 million in 2007/08) on the Department’s programmes,

measured against allocations after virement, is as follows, in R’000:

2007/08 2008/09
Under- Percentage Under- Percentage
expenditure expenditure

114 Administration 13 860 9.70% 2 374 1.19%
2 System Planning and Monitoring 36 865 41.51% 1779 1.63%
3, General Education 16 527 6.01% 25204 7.66%
4. Further Education and Training 68 201 5.68% 1792 0.16%
5. Social and School Enrichment 5295 0.41% 1380 0.06%
6. Higher Education 3289 0.02% 7 143 0.05%
7. Auxiliary and Associated Services 1389 2.04% 628 2.17%
Total 145 426 0.89% 40 300 0.20%

The under-expenditure did not impact negatively on the Department’s programmes and service delivery. Factors
that contributed to under-expenditure included the following: goods delivered but not paid for; the withholding of
funds in respect of the HIV and Aids Conditional Grant to Limpopo, due to low spending levels in that province;
funds internally reallocated to the CHE, and for which Treasury approval, to transfer these funds to the CHE,
could not be obtained; and cost containment measures that were put in place to ensure that the Department did
not overspend on its budget.

Actions taken to manage a recurrence of the above, include the ongoing monitoring of expenditure on a
monthly basis, whereby responsibility managers are requested to provide progress reports on projects. The
Minister is also being kept informed on spending levels in terms of the Public Finance Management Act. At
Senior Management meetings, the Department’s spending is also being monitored and discussed at least once
a month. The reprioritisation of activities, falling within the Department’s objectives, is also considered when
necessary.

For more information on under-expenditure or savings, please refer to the Notes to the Appropriation Statement.

Virement
The virement applied within the Department is as follows, in R’000:

Shifted from Shifted to Amount
2: System Planning and Monitoring 4: Further Education and Training 9477
3: General Education 4: Further Education and Training 28 616
5: Social and School Enrichment 4: Further Education and Training 11 639
6: Higher Education 4: Further Education and Training 1469
6: Higher Education 1: Administration 1784
6: Higher Education 7: Auxiliary and Associated Services 247

As a result of unforeseen and unavoidable expenditure in respect of the remuneration of examiners and
moderators for the Grade 12 examinations, learners who did not pass the 2007 matric examinations (Matric
Second Chance Programme), and projects supporting the National Curriculum Statement, deliberate savings
on various projects were effected in order to accommodate the projected over-expenditure on these projects.
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Treasury approval, with reference number SS9/4/4/4/13, dated 5 February 2009 and 17 March 2009, was
obtained for increasing compensation of employees; for the remuneration of examiners and moderators; and
for shifting funds from earmarked allocations, in order to defray unforeseen and unavoidable expenditure on
Programme 4: Further Education and Training. Funds were also shifted between programmes pertaining to the
compensation of employees, so as to accommodate possible over-expenditure on compensation of employees
in some of the programmes.

The virement was approved by the Director-General in accordance with the Public Finance Management Act.
2. Services rendered by the Department

2.1 Services rendered

The Department is mainly responsible for the formulation of national education policy and for monitoring and
evaluating the implementation of policy. However, services were rendered on a national basis in respect of FET
college examinations and certificates, and in respect of the registration of private higher education institutions.
The total revenue, collected in this regard for the period under review, amounts to R95 000.

2.2 Tariff policy

National Technical Examinations
Tariffs for services rendered in respect of the National Technical Examinations were as follows:

a)  National Senior Certificate (Umalusi fees — VAT included) 30.00
b)  Higher than Senior Certificate 60.00

a)  For all standards and grades 81.00

a)  For a duplicate certificate that was issued to replace a previous certificate 60.00
Other
a)  Reissuing of statement symbols 30.00
b)  Changes or amendments to certificates (not issued by Umalusi) 30.00
c) Transfer of examination entry 25.00
d)  Exemption for, or recognition of, subjects passed with other examining bodies 50.00

e)  Postage
*  Africa 117.00
*  Overseas (Diplomatic Bag) 140.00
*  Overseas via Post Office 200.00
f) Application for additional time and/or assistance 51.00
g) Late entry or amendments penalty 21.00
h)  Syllabuses (only applicable to examining bodies that supplied syllabuses to other examining bodies) 1.00
i) Rechecks 14.50

Private higher education institutions
Tariffs for the services rendered in respect of the Registrar of Private Higher Education Institutions, were as
follows:

a)  Application for registration 500.00
b)  Amendments 500.00
c) Conversions 500.00
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2.3 Free services
None

2.4 Inventories
The inventories on hand at year-end amounted to R344 430 (R182 578 in 2007/08) and were constituted as
follows, in R"000:

Item Amount
Stationery 344
Domestic consumables =
Total 344

The costing method used was the average price.

3. Capacity constraints

Of the 1 095 posts on the approved staff establishment, 890 posts were filled, leaving 205 vacancies. In
2008/09, a total of 189 appointments were made. However, the high number of vacancies inevitably had a
negative impact on human capacity and thus also on implementation. The Department has a relatively high
staff turnover rate. To address this matter, job evaluations were done on all middle-management posts, with
the outcome that almost all posts were shown to be at a higher level. The outcome of these job evaluations was
implemented in April 2008.

The Education Investment Review could not be completed, due to a lack of capacity within the Department. The
post of an economist and other vacant posts were filled. Due to cost containment measures, school visits and
the conducting of proper monitoring on site were hampered during 2008/09. The Department also does not
have the capacity to effectively monitor the implementation of policies on Conditions of Service for educators in
the provinces.

Proper continued monitoring of critical issues, such as uniformity in the implementation of salaries, progression
measures, leave measures, and the timely administration of retirements, is necessary to ensure an effective
administration of good policies. The Department was unable to recruit and retain high-level staff who are
competent in areas such as research and statistics. This is the case, despite repeated advertising, as well as
headhunting. There is furthermore a need for expertise to monitor and evaluate the achievements of participating
departments and stakeholders in meeting their HRD targets and, where necessary, to assist such departments
with remedial action.

Capacity constraints to manage, evaluate and maintain policy, programmes and systems for Early Childhood
Development in two main areas, namely Grade R and Pre-Grade R, are experienced, given the expansion of
both programmes. Posts pertaining to Mathematics, Natural Sciences and Education Management Systems were
filled in February 2009, resulting in major assistance with learning area development. To manage the entire
General Education Certificate development process, also poses a challenge.

There are no designated staff members in the provinces to focus on literacy activities, and the capacity in the
Inclusive Education Units across the system is limited. This is particularly the case at district level, where district-
based support teams are charged with the responsibility of supporting schools that deal with learners who
experience barriers to learning. Staff turnover and the resultant negative impact on continuity with regard to
the development of an inclusive education and training system, pose a challenge, especially in KwaZulu-Natal
and the Eastern Cape. There are furthermore not many professional therapists and psychologists available in
the country. Specialist staff members are needed to develop guidelines for various areas of specialisation, e.g.
Autism, Deaf Education, and Intellectual Disability.

The Examinations Chief Directorate increased its support to provinces and took over the Senior Certificate
Examinations, which became a national, and not a provincial examination as from 2008, that resulted in an
increased workload.



4. Utilisation of donor funds

The Department received new donations, totalling R94.762 million in cash, from foreign donors during the
2008/09 financial year. Expenditure of R126.860 million was incurred against funds held in the RDP Fund. The
balance of the funds available to the Department in the RDP Fund, as at 31 March 2009, stood at R106.062
million.

Donor funds were mainly used as follows:

* The European Union (EU) made 60 million Euros available for the upgrading and rehabilitation of 27
schools in Limpopo, the Eastern Cape and KwaZulu-Natal. Four works contracts for 21 schools, and two
additional contracts for six additional schools, were signed. The programme ran to an end on 28 February
2009 and, at the conclusion of the programme, nine schools had been handed over to beneficiaries in
Limpopo, nine to KwaZulu-Natal beneficiaries and nine to Eastern Cape beneficiaries. Social facilitation
in the communities, on the use of these facilities, was undertaken at all the schools. Furthermore, capacity
development of school governing bodies and school management teams, pertaining to the maintenance of
facilities, was also undertaken at all schools. An official handover ceremony of the programme was held at
the Sefoto Primary School in Limpopo, on 17 October 2008. With regard to the Higher Education HIV and
Aids Programme (HEAIDS), which is an initiative to develop and strengthen the capacity of South Africa’s
higher education sector to respond to the challenges resulting from HIV and Aids, an amount of R42.3
million was spent during the financial year.

*  The Sectoral Budget Support Programme, funded by the Netherlands to the amount of R112.587 million for
the 2008/09 financial year, was mainly used as follows:

NEIMS: The second phase of the National Infrastructure Management System (NEIMS) commenced with the
signing of the Service Level Agreement and the Project Charter for Phase Il of NEIMS, with SITA in January
2009, and work on matters identified in the Charter, entailing the upgrading of the system, has commenced.
The System Delivery Specification was completed and is ready for signature. Departmental officials have
direct access to NEIMS and can update it as such. The SITA certification process was concluded. All the
provinces have been linked to the NEIMS database, and can now use the database for planning and
reporting.

Reading Toolkit: An amount of R7.174 million was spent on the Reading Toolkit Project.

Teacher education: An amount of R11.528 million was allocated for the upgrading of unqualified and
underqualified teachers; R2.473 million was allocated for a teacher qualification survey at 400 schools
and at the RPL Colloquium; R6.417 million was transferred to the South African Council for Educators for
the development of the Continuing Professional Teacher Development System; and R3.495 million was
allocated to the Teacher Recruitment Campaign.

Implementation of the NCS: An amount of R1.230 million was spent on evaluating the implementation
of the NCS in the Intermediate Phase.

Celebration of historical anniversaries: The funds were used for advocacy and media coverage on
Value Mate; for the Youth Dialogues, which reflected the contributions of former President Nelson Mandela
and Mrs Albertina Sisulu; for the hosting of a school competition in celebration of the 90" birthdays of
Mr Nelson Mandela and Mrs Albertina Sisulu; for the Nkosi Albert Luthuli Young Historians Oral History
Competition; for the printing and distribution of a booklet, Stories that Talk, as well as a booklet for schools,
entitled Amandla, on key historical anniversaries; for the second edition of My Country South Africa,
Celebrating Our National Symbols and Heritage; and for the exhibition in celebration of the life of Nelson
Mandela.

®  Donor funds from the French and Taiwanese were used for the distribution of the NCS documents, NCS
advocacy and communication, as well as for teacher development with a view to curriculum implementation.

®  Donor funds from Sweden and Finland were used for a three-minute 13-series advocacy programme on
inclusive education, which was flighted on SABC 2, and which attracted on average one million viewers
per episode during 2008/09. This will be followed by a radio broadcast of the series, as well as by the
development and distribution of a magazine and DVDs on the 13 messages. Training of 5 000 district
officials and school-based educators on the Screening, ldentification, Assessment and Support (SIAS)
Strategy, as well as of 180 educators from schools for learners with visual and hearing loss, was conducted.



® Donor funds from the Norwegians were used for projects such as access, retention and success,
multilingualism, capacity-building and SADC institutional collaboration, which were implemented at various
higher education institutions.

® Donor funds from Carnegie were used for the Carnegie-SA Undergraduate Women's Scholarship Programme.
As a result, participation rates of female students in higher education, as well as in scarce skills areas, have
increased.

®  Arcello Mittal: The launch of the R250-million donation project of ten schools in the nine provinces by Arcello
Mittal was successfully conducted by the Minister of Education on 2 February 2009. The building contractor
for the Meetse a Bophelo Primary School in Mamelodi was appointed on 15 March 2009. Planning for the
building of two schools in the Eastern Cape, during 2009, has commenced.

5. Public entities
There are six public entities that report to the Minister of Education, namely:

5.1 Council on Higher Education (CHE)
The CHE is an independent statutory body, established by the Higher Education Act, 1997. It advises the Minister

of Education on all policy matters related to higher education. An amount of R31.208 million was transferred
to the CHE in 2008/09.

In 2008/09, the CHE carried out a number of projects, including the following:

® A report on Institutional Autonomy and Academic Freedom was published for comment.

® The CHE hosted a colloquium on community engagement during March 2009, and a policy position paper
on community engagement was completed. A meeting was held with the leadership of five rural universities
to discuss ways in which previously disadvantaged rural institutions could establish an identity, based on the
unique contribution these institutions could make to the higher education landscape.

® Guidance was provided to the Universities of Limpopo and Zululand, and to the Walter Sisulu University, on
the submission of programmes, in order to be awarded full accreditation, as well as on steps to be taken
when implementing the Improvement Plan/Progress Reports for evaluation.

® The Improvement of Teaching and Learning (ITL) Project was revived.

® The Higher Education Quality Committee (HEQC) received 31 applications for programme accreditation
from private providers, and four from public providers of higher education. Private providers whose
registration with the Department expires are required to submit their programmes for re-accreditation to the
HEQC a year before their registration expires. For this exercise, a total of 115 programmes were received
from 40 providers.

® Improvement plans for 32 programmes, which received conditional accreditation in the context of the
national review on academic and professional programmes in education, were received from 13 higher
education institutions.

* Two capacity-building workshops, aimed at increasing the pool of evaluators for the re-accreditation of
private providers, were conducted for 120 evaluators.

® The Higher Education Quality Committee Information System (HEQCIS), which collects data from private
higher education institutions on enrolments and awards, was developed. A workshop was conducted to
introduce the HEQCIS to private providers.

5.2 Education Labour Relations Council (ELRC)
ELRC was established in terms of the Labour Relations Act, 1995. The main functions of the Council are to
negotiate agreements on matters of mutual interest and to settle disputes between parties to the Council. ELRC
also analyses the education situation in the country and keeps abreast of relevant international developments
and trends. It does not receive government funding, but relies on membership fees from educators, employer
contributions and interest on investments for its revenue.



In 2008/09, ELRC achieved the following:

®  Further negotiations took place, study tours were undertaken and task teams were established as part of the
implementation of the Occupational-specific Dispensation for Educators.

* A professional development programme for panellists was developed, and a recruitment drive for panellists
in all provinces was conducted.

* A total of 575 disputes were referred to Council. Of these, 34 were settled at conciliation hearings, while
368 disputes are still being dealt with. The remainder were either withdrawn, abandoned or removed due
to a lack of jurisdiction or non-attendance by the referring parties.

5.3 National Student Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS)

NSFAS was established in terms of the National Student Financial Aid Scheme Act, 1999. It is responsible
for administering loans and bursaries and allocating these to eligible students; for developing criteria and
conditions, in consultation with the Minister of Education, for the granting of loans and bursaries to eligible
students; for raising funds and recovering loans; for maintaining and analysing a database; for undertaking
research into improved utilisation of financial resources; and for advising the Minister on matters relating to
financial aid for students. An amount of R1 702.375 million was transferred to NSFAS in 2008/09. Other
revenue comprises donor funds, money repayable on study loans, and interest on investments.

In 2008/09, NSFAS achieved the following:

® Revised policy guidelines, aimed at assisting students with disabilities to gain access to higher education,
were completed.

® NSFAS endeavoured to raise funds from government institutions, other than the Department of Education, in
order to maintain the funding of scarce skills development amongst both new and existing students.

® An electronic loans application (e-LAFS) scheme, which allows electronic loan agreement forms to be
completed, signed and delivered electronically by institutions, was launched as a pilot project at both the
Durban University of Technology and Tshwane University of Technology. The NSFAS loan agreement form
was amended to be fully compliant with the National Credit Act requirements. A pre-agreement statement
and quotation form were also finalised.

® Loan recoveries increased steadily throughout the year and were above target at the end of the financial
year.

* Atotal of 413 230 awards were made during 2008/09.

® NSFAS distributed 140 000 brochures and 36 posters to schools; 101 000 brochures and 500 posters to
universities, and 500 posters to FET colleges.

5.4 South African Council for Educators (SACE)

SACE was established in terms of the South African Council for Educators Act, 2000. lts core function is the
registration, promotion and professional development of educators, as well as setting, maintaining and protecting
ethical and professional standards for educators. SACE does not receive direct transfers from government, but
relies on employees’ registration fees, as well as on interest on investments for its revenue. However, a donor-
funded amount of R6.417 million was transferred to SACE in 2008/09 for the Continuing Professional Teacher
Development System.

In 2008/09, SACE achieved the following:

® Council registered a total number of 20 774 new educators.

®* Avreport on a pilot study pertaining to professional development was produced.

® Guidelines on the Professional Development Programme (PDP) for all post levels were issued, and 10 000
educators attended a workshop on PDP and on IQMS standards.

* Twenty out of 102 complaints received were finalised.

5.5 South African Qualifications Authority (SAQA)
SAQA is a statutory body, established in terms of the South African Qualifications Act, 1995. In terms of the

Act, SAQA is responsible for overseeing the development and implementation of the National Qualifications
Framework (NQF).



SAQA has three main deliverables: Registering qualifications and standards on the NQF; establishing a
system-wide quality assurance system; and further developing and maintaining the National Learners’ Records
Database (NLRD). In addition, SAQA is responsible for evaluating foreign qualifications, conducting research
and liaising internationally. The Department transferred an amount of R37.566 million to SAQA during
2008/09. Other revenue comprises additional income raised via the Joint Implementation Plan (JIP), the rental
of office space in SAQA House, interest on income, as well as fees charged for specific NLRD services and for
the evaluation of foreign qualifications.

In 2008/09, SAQA achieved the following:

® SAQA registers qualifications and unit standards that are responsive to national needs, and 140 new
qualifications and 641 new unit standards were registered during the period under review, including
qualifications for Engineering, Policing, Sports Coaching and Fitness, and Municipal Governance.

* SAQA completed its first round of performance auditing of Education and Training Quality Assurance bodies
(ETQAs), thus evaluating the performance of ETQAs in preparation for the new system, and publishing a
report on the trends that emerged during these audits.

®* SAQA provided NLRD information to key partners and policy-makers, and cooperated with a number of
bodies, including Statistics South Africa, regarding information management. The demand for verification
of learner achievements also increased.

®*  Anumberof SAQA's business systems were integrated, in order to achieve greater efficiency and effectiveness.
These included the Electronic Customer Relations Management System; an Employee Self-service System
that enables staff members to apply for leave and to access their own information electronically; as well as
another module of the electronic system used for the evaluation of foreign qualifications, which facilitates
reporting and automated communication with clients via e-mail and SMS during every stage of their
applications.

® SAQA participated in international projects, including the hosting of ten international delegations, as well as
assisting Ethiopia and the Seychelles with the establishment of their national qualification frameworks and
related matters.

5.6 Umalusi

Umalusi is a council, established in terms of the General and Further Education and Training Quality Assurance
Act, 2001. It is responsible for the following: ensuring continuous quality improvement in the delivery and
outcomes of the general and further education and training sectors of the national education and training
system, by monitoring the suitability and adequacy of standards and qualifications; accrediting private providers
and monitoring and reporting on public providers; assuring the quality of learner assessments at exit points;
issuing certificates; and promoting quality amongst providers of education, training and assessment. During the
2008/09 financial year, an amount of R16.044 million was transferred to Umalusi. Other revenue comprises
fees charged for services, donor funds, contributions received, and interest on investments.

In 2008/09, Umalusi achieved the following:

®  Umalusi quality assured the assessment and approved the results of the following examinations:
> The National Senior Certificate, written for the first time in 2008
» The Senior Certificate, to be phased out by 2011
» The National Certificate Vocational Levels 2 and 3
» Technical Certificate N3, to be phased out by 2011
» The General Education and Training Certificate for Adults

® Arevised General and Further Education and Training Qualifications Sub-framework was submitted to the
Minister for declaration as policy, and a policy framework, which lays the foundation for Council’s quality
assurance of the sub-framework, was published.

® A number of research projects were undertaken and reported on. The most notable of these was the
Maintaining Standards Project, which investigated the standards of curricula and examination products
across six subjects for the Senior Certificate and the new National Senior Certificate. These subject reports
were fed info the standardisation process of the National Senior Certificate, which was written for the first
time in 2008.



® Arevised accreditation framework for private providers of education and training, as well as for assessment
bodies, was approved by the Umalusi Council in February 2009 and submitted to the Minister for declaration
as policy.

® Providers across all sectors were provisionally accredited and monitored via the submission of annual
self-evaluation reports and improvement plans. These included the evaluation of reports for independent
schools, private FET colleges and private AET providers. More than 400 site visits were conducted across all
three sectors.

® The assessment system of the National Certificate Vocational was evaluated at national, provincial and
college level, with a particular focus on site-based internal assessment.

6. Other organisations to whom transfer payments were made

6.1 Higher education institutions (HEls)

Funds were transferred to support HEls, in order to enable them to perform their core functions (i.e. lecturing
and research) efficiently and effectively. This is linked to the broader policy goals and objectives outlined in the
National Plan for Higher Education, which is underpinned by the need to ensure sustainability, affordability
and responsiveness of the higher education system, and to enable it to contribute to the social and economic
development of South Africa. A total amount of R13 797.403 million was transferred to HEls.

6.2 Sector education and training authority (SETA)

In terms of the Skills Development Act, 1998, and the Skills Development Levies Act, 1999, an amount of
R146 077 was transferred to the Education, Training and Development Practices Sector Education and Training
Authority.

6.3 Other transfers

* Association for the Development of Education in Africa (ADEA)
An amount of R19 044 was transferred to ADEA.

* Guidance, Counselling and Youth Development Centre for Africa: Malawi
An amount of R75 750 was transferred to this Centre.

* UNESCO (United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organisation)
An amount of R8.588 million was transferred to UNESCO, as South Africa’s annual membership fee.

* Commonwealth of Learning
An amount of R1.866 million was transferred to the Commonwealth of Learning.

* India-Brazil-South Africa
The India-Brazil-South Africa Trilateral Commission Dialogue Forum was established in 2003 by these three
developing countries, in order to work towards a common vision for enhanced South-South cooperation.
An amount of R390 000 was transferred to this Commission via the University of KwaZulu-Natal for this
Commission.

* Childline South Africa
A Memorandum of Agreement between the Department and Childline South Africa was signed to ensure
that Childline South Africa would receive calls forwarded by the Department relating, inter alia, to cases
of abuse in schools, and to provide counselling services to victims as needed. An amount of R50 000 was
transferred as a contribution to Childline South Africa.

6.4 Conditional grants to provincial education departments

Four conditional grants, the Disaster Management Grant, the Further Education and Training Colleges (FET
colleges) Recapitalisation Grant, the HIV and Aids Life Skills Programme, and the National School Nutrition
Programme (NSNP) were allocated to the Department during the period under review. Before funds were

transferred to the provinces, the Department ensured that all the requirements of the Division of Revenue Act,
2008, had been met.
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The total allocation per conditional grant for 2008/09, in R'000, is as follows:

Disaster Management 22 002 22 002 22 002 100.0
FET colleges 795170 795170 795170 100.0
HIV and Aids 171 126 165 003 165 395 99.7
NSNP 1927 109 1927 109 1641526 85.2
Total 2 915 407 2 909 284 2 624 093 90.0

6.4.1 Disaster Management Grant

The main objective of this conditional grant was to address the storm damage to schools in Mpumalanga
and KwaZulu-Natal. Monthly reports were received from Mpumalanga and KwaZulu-Natal, indicating progress
and expenditure on the projects. Monitoring visits to four schools in Mpumalanga were undertaken during
February 2009. Schools affected by the disasters were repaired and, as a result, the education of learners was
not adversely affected.

6.4.2 FET Colleges Recapitalisation Grant

The main objective of this conditional grant is to increase the number of students enrolled for high priority
skills vocational programmes, which lead to higher education or employment, by providing the essential
infrastructure, equipment, learning material and human resources required to deliver skills programmes. The
total amount spent reflects the transfer by provincial education departments to FET colleges. As a result of
provincial roll-overs, actual spending at college level amounted to R794.569 million.

Achievements during the 2008/09 financial year:

* Altogether 5 103 college staff members were trained for the delivery of NC(V).

* LAN and WAN were installed at 86 college sites.

* Altogether 180 workshops were upgraded at FET colleges.

* Altogether 182 new classrooms, 46 new workshops and 27 new laboratories were built.
* Altogether 280 college workshops were fitted with modern equipment.

Challenges facing the achievement of outputs during the 2008/09 financial year:

* A deviation from spending in terms of the operational plan was made with the approval of virement. If
the request for virement was more than 10%, the amendment to the operational plan was approved by
the Director-General and, if it was less than 10%, it was approved by the head of the provincial education
department.

* In some instances, provincial education departments, as well as a few of the FET colleges, did not comply
with the due date for the submission of both their monthly and quarterly reports. Follow-ups had to be
made until the reports were received. In one case, the Free State Department of Education did not submit
its third quarterly report.

e The Northern Cape Department of Education transferred the second tranche to urban FET colleges in
January 2009, instead of in October 2008. The reason provided for the late transfer was that the province
experienced cash-flow problems.

* The Limpopo Department of Education decided to transfer the second tranche for Vhembe in December
2008, pending the submission of the said Department’s audited financial statements for the 2007/08
financial year.

6.4.3 HIV and Aids
The main objective of this conditional grant is to coordinate and support the structured integration of life skills
and HIV and Aids programmes across all learning areas in the school curriculum.
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Achievements during the 2008/09 financial year:

o Altogether 2 039 district-based master trainers were trained to improve their knowledge and skills in
response to programme implementation.

*  Altogether 24 232 educators were trained in teaching Life Skills and the handling of learner issues.

* Altogether 47 605 learners and 1 268 teachers from 5 000 schools were trained in peer group education.

* Altogether 295 103 age-appropriate Learner and Teaching Support Materials were distributed to 5 000
schools.

*  Monitoring, evaluation and support of 3 093 schools took place.

Challenges facing the achievement of outputs during the 2008/09 financial year:

*  The North West Province has very few officials who are responsible for Life Skills at the Area Project Office
Level and, in June 2008, the project coordinator resigned. The programme is currently being coordinated
by a curriculum official.

*  An amount of R6.123 million was withheld from Limpopo, due to low spending levels in the province, which
arose from the fact that activities could only be conducted in the province during the September school
holidays.

6.4.4 National School Nutrition Programme (NSNP)
The main objective of this conditional grant is to contribute to enhanced learning capacity by providing learners
with nutritious food at schools.

Achievements during the 2008/09 financial year:

*  Access to the Programme was provided to approximately 6.041 million learners from 17 899 schools from
mainly rural, farm and informal settlement areas.

*  Altogether 6 503 school food gardens were developed and sustained.

o Altogether T 160 community-based cooperatives are serving as service providers on the programme, by
providing food supplies to schools, and about 39 417 food handlers are working on the Programme and
they received honoraria ranging between R300 and R500 a month per person.

* Altogether 838 capacity-building workshops were conducted on Food Safety, Nutrition Education and
Sustainable Food production.

*  Altogether 2 982 monitoring visits were made to schools by province and district officials.

* The Department successfully intervened in the Sekhukhune District in Limpopo, following reported non-
provision of food to learners. The provision of food resumed without much delay.

6.4.5 Compliance with the Division of Revenue Act (DoRA)

In terms of Section 10(5) of the DoRA, 2008, the duties of the transferring national officer include submitting
monthly reports to the National Treasury, in the format determined by the National Treasury, not later than 20
days after the end of each month. This obligation was adhered to. In terms of Section 12(2) of the DoRA, 2008,
the duties of the receiving officer include submitting monthly reports to the relevant provincial Treasury, and to
the transferring national officer, on amounts received, funds withheld, and on the province’s actual expenditure.
Not all provinces reported by the 15™ for each month of the financial year. However, all information was
collected on a monthly basis before the Department reported to National Treasury on the 20" of each month.
Some provinces could not submit quarterly reports as prescribed. In most cases, the Department was left with
no option but to submit quarterly reports to National Treasury and to the National Council of Provinces without
inputs having been received from some provinces.

6.4.6 Late approval of business plans

Provincial workshops to support the development of business plans were conducted in the nine provinces.
Final business plans were developed and compliance certificates were submitted to National Treasury,
pertaining to the FET Colleges Recapitalisation Grant, the HIV and Aids Life Skills Programme, and the
NSNP conditional grant.



6.4.7 Performance evaluation of conditional grants

In terms of Section 10(6) of the Division of Revenue Act 1 of 2007, the transferring national officer must
evaluate the performance of programmes funded or partially funded by the allocation, and then submit such
evaluation to the National Treasury within four months after the end of the financial year. The Department
conducted an annual performance evaluation of the three conditional grants, namely the National School
Nutrition Programme (NSNP), the HIV and Aids Life Skills Education Programme, and the FET College
Recapitalisation Programme. This was done in accordance with the process outlined in Practice Note 6, issued
by National Treasury, for this purpose. The evaluation process was completed in all nine provinces. Schools, as
well as FET colleges were evaluated in line with the Evaluation Plan that had been submitted to the National
Treasury, and the Evaluation Report was then submitted to the National Treasury.

7. Public private partnerships (PPPs)

The Department entered into a PPP agreement for the financing, construction, operation and maintenance
of office accommodation for the Department. The final concession agreement was signed on 20 April 2007
and construction commenced during the 2007/08 financial year. The new building is due to be completed by
the end of August 2009, and progress with the construction is on target. Due to the growth of the Department
since the finalisation of the building design, the design of the building had to be revised during 2007/08. The
Department obtained approval from National Treasury to sign a variation agreement, which makes provision
for the enlargement of the building. This variation agreement was signed and the Department made a R40
million capital investment during 2008/09, in order to minimise the increase in the unitary fee. A second
variation for the upgrading of the interior layout, and of the IT and telephone cabling network is in the process
of being submitted to the National Treasury for approval. The Department intends to make a R35 million capital
investment in 2009/10 for purposes of this intended variation.

8. Corporate governance arrangements

8.1 The Department’s risk assessment and fraud prevention plan

A risk assessment was done during the financial year and the Internal Audit Unit assisted management with the
annual review of the Risk Assessment Document. A fraud prevention plan is in place, as required by Treasury
Regulations.

8.2 Internal Audit Unit

The Internal Audit Unit is operational, with skilled staff members, and it functions effectively, as required by the
Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). An audit plan was developed from the risk assessment conducted in
the Department, and is has been approved by the Audit Committee. During the period under review, internal
audit engagements were performed in accordance with the audit plan. Where appropriate, the Department
implemented the recommendations made in the Internal Audit reports. Internal Audit quarterly reports were
compiled and submitted to the Audit Committee.

The Internal Audit Unit has a forensic audit component for the purpose of investigating alleged fraud and
corruption in the Department.

8.3 The Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is in place and functions effectively, as required by Treasury Regulations and the PFMA. The
Committee meets four times a year.

8.4 Management processes for minimising conflict of interest

All senior managers in the Department are compelled to declare their financial interests to the Minister on an
annual basis. Furthermore, all employees in the Department are compelled to request permission from the
Director-General before they do any work outside the Department that generates additional remuneration. All
senior managers also signed performance agreements and are in the process of undergoing security clearance.



8.5 Implementation of a Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct for Public Servants, developed by the Public Service Commission to promote a high
standard of professional ethics in the Public Service, was implemented in the Department, and managers ensure
that all members of staff adhere to it. Two codes of conduct — one for public servants and one for educators —
have been distributed to every official in the Department and are fully implemented.

Employees who violate the codes of conduct are disciplined in terms of the Disciplinary Code and Procedures for
the Public Service, or the Disciplinary Code and Procedures for Educators, as set out in the regulations in terms
of the Education Laws Amendment Act.

8.6 Safety, health and environmental issues facing the Department
The Policy on Health and Safety in the Workplace is in the process of being reviewed. The Policy aims to create
a positive work environment for all members of staff in the Department.

8.7 Other governance structures

* Bid Adjudication Committee (BAC)

The BAC is responsible for considering the results/outcomes of the evaluation process conducted by the Bid
Evaluation Committee (BEC). The BEC’s duty is to adjudicate the evaluation process, scrutinise the Terms of
Reference of bids, and make recommendations to the Director-General on the advertising, awarding, extending
and cancellation of bids. The Committee also adjudicates to establish whether the bidding processes are fair,
equitable, transparent, competitive and cost-effective, and ensures that they comply with the PFMA, other
relevant legislation, as well as Treasury Regulations. The members of the Committee are senior managers from
the various programmes/branches in the Department, and they are appointed by the Director-General. The
Committee is scheduled to meet at least twice in a month, but ad-hoc meetings are arranged when required.

* Information Technology Committee (ITC)

The purpose of the ITC, which meets once a month, is to review and endorse information communication
technology (ICT) plans, policies and standards, and to co-ordinate and endorse compliance with the
Department’s ICT architecture, configuration and initiatives, with the strategic directions from the Government
Information Technology Officer Council (GITOC), as well as with government policies and standards. The ITC
also regulates the acquisition, deployment, use and disposal of all Information and Communications Technology,
Information Systems and Information Management Systems (ICT/IS/IM) in the Department. This is done in terms
of standardisation, needs, quantity required, frequency of use, and the potential impact on work in terms of work
outcomes and cost advantages.

* Budget Review Advisory Committee (BRAC)

BRAC advises the Accounting Officer on the allocation of departmental funds, conditional grants and donor
funds, and ensures that allocations and reallocations are in line with the educational priorities for a particular
financial year. BRAC comprises the Department’s programme managers.

9. Discontinued activities/activities to be discontinued
None.

10. New/proposed activities
The new activities as indicated below will have a positive influence on the normal operations of the Department,
since these activities have been developed, so as to streamline specific functions in the Department.

* National Education Evaluation and Development Unit (NEEDU)
The purpose of this Unit is to conduct independent evaluations and identify the developmental needs of schools
and teachers. An amount of R5.522 million was allocated to this Unit for the 2009/10 financial year.



* Higher Education Financial Planning

The purpose of this activity is to coordinate and manage the development and maintenance of an appropriate
funding framework and management information system for a diverse higher education system. The projected
expenditure on this activity in 2009/10 is R4.594 million.

11. Asset management
11.1 Progress with regard to capturing assets in a register
All the old and newly acquired assets were captured in the Asset Register, indicating their financial value.

11.2 Indication of the extent of compliance with the minimum requirements
The Asset Register complies with the minimum requirements.

11.3 Indication of the extent of compliance with asset management reform milestones
All assets were recorded in the Asset Register, and a policy was developed, pertaining to the reconciliation of
assets between the Asset Register and the Basic Accounting System.

11.4 Indication of problems experienced with asset management reform

The recording of assets in the Asset Register takes place in accordance with component accounting, while
the recording of payments for assets in the financial systems is treated as a unit. This results in reconciliation
discrepancies amongst minor and major assets. Therefore, a policy on reconciliation between the Asset Register
and the Basic Accounting System was developed.

12. Events after the reporting date
None.

13. Performance information

The Department is mainly responsible for the development of policy on education matters and for monitoring
and evaluating policy implementation. The verification of the Department’s performance in this regard is not a
complex process and could be performed by the Office of the Auditor-General and the Audit Committee.

14. SCOPA resolutions
None.

15. Prior modifications to audit reports
None.

16. Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury
None.

17. Other
None.

18. Approval
The Annual Financial Statements, set out on pages 249 to 296, were approved by the Accounting Officer.

9\ .

Mr D Hindle
Director-General
Date: 29 May 2009




We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2009.

1.

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE:

The Audit Committee consists of the members listed below and meets four times a year as, per its
approved terms of reference. During the current year six meetings were held.

Name of Member Number of meetings attended
Mr S Sithole (Chairperson) 6
Mr C Ledwaba 4
Ms C Mpati 4
Mr J Perks (Resigned on 8 May 2008) 1
Mr F Froneman (Appointed 7 July 2008) 4
Dr C Madiba (Appointed 7 July 2008) 2

AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY

The Audit Committee reports that it has carried out its responsibilities in terms of section 38(1)(a) of the
PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate
formal terms of reference as its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with
this charter, and discharged the responsibilities as contained therein.

THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of controls is designed to provide cost effective assurance that assets are safeguarded
and that liabilities and working capital are efficiently managed. In line with the requirements of the
PFMA and the King Il Report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides the Audit
Committee and management with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective.
This is achieved by means of the risk management process, as well as the identification of corrective
actions and suggested improvements to the controls and processes.

From the various reports of the internal auditors, the Audit Report on the Annual Financial Statements and
management report of the Auditor-General, it was noted that no significant or material non compliance
with prescribed policies and procedures have been reported. Accordingly, we can report that the systems
of internal control for the period under review were effective and efficient.

THE QUALITY OF THE MANAGEMENT AND QUARTERLY REPORTS SUBMITTED IN TERMS OF
THE PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT AND THE DIVISION OF REVENUE ACT

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of quarterly reports prepared and issued
by the Accounting Officer of the Department during the year under review.

EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee has

* reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements to be included in the annual report
with the Auditor-General and the Accounting Officer;

* reviewed the Auditor-General’s management letter and management’s response thereto.

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the Auditor-General’s conclusions on the annual financial

statements and is of the opinion that the audited annual financial statements should be accepted and

read together with the report of the Auditor-General.

Y —

Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Date: 31 July 2009



REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
PERFORMANCE INFORMATION OF VOTE NO. 13: DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

1. | have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Department of Education which comprise the
appropriation statement, the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2009, and the statement of
financial performance, the statement of changes in net assets and the cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages
249 to 296.

The accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting determined by the National Treasury as set out
in note 1.1 to the financial statements and in the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act,
1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), Division of Revenue Act (Act No. 2 of 2008) (DoRA) and for such internal
control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Auditor-General’s responsibility

3. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 read with section 4 of
the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), my responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on my audit.

4. | conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing read with General Notice
616 of 2008, issued in Government Gazette No. 31057 of 15 May 2008. Those standards require that |
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

6. |believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinion.

Opinion

7. In my opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Department of Education as at 31 March 2009 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended, in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting determined by the National Treasury
as set out in note 1.1 to the financial statements and in the manner required by the PFMA and DoRA.

Basis of accounting

8. Without qualifying my opinion, | draw attention to note 1.1 to the financial statements, which describes the
basis of accounting. The department’s policy is to prepare financial statements on the modified cash basis
of accounting determined by the National Treasury.



Other matters

Without qualifying my opinion, | draw attention to the following matters that relate to my responsibility in the
audit of the financial statements.

Governance framework

9. The governance principles that impact the auditor’s opinion on the financial statements are related to

reflected in the key governance responsibilities addressed below:

Key governance responsibilities

the responsibilities and practices exercised by the accounting officer and executive management and are

10. The PFMA tasks the accounting officer with a number of responsibilities concerning financial and risk
management and internal control. Fundamental to achieving this is the implementation of key governance

responsibilities, which | have assessed as follows:

No.

Matter

[ Y [N

Clear trail of supporting documentation that is easily available and provided in a timely manner

1. | No significant difficulties were experienced during the audit concerning delays or the availability of 4
requested information.

Quality of financial statements and related management information

2. | The financial statements were not subject to any material amendments resulting from the audit. v

3. |The annual report was submitted for consideration prior to the tabling of the auditor’s report. v

Timeliness of financial statements and management information

4. | The annual financial statements were submitted for auditing as per the legislated deadlines section 40| v
of the PFMA.

Availability of key officials during audit

5h | Key officials were available throughout the audit process. | v |

Development and compliance with risk management, effective internal control and governance

practices

6. | Audit committee
*  The department had an audit committee in operation throughout the financial year. v
*  The audit committee operates in accordance with approved, written terms of reference. v
*  The audit committee substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set out in section 77 of | v

the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.10.

7. |Internal audit
*  The department had an internal audit function in operation throughout the financial year. v
*  The internal audit function operates in terms of an approved internal audit plan. v
*  The infernal audit function substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set out in Treasury | v/

Regulation 3.2.

8. | There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal control in respect of | v
financial and risk management.

9. | There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal control in respect of | v
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

10. | The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of the financial statements. v

11. | A risk assessment was conducted on a regular basis and a risk management strategy, which includes v
a fraud prevention plan, is documented and used as set out in Treasury Regulation 3.2.

12. | Delegations of responsibility are in place, as set out in section 44 of the PFMA. v

Follow-up of audit findings

13. | The prior year audit findings have been substantially addressed. v

14. | SCOPA/Oversight resolutions have been substantially implemented. N/A

Issues relating to the reporting of performance information

15. | The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of a performance report thatis | v/
accurate and complete.

16. | Adequate control processes and procedures are designed and implemented to ensure the accuracy v
and completeness of reported performance information.




No. Matter Y N
17. | A strategic plan was prepared and approved for the financial year under review for purposes of v
monitoring the performance in relation to the budget and delivery by the Department of Education
against its mandate, predetermined obijectives, outputs, indicators and targets [Treasury Regulations
5.1,5.2 and 6.1].

18. |There is a functioning performance management system and performance bonuses are only paid v
after proper assessment and approval by those charged with governance.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Report on performance information

11. I have reviewed the performance information as set out on pages 68 to 190.
The accounting officer’s responsibility for the performance information

12. The accounting officer has additional responsibilities as required by section 40(3)(a) of the PFMA to ensure
that the annual report and audited financial statements fairly present the performance against predetermined
objectives of the department.

The Auditor-General’s responsibility

13. | conducted my engagement in accordance with section 13 of the PAA read with General Notice 616 of
2008, issued in Government Gazette No. 31057 of 15 May 2008 .

14. In terms of the foregoing my engagement included performing procedures of an audit nature to obtain
sufficient appropriate evidence about the performance information and related systems, processes and
procedures. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement.

15. | believe that the evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the audit
findings reported below.

Findings on performance information
Non-compliance with regulatory requirements
Inadequate quarterly reporting on performance information

16. In terms of the treasury regulation, TR 5.3.1, the department is required to report on a quarterly basis to
its executive authority on its performance against pre-determined objectives for all programmes. | was
unable to obtain evidence that the Department prepared and submitted its 2" quarterly progress report
for the 2008-09 financial year with regards to the General Education & Training and Higher Education
programmes.

Usefulness and reliability of reported performance information

17. The following criteria were used to assess the usefulness and reliability of the information on the department’s
performance with respect to the objectives in its strategic plan/annual performance plan:

e Consistency: Has the department reported on its performance with regard to its objectives, indicators
and targets in its approved strategic plan/annual performance plan?

* Relevance: Is the performance information as reflected in the indicators and targets clearly linked to
the predetermined objectives and mandate? Is this specific and measurable, and is the time period or
deadline for delivery specified?

e Reliability: Canthe reported performance information be traced back to the source data or documentation
and is the reported performance information accurate and complete in relation to the source data or
documentation?



The following findings relate to the above criteria:

Reported performance information not relevant

18. Some measures/indicators for Programme 5, Social and School Enrichment and Programme 6, Higher
Education contained in the strategic plan of the department were not well defined and verifiable to facilitate

monitoring of performance effectively.

A measure in Programme 6, Higher Education, and sub-programme — strengthen planning to support the
production of quality graduates, is not time bound, and did not have an indicator and activity.

APPRECIATION

19. The assistance rendered by the staff of the Department of Education during the audit is sincerely appreciated.

Pretoria
31 July 2009

A UDITOR-GENERAL
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1. Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):
Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 7 to Transfers and subsidies and Annexure 1 (A-F) to
the Annual Financial Statements.

2, Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement):
Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial
Statements.

3. Detail on financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in note é (Financial transactions in assets
and liabilities) to the Annual Financial Statements.

4, Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after Virement):
4.1 Per Programme
Variance as a % of
Final Appropriation |  Actual Expenditure Variance |  Final Appropriation
R'000 R'000 R’000 %
1: Administration 199 869 197 495 2374 1.2

There were no material variances on this programme.

2: System Planning and Monitoring 108 996 107 217 1779 1.6

The under-expenditure is due, mainly to the following:

®* An appropriate service provider could not be appointed to develop a Methodology for Costing a Basic Minimum Package for
Schooling due to high quotes received from the bidders, which were above the amount set aside for this project.

®  The lack of sufficient applications received for external moderators of the Integrated Quality Management System project. Therefore,
the full quota of these moderators was not appointed.

A saving was realised on litigation, as specific risks identified for the 2008/09 financial year, did not occur.

3: General Education 329 079 303 875 25 204 7.7

The under-expenditure is due, mainly to the following:

®  The withholding of the final transfer payment to Limpopo in respect of the HIV and Aids conditional grant due to low spending
levels in the province which arose from the fact that activities could only be conducted during the September school holidays.

®  The late delivery of proof of delivery notes by suppliers for the translation of the National Curriculum Statement and Teacher Guides
into all the official languages.

® A saving was realised on the Annual National Assessments for the Systemic Evaluation project due to a decision that was taken that
the distribution of the tests should be done by schools and not centrally. Savings on distribution costs were therefore also realised.

4: Further Education and Training 1102 956 1101 164 1792 0.2

There were no material variances on this programme.

5: Social and School Enrichment 2 421 389 2 420 009 1380 0.1

There were no material variances on this programme.

6: Higher Education 15558 159 15551016 7 143 0.0

There were no material variances on this programme.

7: Auxiliary and Associated Services 28 922 28 294 628 2.2

The saving is due, mainly to savings on the transfer payment to UNESCO as a result of the favourable Rand/Dollar exchange rate and a
discount received for early payment.




NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

VOTE 13

for the year ended 31 March 2009

4.2 Per Economic Classification

Current payments

Compensation of employees

Goods and services

Financial fransactions in assets and liabilities

Transfers and subsidies

Provinces and municipalities
Departmental agencies and accounts
Universities and technikons

Foreign governments and international
organisations

Non-profit institutions
Households

Payments for capital assets
Machinery and equipment
Software and other intangible assets

312 296
903 478

2 915 407
1787 340
13 803 413

11 455
50
1080

13 089
1762

259

310 991
877 204
184

2 909 284
1787 441
13797 403

10 938
50
976

12 868
1731

1305
26 274
(184)

6123
(101)
6010

517

104

221
31

0.4
2.9
0.0

0.2
0.0
0.0

4.5
0.0
9.6

1.7
1.8



REVENUE

Annual appropriation
Departmental revenue
Aid assistance

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURE

Current expenditure

Compensation of employees

Goods and services

Financial transactions in assets and liabilities
Aid assistance

Total current expenditure

Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies

Aid assistance

Total transfers and subsidies

Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible capital assets

Software and other intangible assets
Total expenditure for capital assets

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

Reconciliation of Net Surplus for the year

Voted Funds
Departmental revenue
Aid assistance

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

Note

W o O N

14

2008/09 2007/08
R'000 R'000

19 749 370 16 386 752
8196 8738

114 487 168 042

19 872 053 16 563 532
310 991 249 739
877 204 576 431
184 31 558

110 848 173710
1299 227 1031438
18 506 092 15 375 687
6417 :

18 512 509 15 375 687
22 463 8 284
1731 279
24194 8563

19 835 930 16 415 688
36 123 147 844

40 300 145 426
8196 8738

(12 373) (6 320)

36 123 147 844




ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepayments and advances
Receivables
Loans

Aid assistance receivable

Non-Current Assets
Loans

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Bank overdraft
Payables
Aid assistance unutilised

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Represented by:
Capitalisation reserve

Recoverable revenue

TOTAL

Note

10
11
12

12

13
14
15
16

2008/09 2007/08
R’000 R000
153 829 158 402
18 13 836

1043 10 330
134 919 127 206
1597 1445
16 252 5585
32 149 33 746
32149| | 33746
185 978 192 148
152 231 156 893
40 300 145 426
704 476

101 978 -
3393 3429
5856 7 562
152 231 156 893
33 747 35 255
33 746 35191

1 64

33 747 35 255




DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

VOTE 13

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
for the year ended 31 March 2009

Capitalisation Reserves
Opening balance
Transfers:
Movement in Operational Funds
Closing balance

Recoverable Revenue

Opening balance

Transfers:
Debts recovered (included in departmental receipts)
Debts raised

Closing balance

TOTAL

202

35 191 36 499
(1 445) (1 308)
33 746 35191
64 -

(63) 64
(87) (35)

24 99

1 64

33 747 35 255




CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Annual appropriated funds received
Departmental revenue received
Aid assistance received

Net (increase)/decrease in working capital

Surrendered to Revenue Fund

Current payments

Transfers and subsidies paid

Net cash flow available from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for capital assets

Proceeds from sale of capital assets
(Increase)/decrease in loans

Net cash flows from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/(decrease) in net assets

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Note

1.1

2.8

2008/09 2007/08
R’000 R'000

19 872 053 16 563 500
19 749 370 16 386 752
8196 8 706

114 487 168 042
1538 28139

(153 394) (57 281)
(1299 227) (1031 438)
(18 512 509) (15 375 687)
(91 539) 127 233
(24 194) (8 563)

- 32

1 445 1308

(22 749) (7 223)

(1 508) (1 244)

(1 508) (1 244)
(115 796) 118 766
13 836 (104 930)

(101 960) 13 836




The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have been applied
consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. However, where appropriate and meaningful,
additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the Financial Statements and to comply
with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of
1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the Act and the Division of Revenue Act, Act 2 of 2008.

1.

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.1

2.2

Presentation of the Financial Statements

Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a modified cash basis of accounting, except where
stated otherwise. The modified cash basis constitutes the cash basis of accounting supplemented with
additional disclosure items. Under the cash basis of accounting transactions and other events are
recognised when cash is received or paid.

Presentation currency
All amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the functional
currency of the department.

Rounding
Unless otherwise stated all financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand
(R’000).

Comparative figures

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial statements.
Where necessary figures included in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to
ensure that the format in which the information is presented is consistent with the format of the current
year's financial statements.

Comparative figures - Appropriation Statement
A comparison between actual amounts and final appropriation per major classification of expenditure
is included in the Appropriation Statement.

Revenue

Appropriated funds

Appropriated funds are recognised in the financial records on the date the appropriation becomes
effective. Adjustments to the appropriated funds made in terms of the adjustments budget process are
recognised in the financial records on the date the adjustments become effective.

Total appropriated funds are presented in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Unexpended appropriated funds are surrendered to the National Revenue Fund. Amounts owing to the
National Revenue Fund at the end of the financial year are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Position.

Departmental revenue

All departmental revenue is paid into the National Revenue Fund when received, unless otherwise
stated. Amounts owing to the National Revenue Fund at the end of the financial year are recognised in
the Statement of Financial Position.

Amounts receivable at the reporting date are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the annual financial
statements.



2.2.1

22.2

APRS

2.2.4
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2.2.6
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2.3

Tax revenue
Tox revenue consists of all compulsory unrequited amounts collected by the department in accordance
with laws and or regulations (excluding fines, penalties and forfeits).

Tax receipts are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance when received.

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets
The proceeds received from the sale of goods and/or the provision of services is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance when the cash is received.

Fines, penalties and forfeits

Fines, penalties and forfeits are compulsory unrequited amounts which were imposed by a court or
quasi-judicial body and collected by the Department. Revenue arising from fines, penalties and forfeits
is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance when the cash is received.

Interest, dividends and rent on land
Interest, dividends and rent on land is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance when the
cash is received.

Sale of capital assets
The proceeds received on sale of capital assets are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance
when the cash is received.

Financial transactions in assets and liabilities
Repayments of loans and advances previously extended to employees and public corporations for policy
purposes are recognised as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance on receipt of the funds.

Cheques issued in previous accounting periods that expire before being banked are recognised as
revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance when the cheque becomes stale. When the cheque
is reissued the payment is made from Revenue.

Transfers received (including gifts, donations and sponsorships)

All cash gifts, donations and sponsorships are paid into the National Revenue Fund and recorded as
revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance when received. Amounts receivable at the reporting
date are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the financial statements.

All in-kind gifts, donations and sponsorships are disclosed at fair value in the annexure to the financial
statements.

Aid assistance

Local and foreign aid assistance is recognised in the books of the Department when notification of the
assistance is received from the National Treasury and recorded as revenue when funds are withdrawn
from the RDP account or when the Department directly receives the cash from the donor(s).

All in-kind local and foreign aid assistance are disclosed at fair value in the annexures to the annual
financial statements.

The cash payments made during the year relating to local and foreign aid assistance projects are
recognised as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance. The value of the assistance
expensed prior to the receipt of the funds is recognised as a receivable in the Statement of Financial
Position.

Inappropriately expensed amounts using local and foreign aid assistance and any unutilised amounts
are recognised as payables in the Statement of Financial Position.



3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.1.4

3.2

3.3

3.4

Expenditure
Compensation of employees

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and wages comprise payments to employees (including leave entitlements, thirteenth cheques
and performance bonuses). Salaries and wages are recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Financial Performance when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system.

All other payments are classified as current expenses.

Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation are disclosed in
the disclosure notes to the financial statements. These amounts are not recognised in the Statements of
Financial Performance and Position.

Post retirement benefits
The department provides medical benefits for some of its employees. Employer contributions to the
medical funds are expensed when final authorisation for payment to the fund is effected on the system.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits such as severance packages are recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Financial Performance as a transfer (to households) when the final authorisation for payment is effected
on the system.

Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits (such as capped leave) are recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Financial Performance as a transfer (to households) when the final authorisation for payment is
effected on the system.

Long-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation are disclosed in
the disclosure notes to the financial statements. These amounts are not recognised in the Statements of
Financial Performance or Position.

Goods and services

Payments made for goods and/or services are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial
Performance when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system. The expense is classified
as capital if the goods and services were used for a capital project or an asset of R5 000 or more is
purchased. All assets costing less than R5 000 will also be reflected under goods and services.

Interest and rent on land

Interest and rental payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance
when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system. This item excludes rental for the use
of buildings or other fixed structures. If it is not possible to distinguish between payment for the use of
land and the fixed structures on it, the whole amount is recorded under goods and services.

Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Debts are written off when identified as irrecoverable. Debts written-off are limited to the amount of
savings and/or under-spending of appropriated funds. The write off occurs at year-end or when funds
are available. No provision is made for irrecoverable amounts but amounts are disclosed as a disclosure
note.

All other losses are recognised when authorisation has been granted for the recognition thereof.



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

4.1

4.2

4.3

Transfers and subsidies
Transfer and subsidies are recognised as an expense when the final authorisation for payment is
effected on the system.

Unauthorised expenditure

When discovered unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an asset in the Statement of Financial
Position until such time as the expenditure is either approved by the relevant authority, recovered from
the responsible person or written-off as irrecoverable in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Unauthorised expenditure approved with funding is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance
when the unauthorised expenditure is approved and the related funds are received. Where the amount
is approved without funding it is recognised as expenditure, subject to availability of savings, in the
Statement of Financial Performance on the date of approval.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance.
If the expenditure is recoverable it is treated as an asset until it is recovered from the responsible person
or written off as irrecoverable in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance. If the
expenditure is not condoned by the relevant authority it is treated as an asset until it is recovered or
written off as irrecoverable in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Expenditure for capital assets
Payments made for capital assets are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance
when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system.

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost.

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
deposits held, other short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

Prepayments and advances
Amounts prepaid or advanced are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the payments
are made.

Pre-payments and advances outstanding at year-end are carried in the Statement of Financial Position
at cost.

Receivables
Receivables included in the Statement of Financial Position arise from cash payments made that are
recoverable from another party.

Receivables outstanding at year-end are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost plus any
accrued inferest.



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.6.1

4.6.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

Loans

Loans are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at the nominal amount when cash is paid
to the beneficiary. Loan balances are reduced when cash repayments are received from the beneficiary.
Amounts that are potentially irrecoverable are included in the disclosure notes.

Loans that are outstanding at year-end are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost.

Inventory
Inventories purchased during the financial year are disclosed at cost in the notes.

Capital assets

Movable assets

A capital asset is recorded on receipt of the item at cost. Cost of an asset is defined as the total cost of
acquisition. Where the cost cannot be determined accurately, the movable capital asset is stated at fair
value. Where fair value cannot be determined, the capital asset is included in the asset register at R1.

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature is recorded in the Statement of Financial Performance as
“expenditure for capital asset” and is capitalised in the asset register of the department on completion
of the project.

Repairs and maintenance is expensed as current “goods and services” in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

Immovable assets

A capital asset is recorded on receipt of the item at cost. Cost of an asset is defined as the total cost of
acquisition. Where the cost cannot be determined accurately, the immovable capital asset is stated at R1
unless the fair value for the asset has been reliably estimated.

Repairs and maintenance is expensed as current “goods and services” in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

Liabilities

Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Unexpended appropriated funds are surrendered to the National Revenue Fund. Amounts owing to the
National Revenue Fund at the end of the financial year are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Position.

Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Amounts owing to the National Revenue Fund at the end of the financial year are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Position at cost.

Bank overdraft
The bank overdraft is carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost.

Payables
Recognised payables mainly comprise of amounts owing to other governmental entities. These payables
are recognised at historical cost in the Statement of Financial Position.

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities are included in the disclosure notes to the financial statements.



5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

7.1

7.2

Commitments
Commitments are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as a liability or as expenditure
in the Statement of Financial Performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

Accruals
Accruals are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as a liability or as expenditure in the
Statement of Financial Performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation are disclosed in
the disclosure notes to the financial statements. These amounts are not recognised in the Statement of
Financial Performance or the Statement of Financial Position.

Lease commitments

Operating leases

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance. The
operating lease commitments are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the financial statements.

Receivables for departmental revenue
Receivables for departmental revenue are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the annual financial
statements.

Net Assets

Capitalisation reserve
The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a prior reporting
period but which are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position for the first time in the current
reporting period. Amounts are transferred to the National Revenue Fund on disposal, repayment or
recovery of such amounts.

Recoverable revenue
Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial year
becomes recoverable from a debtor in the current financial year.

Key management personnel
Compensation paid to key management personnel including their family members where relevant, is
included in the disclosure notes.

Public private partnerships
A description of the Public Private Partnerships arrangement, the contract fees and current and capital
expenditure relating to the Public Private Partnerships arrangement is included in the disclosure notes.



DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
VOTE 13

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2009

1. Annual appropriation

1.1 Annual appropriation

1: Administration 199 869 199 869 - 142 954
2: System Planning and Monitoring 108 996 108 996 - 88 815
3: General Education 329 079 329 079 - 274 780
4: Further Education and Training 1102 956 1102 956 - 1199918
5: Social and School Enrichment 2 421 389 2 421 389 - 1285 944
6: Higher Education 15558 159 15558 159 - 13 326 225
7: Auxiliary and Associated Services 28 922 28 922 - 68116
Total 19 749 370 19 749 370 - 16 386 752

2. Departmental revenue

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 2.1 1442 1095
Interest, dividends and rent on land 2.2 4416 4 050
Sales of capital assets 2.3 - 32
Financial transactions in assets and liabilities 2.4 2 288 3 368
Transfer received 2.5 50 193
Total revenue collected 8 196 8 738
Departmental revenue collected 8196 8 738

2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 2
Sales of goods and services produced by the department 1371 1095
Administrative fees 1246 980
Other sales 125 115
Sales of scrap, waste and other used current goods 71 -
Total 1442 1095

2.2 Interest, dividends and rent on land 2
Interest 4416 4 050
Total 4416 4 050

2.3 Sales of capital assets 2
Tangible assets - 32
Machinery and equipment 28.2 - | | 32
Total - 32

2.4 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities 2
Stale cheques written back 50 24
Other receipts including recoverable revenue 2 238 3 344
Total 2 288 3 368

2.5 Transfers received 2
International organisations 50 193
50 193
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
VOTE 13

for the year ended 31 March 2009

3. Aid Assistance

3.1 Aid assistance received in cash from RDP
Foreign
Opening Balance 1977 8 297
Revenue Annex TH 114 487 168 042
Expenditure Annex TH (126 860) (174 362)
Current (1710 848) (173 710)
Capital (9 595) (652)
Transfers (6 417) -
Closing Balance (10 396) 1977
3.2 Total assistance
Opening Balance 1977 8 297
Revenue 114 487 168 042
Expenditure (126 860) (174 362)
Current (110 848) (173 710)
Capital (9 595) (652)
Transfers (6 417) -
Closing Balance (10 396) 1977
Analysis of balance
Aid assistance receivable 16 252 5 585
RDP Annex TH | 16252 | 5585 |
Aid assistance unutilised 5 856 7 562
RDP Annex TH | 5856] | 7562 |
Closing balance (10 396) 1977
4. Compensation of employees
4.1 Salaries and wages
Basic salary 176 883 134 388
Performance award 5926 5 486
Service based 175 10
Compensative/circumstantial 52 506 48 318
Periodic payments 2183 1685
Other non-pensionable allowances 42 687 36 631
Total 280 360 226 518
4.2  Social contributions
Employer contributions
Pension 21 868 16 078
Medical 8730 7113
Bargaining council 29 25
Official unions and associations 4 5
Total 30 631 23 221
Total compensation of employees 310 991 249 739
Average number of employees 971 899
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2009

5. Goods and services

Administrative fees 1528 1985
Advertising 27 009 40 386
Assets less than R5,000 5.1 3130 3373
Bursaries (employees) 218 241
Catering 4 235 1275
Communication 6 860 6411
Computer services 5.2 38 996 47 118
Consultants, contractors and agency/outsourced services 5.3 115177 50114
Entertainment 412 332
Audit cost — external 5.4 3 860 3161
Government motor transport 1733 1749
Inventory 5.5 128 256 13 291
Maintenance, repairs and running costs 2 606 6 395
Operating leases 7 301 7739
Owned and leasehold property expenditure 5.6 20 965 18 822
Transport provided as part of the departmental activities 36 -
Travel and subsistence 5.7 83720 72 159
Venues and facilities 12 842 11779
Training and staff development 54 902 25612
Other operating expenditure 5.8 363 418 264 489
Total 877 204 576 431

5.1 Assets less than R5,000 5
Tangible assets 3130 3 320
Machinery and equipment 3130 | | 3320
Intangible assets - 58
Total 3130 3373

5.2 Computer services 5
SITA computer services 35 144 40 217
External computer service providers 3852 6 901
Total 38 996 47 118

5.3 Consultants, contractors and agency/outsourced services 5
Business and advisory services 4916 2 169
Infrastructure and planning 40171 3
Legal costs 526 874
Contractors 1811 8 030
Agency and support/outsourced services 67 753 39 038
Total 115177 50114

5.4  Audit cost - external 5
Regularity audits 3092 2768
Performance audits 2 -
Other audits 766 393
Total 3 860 3161
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5.5 Inventory 5
Learning and teaching support material 22 851 2 398
Other consumable materials 1099 368
Maintenance material 93 244
Stationery and printing 104 212 10 259
Medical supplies 1 22
Total 128 256 13 291
5.6 Owned and leasehold property expenditure 5
Municipal services 1896 1320
Property management fees 18 597 17 405
Other 472 97
Total 20 965 18 822
5.7 Travel and subsistence 5
Local 75 868 63 555
Foreign 7 852 8 604
Total 83 720 72 159
5.8  Other operating expenditure 5
Learnerships - 38
Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees - 266
Resettlement costs 4022 1049
Other 359 396 263 136
Total 363 418 264 489

6. Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Debts written off 6.1 184 31558
Total 184 31 558
6.1 Debts written off 6
Nature of debts written off
Claims: Eastern Cape Education Department - 17 560
Claims: Gauteng Education Department - 13 740
Supersonic/Sure Travel 49 100
Connex 12 72
Salary overpayment 74 70
UNESCO National Commission 44 -
Other 5 16
Total 184 31558

7. Transfers and subsidies

Provinces and municipalities Annex TA 2 909 284 2 007 950
Departmental agencies and accounts Annex 1B 1787 441 1412 699
Universities and technikons Annex 1C 13 797 403 11 941 539
Foreign governments and international organisations Annex 1D 10 938 11016
Non-profit institutions Annex 1E 50 50
Households Annex 1F 976 2 433
Total 18 506 092 15 375 687
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2009

8. Expenditure for capital assets

Tangible assets 22 463 8 284
Machinery and equipment 28.1 | 22 463] | 8 284 |
Software and other intangible assets 1731 279
Computer software 29.1 | 1731 | | 279 |
Total 24 194 8 563
8.1 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 2008/09
Voted funds Aid assistance Total
R'000 R’000 R'000
Tangible assets 12 868 9 595 22 463
Machinery and equipment | 12 868 9595] | 22 463
Software and other intangible assets 1731 - 1731
Computer software | 1731 -| | 1731 |
Total 14 599 9 595 24 194
8.2 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 2007/08
Voted funds Aid assistance Total
R'000 R’000 R'000
Total assets acquired 7 9211 652 8 563

9. Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated Paymaster General Account - 13 821

Cash on hand 18 15

Total 18 13 836
10. Prepayments and advances

Travel and subsistence 114 330

Prepayments 929 10 000

Total 1043 10 330

Note R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
11. Receivables

Claims recoverable 11.1
Annex 3 16 126 160 117 207 133 493 123 690
Recoverable expenditure 11.2 486 228 151 865 2717
Staff debt 11.3 110 57 9 176 104
Other debtors 11.4 154 167 64 385 695
Total 16 876 612 117 431 134 919 127 206
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11.1  Claims recoverable 11
National departments 726 363
Provincial departments 117 132 117 138
Public entities 15 608 6117
Private enterprises 27 72
Total 133 493 123 690
11.2 Recoverable expenditure (disallowance accounts) 11
Dishonoured cheques S5 3
Miscellaneous 860 2714
Total 865 2717
11.3  Staff debt 11
Motor accidents 131 59
Other 45 45
Total 176 104
11.4 Other debtors 11
Cheque fraud 6 6
Out of service debt 100 231
Irregular expenditure not condoned - 450
Other debtors 279 8
Total 385 695
12. Loans
Universities and technikons 33746 35191
Total 33 746 35 191

Analysis of balance

Opening balance 35191 36 499
Repayments (1 445) (1 308)
Closing balance 33 746 35 191
Cape Peninsula University of Technology 4 675 4957
Durban Institute of Technology 8 208 8 504
Nelson Mandela Metropolitan University 545 625
Tshwane University of Technology 8746 9127
Vaal University of Technology 3236 3371
University of Johannesburg 5550 5783
University of Stellenbosch 1189 1379

32 149 33 746
Current portion of loans 1597 1445

13. Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Opening balance 145 426 49 371
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance 40 300 145 426
Paid during the year (145 426) (49 371)
Closing balance 40 300 145 426
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14. Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Opening balance 476 (352)
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance 8 196 8738
Paid during the year (7 968) (7910)
Closing balance 704 476

15. Bank overdraft
Consolidated Paymaster General Account 101 978 -
Total 101 978 -

16. Payables - current

Clearing accounts 16.1 2 444 2& 1
Other payables 16.2 949 918
Total 3393 3429
16.1 Clearing accounts 16
Tax RSA 2 399 2 504
Other 45 7
Total 2 444 2 511
16.2 Other payables 16
UNESCO National Commission 894 878
Other 55 40
Total 949 918

17. Net cash flow available from operating activities

Net surplus/(deficit) as per Statement of Financial Performance 36 123 147 844
Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities (127 662) (20 611)
(Increase)/decrease in receivables — current (7713) 37 143
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances 9 287 (10 169)
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets (10 667) (5033)
Increase/(decrease) in payables — current (36) 1165
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - (32)
Expenditure on capital assets 24 194 8 563
Surrenders to Revenue Fund (153 394) (57 281)
Other non-cash items 10 667 5033
Net cash flow generated by operating activities (91 539) 127 233

18. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow

purposes

Consolidated Paymaster General account (101 978) 13 821
Cash on hand 18 15
Total (101 960) 13 836
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19. Contingent liabilities
Liable to
Motor vehicle guarantees
Housing loan guarantees
Other guarantees

Claims against the department

Total

20. Commitments
Current expenditure
Approved and contracted

Approved but not yet contracted

Capital expenditure
Approved and contracted

Approved but not yet contracted

Total Commitments

21. Accruals

Listed by economic classification

Compensation of employees

Goods and services
Transfers and subsidies

Machinery and equipment

Total

Listed by programme level

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

VOTE 13

for the year ended 31 March 2009

DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Programme 1:
Programme 2:
Programme 3:
Programme 4:
Programme 5:
Programme 6:
Programme 7:

Administration

System Planning and Monitoring
General Education

Further Education and Training
Social and School Enrichment
Higher Education

Auxiliary and Associated Services

Total

22. Employee benefits
Leave entitlement
Thirteenth cheque
Performance awards

Capped leave commitments

Total

Nature
Employees Annex 2A 194 328
Employees Annex 2A 752 1047
Annex 2A 125 570 277 148
Annex 2B 3 400 3 400
129 916 281 923
7 036 5782
20765 51770
27 801 57 552
- 11
1124 2 469
1124 2 480
28 925 60 032
30 days 30+ days Total Total
R’000 R'000 R’000 R’000
453 - 453 445
9 673 4066 13739 7 529
1748 - 1748 2 949
56 - 56 210
11 930 4 066 15 996 11133
Note 2008/09 2007/08
R’000 R’000
4198 2 064
957 563
1290 654
6 656 3555
597 172
2 055 3398
243 727
15 996 11 133
4991 6722
7 377 5197
- 87
21288 16 922
33 656 28 928
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DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2009

Lease commitments
23.1 Operating leases expenditure

Not later than 1 year - 18 131 2 154 20 285
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - - 365 365

Later than five years - - - 1
Total lease commitments - 18 131 2519 20 650

Not later than 1 year - 17 886 1387 19 273
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - 19 709 713 20 422
Later than five years - - - -
Total lease commitments - 37 595 2100 39 695

24.

Irregular expenditure
24.1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

Opening balance - 1231
Less: Amounts condoned - (781)
Less: Amounts recoverable (not condoned) - (450)
Irregular expenditure awaiting condonation - -
No. of
Key management personnel Individuals
Political office bearers (detail below) 2 2740 2 201
Officials:
Level 15t0 16 8 8 496 6700
Family members of key management personnel 1 28 657
Total 11 264 9 558

Minister: 2007/08: R1.211 million; 2008/09: R1.654 million.
Deputy Minister: 2007/08: R0.990 million; 2008/09: R1.086 million.

Public Private Partnership

The PPP agreement for the financing, construction, operation and maintenance of office accommodation was signed on 20 April
2007 and construction commenced during the 2007/08 financial year.

Current expenditure 40 000 -
Goods and Services (excluding lease payments) | 40 000 | | - |
Total 40 000 -

The payment of the unitary fee will become applicable only once the Department has occupied the new office building. The expected
date of occupation is October 2009, in the 2009/10 financial year. The unitary fee is payable for a 25 year period and will be
annually adjusted in terms of the CPIX. At the end of the 25 year contract period the entire property, including the building and
its furniture and equipment will be transferred to the Department. Provision is made in the PPP Agreement for the termination and
renewal of the agreement if so required.
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27. Provisions
Potential irrecoverable debts
Claims recoverable 117 047 117 263
Total 117 047 117 263

28. Movable Tangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 33159 1139 22 456 12 098 44 656
Transport assets 2 854 - 574 831 2 597
Computer equipment 20 554 186 12 937 2 075 31 602
Furniture and office equipment 8314 435 4 854 4870 8733
Other machinery and equipment 1437 518 4091 4322 1724
TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE

CAPITAL ASSETS 33 159 1139 22 456 12 098 44 656

28.1 Additions

ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2009

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 12 868 9 595 - (7) 22 456
Transport assets 574 - - - 574
Computer equipment 11582 1362 - (7) 12 937
Furniture and office equipment 401 4 453 - - 4 854
Other machinery and equipment 311 3780 - - 4091
TOTAL ADDITIONS TO

MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL

ASSETS 12 868 9 595 - (7) 22 456

28.2 Disposals

DISPOSALS OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2009

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT - 12 098 12 098 -
Transport assets - 831 831 -
Computer equipment - 2 075 2 075 -
Furniture and office equipment - 4870 4870 e
Other machinery and equipment - 4322 4322 e

TOTAL DISPOSAL OF MOVABLE
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS - 12 098 12 098 -
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DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2009

Movement for 2007/08

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2008

28.4

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 26 497 8573 1911 33159
Transport assets 2 323 576 45 2 854
Computer equipment 15470 6910 1826 20 554
Furniture and office equipment 7 624 697 7 8314
Other machinery and equipment 1080 390 8BS 1437

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE
CAPITAL ASSETS 26 497 8 573 1911 33 159

Minor assets

MINOR ASSETS OF THE DEPARTMENT FOR 31 MARCH 2009

29.

Minor Assets 242 - 6901 - 7 143

TOTAL 242 - 6 901 - 7 143
Machinery and

Intangible assets  Heritage assets equipment  Biological assets Total

Number of minor assets 131 - 17 527 - 17 658

TOTAL 131 - 17 527 - 17 658

Intangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

29.1

COMPUTER SOFTWARE 786 (70) 1724 - 2 440
TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL

ASSETS 786 (70) 1724 - 2 440
Additions

ADDITIONS TO INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

29.2

COMPUTER SOFTWARE 1731 - - (7) 1724
TOTAL ADDITIONS TO
INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 1731 - - (7) 1724

Movement for 2007/08
MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

COMPUTER SOFTWARE 489 297 - 786
TOTAL 489 297 - 786
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- PART 6

""ﬁ STATUTORY BODIES
ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
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Statutory Bodies

Council of Education Ministers (CEM)

Chairperson
Secretariat

Contact Persons

Tel:
Fax:
E-mail:

Sol Plaatjie House
123 Schoeman Street
Pretoria

Mrs Naledi Pandor, MP Minister of Education

Directorate: Strategic Coordination and Secretarial Support,
Department of Education

Dr WM Makgalancheche

Ms Nandipha Koyana

(012) 312 5193
(012) 323 0146
Koyana.N@doe.gov.za

Private Bag X 895
Pretoria
0001

Heads of Education Departments Committee (HEDCOM)

Chairperson:
Secretariat:
Contact Persons

Tel:
Fax:
E-mail:

Sol Plaatjie House

Council on Higher Education (CHE)

Chairperson:
Interim Chief Executive Office:

Tel:
Fax:
E-mail

Didacta Building
211 Skinner Street
Pretoria

0002

Mr D Hindle, Director-General, DoE

Directorate: Strategic Coordination and Secretarial Support
Dr WM Makgalancheche

Mr JJ Mabasa

(012) 312 5503
(012) 323 0146
mabasa.j@doe.gov.za

Private Bag X 895
123 Schoeman Street
Pretoria

0001

Dr CN Manganye
Prof. C de la Rey

(012) 392 9115
(012) 392 9122
singh.m@che.org.za

P O Box 13354
The Tramshed
Pretoria

0126



South African Qualifications Authority (SAQA)

Chairperson:
Executive Officer:

Tel:
Fax:
E-mail

1067 Hatfield Forum West

Arcadia Street
Hatfield
0083

Dr S Walters
Mr SBS Isaacs

(012) 431 5002
(012) 431 5115/5039
Samuel Isaacs@doe.gov.za

PostNet Suite 248
Private Bag X06
Waterkloof

0145

Council for Quality Assurance in General and Further Education and Training (UMALUSI)

Chairperson:

Chief Executive Officer:

Tel:
Fax:
E-mail:

37 General Van Ryneveld Street
Persequor Techno Park

Pretoria

Mr J Pampallis
Dr P Lolwana

(012) 349 1510
(012) 349 1511
info@umalusi.org.za

PostNet Suite 102
Private Bag X1

Queenswood
0121

National Board for Further Education and Training (NBFET)

Chairperson:
Secretariat:

Tel:

Fax:
E-mail:
Website:

Mr D George
Mr K Pole

(012) 312 5014

(012) 321 3349

pole.k@doe.gov.za

see DoE sites at: education.pwv.gov.za

Private Bag X895
Pretoria, 0001

National Student Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS)

Chairperson:

Chief Executive Officer:

Tel:

Fax:
E-mail
Website:

18 - 20 Court Road
Wynberg
7800

Mr S Pityana

Mr P Naicker
(021) 763 3200
(021) 797 8131
info@nsfas.org.za
www.nsfas.org.za

Private Bag X1
Plumstead
7801



South African Council for Education (SACE)

Chairperson: Mr Glenn Abrahams
Executive Officer: Mr Rej Brijraj

Tel: (012) 663 9517/8/9
Fax: (012) 663 9238
E-mail info@sace.org.za
Website: WWW.sace.org.za
261 West Street Private Bag X127
Centurion Centurion

0042 0046

Education Labour Relations Council (ELRC)

Chairperson: Mr W Kutumela

Chief Executive Officer: Mr M Govender

Tel: (012) 663 0432

Fax: (012) 663 9604/ 0438
E-mail: gen.sec@elrc.co.za
261 West Street Private Bag X126
Centurion Centurion

0042 0046
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Sol Plugw House, 123 Schoemun Sfreef P

Private Bag X895, Pretoria, 0001, Tel: +27 ('1‘2) 312 59'| %

Private Bag X9034, Cape Town, 8000, Tel: +27 (21) 0, Fa






